(@)

/——*f’_‘
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE will
be held in THE CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S
STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 18TH JULY 2022
at 7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the
following business:-

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY CHANGE

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 5 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20th June
2022.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary, other
registerable and non-registerable interests in relation to any Agenda item. See
Notes below.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

Somersham - 19/01790/0OUT (Pages 7 - 48)

Application for outline planning permission for a phased development of up to 132
dwellings and associated access, approval sought for access, layout and
landscaping with scale and appearance reserved, on land North of The Bank -
Land North of 16 The Bank, Somersham.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).



(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Holme - 20/00923/REM (Pages 49 - 100)

Reserved matters application for 25 dwellings for access, appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale pursuant to outline planning permission 17/00101/OUT - D J C
Produce, Pingle Bank, Holme, PE7 3PJ.

Pidley-cum-Fenton - 19/01258/FUL (Pages 101 - 140)

Erection of 4 dwellings with garaging and parking following the demolition of the
existing industrial buildings - Land North East of The Laurels, Fenton Road, Fenton.

Pidley-cum-Fenton - 21/01287/REM (Pages 141 - 178)

Application for approval of reserved matters (Access, Appearance, Landscaping,
Layout, Scale), following outline approval reference 19/01782/OUT, for the
erection of 4 dwellings - Vernon Motors, Warboys Road, Pidley, PE28 3DA.
Alconbury Weston - 22/00145/S73 (Pages 179 - 208)

Removal/variation of conditions 3 (Material), 4 (Landscape), 5 (levels) ,6 (ecology),
7 (tree protection), 10 (architectural details) to 18/01946/FUL as the majority of the
works are now complete on site — 50 Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston, PE28
4JD.

APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 209 - 210)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

6 day of July 2022

}xmumq\j@ (

Head of Paid Service

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registrable and Non-Registrable
Interests

Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other Registerable and
Non-Reqisterable Interests is available in the Council’'s Constitution

Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its
meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking
and micro-blogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with
people about what is happening at meetings.

Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with guidelines
agreed by the Council.


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf

Please contact Anthony Roberts, Democratic Services, Tel: 01480 388015 /
email Anthony.Roberts@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query
on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the
meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the
Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards
the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.



http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29
3TN on Monday, 20th June 2022

PRESENT: Councillor D L Mickelburgh — Chair.

Councillors R J Brereton, E R Butler, L Davenport-Ray,
D B Dew, K P Gulson, C Lowe, SR McAdam, S Mokbul,
J Neish, T D Sanderson and R A Slade.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on
behalf of Councillors | D Gardener, P A Jordan, C H Tevlin
and S Wakeford.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 25th April and 18th May
2022 were approved as correct records and signed by the Chair.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor D B Dew declared a non-statutory disclosable interest in Minute No. 7
(a) by virtue of the fact that the application related to the Ward he represented as
a Member of Cambridgeshire County Council.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) submitted reports
(copies of which are appended in the Minute Book) on applications for
development to be determined by the Committee. Members were advised of
further representations, which had been received since the reports had been
prepared. Whereupon, it was

RESOLVED

Demolition of existing bungalow. Construction of three residential
dwellings with parking and amenity land - Ashlea, Potton Road, Hilton,
PE28 9NG - 20/01069/FUL

(Councillor P Balicki, Hilton Parish Council, addressed the Committee on the
application).

See Minute No. 7 for Members’ interests.
that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by the

Planning Service Manager (Development Management) to include those listed
ion paragraph 8 of the report now submitted.

Page 5 of 210



b)

Conversion of existing agricultural barn to 2no residential units - Land
South of Harbins Farm, Harbins Lane, Abbotsley - 21/00436/FUL

(Mr S Bampton, agent, addressed the Committee on the application).

that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by the
Planning Service Manager (Development Management) to include those listed
ion paragraph 8 of the report now submitted together with an additional condition
requiring the methodology for the conversion to be submitted to and approved by
the Council.

APPEAL DECISIONS

The Committee received and noted a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management), which contained details of four recent decisions by the
Planning Inspectorate. A copy of the report is appended in the Minute Book.

RESOLVED

that the contents of the report be noted.

Chair

Page 6 of 210



Agenda Iltem 3a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18" July 2022
Case No:  19/01790/0UT (OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: APPLICATION FOR OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR
A PHASED DEVELOPMENT OF UP TO 132 DWELLINGS AND
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, APPROVAL SOUGHT FOR
ACCESS, LAYOUT AND LANDSCAPING WITH SCALE AND
APPEARANCE RESERVED, ON LAND NORTH OF THE
BANK.

Location: LAND NORTH OF 16, THE BANK, SOMERSHAM

Applicant: LARKFLEET HOMES
Grid Ref: 537002 278141
Date of Registration: 05.09.2019

Parish: SOMERSHAM

RECOMMENDATION - Delegate powers to Officers to
finalise terms of the S106 agreement in relation to off-site
formal sports contribution and off-site biodiversity contribution
and, to

APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106
obligation, to include provision of informal green space,
wheeled bins, and on-site affordable housing (and formal
sports and biodiversity contribution, subject to CIL
compliance), and subject to conditions to include those listed
below.

OR

REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above
has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree
to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that
the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary
to make the development acceptable.

Page 7 of 210



The Parish Council recommendation is in line with the Officer
recommendation of approval, however the application is referred to
the Development Management Committee at the request of the Chief
Planning Officer in the interests of openness and transparency as
the site is known to be under the ownership of a District Councillor.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

The application site relates to land to the north of The Bank
(Chatteris Road, Somersham. The site extends to 5.5 hectares
and is situated at the eastern side of the settlement. The site is
currently used for agricultural purposes. The land use of the
surrounding area is predominantly arable farmland.

The site is situated approximately 650m to the east of the
Somersham Conservation area and the nearest listed building is
situated at 20-22 High Street Somersham located 675m from the
application site. The land falls within Flood zone 1 and is not liable
to flood. A number of trees within the site are subject to a Tree
Preservation Order.

The site is allocated for residential development in
Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (Policy SM5) for
approximately 120 homes.

The proposed development has been amended during
consideration of the planning application following receipt of
consultee comments. Outline planning permission is sought for a
phased residential development of 132 dwellings with access,
layout and landscaping sought for approval. The scale and
appearance of the residential units are reserved matters for later
consideration and approval as part of a subsequent reserved
matters application.

The application is supported by the necessary plans and the
following reports:

Transport Assessment (TA)

Planning, Design and Access Statement
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI);
Flood Risk Assessment;

Ecological Survey;

Archaeological Desk Based Assessment
Arboriculture Survey

Noise and Lighting Statement

With regard to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 the development does not
meet the criteria to require a detailed screening opinion, as the site
proposes less than 150 dwellings. It is therefore not anticipated

Page 8 of 210



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

that the project would have significant environmental effects and
is therefore not considered to be EIA development.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (20 July 2021) (NPPF
2021) sets out the three objectives - economic, social and
environmental - of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2021 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development
(paragraph 11)".

The NPPF 2021 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):

delivering a sufficient supply of homes;

achieving well-designed places;

conserving and enhancing the natural environment;
conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Planning Practice Guidance, Noise Policy Statement for England
and the National Design Guide 2019 are also relevant and material
considerations.

Relevant Legislation;

e Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

e Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

e Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

3.

3.1

PLANNING POLICIES

Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)
LP 1: "Amount of development"

LP 2: "Strategy and principles for development"
LP 3: "Green Infrastructure"

LP 4: "Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery"

LP 5: "Flood Risk"

LP 6: "Waste Water Management"

LP 7: "Spatial Planning Areas"

LP 11: "Design Context"

LP 12: "Design Implementation”

LP 13: "Placemaking"

LP 14: "Amenity"

LP 15: "Surface Water"

LP 16: "Sustainable Travel"

LP 17: "Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement"

Page 9 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.2

LP 24: "Affordable Housing Provision"

LP 25: "Housing Mix"

LP 29: "Health Impact Assessment"

LP 30: "Biodiversity and Geodiversity"

LP 31: "Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows"

LP 34: "Heritage Assets and their Settings"

LP 36: "Air Quality"

LP 37: "Ground Contamination and Groundwater Pollution"
SM 5: "North of the Bank, Somersham"

Supplementary Planning Guidance / Other relevant documents:

e Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2017)

Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2017)

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD (2022)

RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide (CCC SPD)

2012

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD

e Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3

e Huntingdonshire District Council Annual Monitoring Report —
Part 1 Housing Supply) 2020/2021 (October 2021)

e Huntingdonshire District Council Annual Monitoring Report —
Part 2 (Non- Housing) 2019/2020 (December 2020)

For full details visit the government website Local policies

4,

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

PLANNING HISTORY

There is no relevant planning history for the site other than the
granting of a provisional Tree Preservation Order (Order no
19/010).

CONSULTATIONS

Somersham Parish Council (30/09.2019) — raised an objection as
the 145 dwellings proposed is excessive and Councillors wish the
number of dwellings to remain at 120 as per the Local Plan to
2036.

Somersham Parish Council (15.03.2022) — accepted the Noise
and Lighting Statement and reiterated their view that the
development proposal is too dense and should only comprise 120
dwellings.

Somersham Parish Council (26.05.2022) — confirms that the
Parish Council no longer raises an objection to the proposal
following a reduction in the number of units to 132 dwellings.

Anglian Water - Anglian Water - NO OBJECTION. Confirms that
the nearest waste water treatment centre will have capacity for the

Page 10 of 210


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

additional flows created by the development. Informatives are
recommended.

Cambridgeshire Constabulary (Designing Out Crime Officer) - NO
OBJECTIONS but would like to be consulted when details of
building security, boundary treatments and lighting are submitted/
The following has been noted:

Cambridgeshire County Council: Archaeology - NO OBJECTION
noting that preliminary archaeological fieldwork for the above site
has been completed. Roman period archaeological evidence was
present within the site, seeming to be confined to the northern third
of the site - mostly in the proposed Phase 3 area. A small area of
interest relating to Late Medieval or slightly later brick making was
found in the north-eastern corner of Phase 2 and this, too, will
require excavation and interpretation, especially since The
Bishop’s Palace and other notable buildings on the village were
substantially made of brick, with imported stone quoins or facades
also used, particularly in the Post-Medieval period. It is
recommended that an archaeological investigation programme is
conducted in advance of construction in order that the significant
archaeological evidence that is contemporary with the known,
published, Roman inland port excavated at Colne Fen Quarry to
the east and surrounding supply farms, e.g., that excavated and
published at Knobbs Farm Quarry to the north-east can be
preserved by record and the construction impacts mitigated by this
measure.

Cambridgeshire County Council: Education: has confirmed that
the development will generate 44 Early Years children (30 eligible
for free places); 58 Primary children and 37 Secondary children
aged 11-15.

Officer response: In accordance with the Developer Contributions
SPD, contributions for education and lifelong learning cannot be
sought for proposals under 200 units and instead all contributions
fall under CIL. It is the statutory duty of the Education Authority to
provide a school place for every school age child in the area.

Cambridgeshire County Council: Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) - NO OBJECTIONS following receipt of an updated surface
water drainage strategy, subject to conditions to secure measures
to avoid additional surface water run-off from the site during
construction works, details of a surface water drainage scheme for
the site, a survey of the downstream ditch network, ongoing
maintenance measures and surface water drainage completion
report.

Cambridgeshire County Council: Local Highways Authority - NO
OBJECTIONS following receipt of amended plans and revised
Transport Assessment subject to conditions/obligations in relation
to:

Page 11 of 210



5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

e Parking/ servicing/ loading/ unloading/ turning/ waiting area
laid out before occupation

e Visibility splays

e Junction construction prior to use

e Surface water drainage measures to prevent water run-off to
adjacent public highway

e Details of management and maintenance of streets until such
time that a Section 38 agreement is in place.

e Temporary facilities to provide parking off the highway during
construction

e Construction traffic routing

e Provision of a direct non-motorised link between the western
site boundary and the neighbouring nature reserve

e Welcome Travel Packs inclusive of bus taster tickets and/or
cycle discount voucher

HDC Urban Design — NO OBJECTIONS to the proposals following
receipt of amended proposals, subject to conditions. The layout
landscaping and access is supported overall. Details of the house
types would be subject to a future reserved matters application.

HDC Landscape - NO OBJECTIONS to the proposals following
receipt of amended proposals, subject to conditions.

HDC Trees — NO OBJECTIONS subject to conditions relating to
the submission of details of the site/ location specific Tree
Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement and a
management plan for the existing mature willow tree which is to
be retained.

HDC Sports Development Manager - a S106 contribution of
£81,998 towards increasing the provision of off-site formal open
space sports facilities is made in order to increase the capacity of
existing provision in the village to meet the needs of new residents.

HDC Operations Green Space — NO OBJECTIONS, noting that
there is not a shortfall of green space in Somersham, but given the
development is detached from the settlement, it is important that
on site green space is provided. Requests that the key area of
open space be more centrally located and not tucked away in the
northern of the site, which has been addressed. It is confirmed that
on site play equipment is not required for developments of less
than 145 dwellings. 10,500 sgm of multifunctional open space is
proposed in exceedance of the minimum requirements set by the
Developer Contributions SPD.

Environment Agency — Confirms that there are no EA constraints
associated with this site therefore have no comments to make but
would recommend that Anglian Water are consulted to ensure
there is sufficient capacity within the mains system.

Page 12 of 210



5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

HDC Environmental Health (Noise) — NO OBJECTIONS and
considers that acoustic glazing and ventilation requirements for
some units will need to be the subject of a planning condition to
be approved as part of the Reserved Matters application.

HDC Environmental Health (Air Quality) — NO OBJECTIONS as
the size and location of the development does not require an Air
Quality Impact Assessment.

HDC Environmental Health (Ground Contamination) - NO
OBJECTIONS subject to conditions securing site investigation,
the submission, approval, implementation and verification of a
remediation scheme and the reporting of unexpected
contamination.

Natural England - NO OBJECTIONS and considers that the
proposed development is unlikely to have an adverse impact on
statutorily designated sites. The recommendations made within
the Ecological Appraisal should be followed in order to secure a
net biodiversity gain in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework. Standing advice is also provided.

Wildlife Trust - NO OBJECTIONS. An off-site contribution is
sought in addition to on site mitigation to secure an overall net gain
in biodiversity.

Officer Comment: It is anticipated that a financial contribution will
be secured to offset the biodiversity loss through this development
which could be used (likely in the locality) to mitigate its impacts.
For example; It is noted that the site lies adjacent to the
Somersham Local Nature Reserve and St lves - March Disused
Railway Line which is a County Wildlife Site. As such it is
anticipated that opportunities exist to compensate for the loss of
on-site biodiversity gain in this instance. It is requested that
delegated authority be allowed for the agreement of the amount
and spend of the off-site contribution.

Friends of Somersham Nature Reserve — OBJECT for the
following reasons: The scheme is likely to result in the loss of
terrestrial habitat and a barrier to migration, increased use of the
nature reserve will cause disturbance to wildlife. The development
will increase management/maintenance costs and a commuted
sum is requested for this. Further survey work should be
undertaken and additional mitigation proposed.

Officer comment: no figure has been provided in respect of a
commuted sum requested by Friends of Somersham Nature
Reserve and no project and associated costs has been supplied.
Given a contribution request has been made by the
Cambridgeshire Wildlife Trust, it would not be possible to secure
two off-site payments. It is suggested that delegated authority be

Page 13 of 210



5.23

6.1

granted to explore opportunities with the Wildlife Trust for the
spend of any contribution agreed to be at Somersham Nature
Reserve. .

RSPB — no comment

REPRESENTATIONS

21 representations have been received, the comments of
which are summarised as follows:

Construction /residential amenity — concern regarding
noise and dust during construction.

Design — concern that the layout is too high density and
the number of units reduced. Harm to the character and
appearance of the area and wider countryside.

Access — concern that the position of the access could
result in disturbance and nuisance in terms of light,
vibration and noise. Concern that the access is unsafe
on what is a fast road. Additional traffic impacting on the
highway network.

Residential amenity — loss of privacy and outlook
Infrastructure — the proposal will add pressure on
resources in the village. There should be some village
gain from the development. The school is not adequate
for more residents. Lack of facilities for older children and
risk of antisocial behaviour.

Ecology — SUDS should be at the site edges for the
benefit of wildlife. Concern that trees and hedgerows will
be removed. Concern that protected species at the site
will not be protected.

Sustainability — access to public transport is poor. Most
village services are to the west of the village which will
encourage car use.

Housing Need - The need for housing is recognised.
Other developments in the village are meeting housing
needs. Other potential sites are more suitable that will
provide more affordable housing.

Flooding and Drainage — concern that the ditch is not
adequate in capacity to drain water away from the site.
Concern that the Flood Risk Assessment does not
consider impact on surrounding properties. Existing
public drains not sufficient for additional properties.

The following non-planning matters have been raised:

Loss of a view

Loss of property value

Damage to or removal of adjacent property outside of the
application site.

Page 14 of 210



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

ASSESSMENT

As set out in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
(Section 38(6)) planning applications should be determined in
accordance with the Development Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. This is reiterated within the
NPPF (2021). Under section 70(2) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 in dealing with planning applications the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. The Development Plan is defined in
Section 28(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as "the development plan
documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area".

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of:
o Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036
o Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Plan
St Neots Neighbourhood Plan
Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan
Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan
Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan
Bury Neighbourhood Plan
Buckden Neighbourhood Plan
Grafham and Ellington Neighbourhood Plan

The statutory term 'material considerations' has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of land:
Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 (Admin); [2011] 1 P.
& C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting that the NPPF does
not change the statutory status of the Development Plan, para 2
confirms that it is a material consideration and significant weight is
given to this in determining applications.

The main issues to consider in assessing this application are if this
development is considered sustainable development, having
considered the economic, environmental and social elements of
this case. The matters for further discussion are those of the;

o principle of development,

. impacts upon the character and appearance of the area,
residential amenity,
impacts upon highway safety,
heritage assets,
biodiversity,
flooding,
drainage,
ground conditions and contamination,

Page 15 of 210



. infrastructure requirements and planning obligations.

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT:

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Policy LP1 sets out the amount of development the Local Plan
seeks to address having regard to the objectively assessed need
for development in Huntingdonshire. The Strategy for
Development at paragraph 4.4 of the Local Plan confirms that
allocated sites are included to promote the deliverability of the
strategy.

The application site is located within the Key Service Centre of
Somersham. The site is allocated under Policy SM 5 for residential
development of approximately 120 homes. Policy SM 5 sets out a
number of requirements, including in relation to design, layout,
safe access, community benefits, retention of trees and drainage.
These matters are considered elsewhere in this report.

Somersham is classified in policies LP2 and LP8 as a Key Service
Centre and thus is one of the district’s sustainable centres which
can accommodate growth. Policy LP2 explains that approximately
one quarter of the objectively assessed need for housing and
limited employment and retail growth will be focussed in Key
Service Centres and Small Settlements. Paragraph 4.98 in the
supporting text to Policy LP8 notes that Key service Centres have
a role in meeting the development needs of the district and
supporting the economic vitality of these settlements through a
series of allocations for new development.

With regard to the site allocation, whilst the number of dwellings
proposed is marginally higher than that within SM 5, para. D.8
within the Local Plan states that there is scope for variation in the
proposed numbers through the planning application process and
that housing capacities should be design-led and any scheme
proposing a variation to the allocation should be justified. A 10%
tolerance either side of the approximate figure is considered to be
reasonable. As the proposal seeks to provide 10% more than the
approximate figure stated within the allocation, it is considered the
number of units proposed is acceptable providing that it accords
with all other relevant policies of the development plan.

In terms of the principle of development, the proposed
development is therefore largely in accordance with the allocation
in terms of quantum, use and location and considered to accord
with policies LP1, LP2, LP8 and SM 5, subject to other matters
considered below.

CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF THE AREA:
7.10 Paragraph 126 of the NPPF states that the creation of high quality,

beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to
what the planning and development process should achieve.

Page 16 of 210



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates
better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities. Paragraph 130 explains
that decisions should ensure that developments function well and
add to the overall quality of the area, are visually attractive as a
result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping and are sympathetic to local character and history,
including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting.

Layout —

The layout has been subject to a number of revisions since the
initial submission and in consultation with HDC Urban Design. The
amended layout seeks erection for 132 dwellings (13 less than the
original illustrative proposals) and comprises a series of shared
surface loop roads and private drives accessed from a central
spine road along the western edge of the site. The number of cul-
de-sacs has been reduced to just 2 - serving indicative Plots 48-
51 in the centre of the site, south of the swale and indicative Plots
8-27 in the southwest corner. This arrangement has created a
predominantly outward facing development with units fronting
linear green spaces and existing vegetation adjacent to the
eastern, northern and western site boundaries. These linear green
spaces incorporate the public open space and include peripheral
leisure routes, grass and tree planting which improve access and
permeability around the site, improved access to public open
space and has the potential to provide a green outlook to these
units.

Plots 15-27 form the only units backing onto a short section of
western boundary in the southwest corner of the site, these units
incorporate longer rear gardens to safeguard existing retained tree
and hedge planting adjacent to the site boundary.

An east-west swale is proposed centrally within the site, this
includes a footbridge allowing connections N-S and a loop road on
the northern edge allowing connections E-W. This space forms an
east-west landscape connection between the linear green spaces
on the east and west edges and improves permeability and access
to the adjacent nature reserve.

An area of open space and the SUDs pond is proposed in the
southern half of the site surrounding the retained Willow trees.
During the course of the application, Plots 129-131 have been
reconfigured and plot 129 orientated to front the southern edge of
the Swale and POS.

The scheme provides 2.023 acres / 8,186 sgm of open space —
this is mainly concentrated within the east and west linear green
spaces and the area surrounding the SUDS pond and is well in
excess of the 6,249sqm area required by the HDC Developer

Page 17 of 210



7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Contributions SPD. The linear green spaces are accepted as part
of the open space provision given their approximately 10m width
and proximity to units as well as the proximity of the larger
continuous area of open space within the adjacent nature reserve.

The proposals include a single point of access from The Bank a
further pedestrian only connection is proposed along the eastern
boundary providing access to the adjacent Local Nature Reserve
site. The access arrangements are supported in design terms.

Landscaping:

The structure and layout of peripheral landscaped spaces
contribute to the overall Public Open Space requirement with the
perimeter leisure route proving access and permeability which is
supported in design terms. The Councils Landscape Officer
supports the proposals subject to a condition that requires full
details of the hard and soft landscaping specification to ensure that
the choice of surface materials and planting species, numbers and
densities is acceptable.

The arrangement of knee rails along the outer edge of peripheral
roads and green corridors is accepted and prevents vehicle
access to these spaces — breaks will be necessary to allow
pedestrian and maintenance access of these spaces of which
details can be secured by way of a boundary treatment condition
or details to be provided as part of a detailed reserved matters
application.

It should be noted that appearance and scale are reserved matters
and therefore are not for consideration or approval as part of this
outline application. Therefore, the size, plot arrangement, on-plot
parking, internal layouts and external appearance of the house
types and other structures will be considered as part of the later
reserved matters application.

Parking:

The proposed indicative layout incorporates a variety of car
parking solutions and is provided as a mixture of on-plot spaces in
the form of tandem side drives and frontage parking and small rear
parking courts. All plots have at least two parking spaces, with a
number of larger plots having three spaces in addition to garage
space which an provide additional parking subject to the size and
accessibility. Whilst the exact extent of parking provision will need
to be scrutinised in conjunction with the appearance and scale as
part of any reserved matters application, it is considered that the
density and layout proposed will provide satisfactory parking
provision insofar as design and street scene are considered.

Page 18 of 210



7.21

7.22

7.23

The provision of exclusively on-plot parking would ensure that
Electric Vehicle charging can be implemented for all units and will
be subject to a condition requiring the preparatory wiring to be
installed prior to development above slab level, thereby allowing
the future occupant to install an EV charging point in the future as
and when they require it.

All units have adequate on-plot space to secure cycle storage in
accordance with Local Plan Policy LP17. Details of cycle can be
scrutinised as part of the appearance and scale reserved matters
submission and will be determined in conjunction with the size of
the units.

The proposal is therefore considered to represent a high-quality
development in this location and achieves the design aspirations
for this area sought by Policy SM 5, LP11 and LP12 of the Local
Plan (2019) and the Design Supplementary Planning Document
(2017), the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) and the
National Design Guide (2019).

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY:

7.24

7.25

7.26

Policy LP14 within the adopted Local Plan to 2036 and the NPPF
seek to ensure developments do not have an unacceptable impact
upon residential amenity for both existing and future
occupiers/uses.

Existing Occupants:

There are a number of buildings surrounding the application site
which are within a variety of uses. The closest residents to the
application site are those along Chatteris Road which will
experience a change in outlook, but it should be noted that change
does not necessarily equate to harm. It should also be noted that
objections that have been received on the grounds of loss of a
view, or loss of property value are not material planning
considerations that can be given any weight in the determination
of the application.

Overlooking to adjacent houses:

The appearance and scale of the proposed building is not known
at this stage and the position of windows and exact separation
distances having regard for privacy will be scrutinised at any
reserved matters stage. The submitted layout plan shows that the
development is capable of delivering a scheme which would not
give rise to unacceptable loss of privacy by overlooking. Where
there are close relationships with existing properties, existing and
proposed landscaping will provide screening. The finished floor
levels of all plots relative to existing ground levels will be secured
by a condition to ensure that internal floor levels or on plot ground

Page 19 of 210



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

levels do not provide uninterrupted views into the private areas of
neighbouring properties.

Overbearing impacts:

The scale and exact position of the proposed dwellings is not
known at this stage and will be considered and scrutinised as part
of any subsequent reserved matters application in terms of scale
and appearance. However, the layout does not give rise to
concerns in terms of the likely position, distance and orientation of
any proposed dwellings in relation to existing neighbouring
properties. As such the plot layout and siting of the proposed units
is not considered to result in a significant overbearing relationship.

Light/Sunlight:

The proposed residential plots are situated north of the
immediately adjoining residential properties that front Chatteris
Road. Due to the position, orientation and distances proposed,
and having regard for the likely two storey scale of any proposed
development, it is not considered that the development would
result in unacceptable loss of light or direct sunlight to any existing
neighbouring properties.

Construction:

Local residents have raised concerns that the construction
process is likely to result in noise, vibration and dust adversely
affecting amenity over the construction period. It is acknowledged
that the construction is likely to result in temporary exposure to
adverse impacts. However, such impacts are unavoidable and can
concerns raised can only be given little weight in the determination
of the application. The Councils Environmental Health Officer has
recommended a Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMPT) be secured by way of a planning condition to control and
mitigate the impacts as far as practicable having regard for the
amenity and living conditions of existing nearby residents. The
CEMP shall also require details of the construction hours of
operation, construction traffic routing, deliveries etc.

Future Occupants:

With regard to overlooking impacts between units, back-to-back
distances are typically at least 21m. This back-to-back distance is
in accordance with the recommendations contained within the
Design Guide and is considered acceptable given the density,
location of the site and the distances between existing
neighbouring dwellings.

With regards to the internal and external amenity space, the

proposed layout and density provides a good indication that each
plot will have an adequate level of outside space. Internal space

Page 20 of 210



7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

will be assessed against the national space standards as part of
considering the appearance and scale of any reserved matters
application.

The application site is in close proximity to Dews Coaches to the
east of the site boundary. Policy SM 5 acknowledges that this
adjacent use could give rise to impacts with regards and noise. In
relation to these matters, the application is supported by a noise
Assessment which has been considered by the Council’s
Environmental Health Officer. No objection is raised subject to the
consideration, approval and implementation of acoustic glazing
and ventilation requirements for some units which are in closest
proximity to the noise source. Such matters can be considered as
part of the scale and appearance of the house types which are to
be approved as part of any subsequent reserved matters
application.

Amenity Summary:

The NPPF within the core principles states that planning should
"create places with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users” and Policy LP 14 of the Local Plan to 2036 also seeks
to protect the amenity of future occupies and the amenities of
neighbouring users.

Taking the above into account, it is considered that subject to the
imposition of conditions, the proposed development is considered
to be acceptable in terms of the impacts upon residential amenity
and complies with the NPPF in this regard, policy LP14 of the
Local Plan to 2036.

Housing Mix:

The Cambridge sub-region Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(SHMA) 2013 provides guidance on the mix of housing required
for Huntingdonshire up to 2031. This gives broad ranges reflecting
the variety of properties within each bedroom category. This
indicates a requirement for the following mix: up to 4% 1-bedroom
homes, 16-42% 2-bedroom homes, 26-60% 3-bedroom homes
and up to 30% 4 or more-bedroom homes.

The Cambridgeshire and West Suffolk Housing Needs of Specific
Groups report was released in October 2021. This indicates a
requirement for the following mix: up to 10% 1-bedroom homes,
20-30% 2-bedroom homes, 40-50% 3-bedroom homes and 20-
30% 4 or more-bedroom homes.

It should be noted that the current application excludes
consideration of the appearance and scale of the residential units
and therefore it cannot be assessed against the housing mix
requirements of Policy LP25 of the Local Plan and any supporting
or subsequent evidence of housing need. It is recommended that
the exact mix of the open market housing be secured by way of a
planning condition on any outline planning permission. The

Page 21 of 210



7.38

7.39

7.40

housing mix submitted as part of the Reserved Matters application
will need to have regard for Policy LP25 and the supporting
evidence to ensure that mix submitted reflects both the character
of the area and the housing needs of local residents.

With regard to the development meeting the requirements of
Policy LP 25 criteria f to h (meeting M4 (2) & M4 (3) building
requirements, it is considered that all the dwellings are able to
meet the requirements of M4(2). Conditions will be attached
securing these Building Regulation requirements.

Subject to conditions and the submission of the reserved matters
application (appearance and scale), the current proposals are
considered to be in compliance with Policy LP25 of
Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 and the proposal is capable
of providing a good mix of sizes and types of dwellings on the site.

The requirements within policy LP12 of Huntingdonshire’s Local
Plan to 2036 relating to sustainable design and construction
methods are applicable to all new dwellings. This states that all
dwellings should meet Building Regulation requirement Approved
Document G for water efficiency. It is considered that the dwellings
are capable of meeting this requirement, achieving a water
efficiency of 125L per day per person. A condition will be attached
to ensure that the dwellings are built in compliance.

SUSTAINABILITY, ACCESS AND TRANSPORT:

7.41

7.42

The NPPF requires all developments that generate significant
amounts of movement to be supported by a Travel Plan and
Transport Assessment (TA) / Transport Statement (TS)(paragraph
113). National and local planning policy relating to transport and
access promotes sustainable development which should give
priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, have access to high
quality public transport, create safe and secure layouts and
minimising journey times.

Paragraph 110 of the NPPF states that in assessing sites which
may be allocated for development decision should ensure that
appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes
can be — or have been — taken up, given the type of development
and its location; that safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all users; the design of streets, parking areas, other
transport elements and the content of associated standards
reflects current national guidance, including the National Design
Guide and the National Model Design Code and that any
significant impacts from the development on the transport network
(in terms of capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can
be cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree. It goes on
to state that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on

Page 22 of 210



7.43

7.44

highway safety or the residual cumulative impacts of development
on the road network would be severe.

Somersham is defined as Key Service centre within the Local Plan
and can therefore meet many of the day to day needs of residents.
Leisure, employment and local facilities including retail, and
schools are located within the village and accessible to the site by
walking and cycling.

The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment (TA)
by ADC Infrastructure which has been assessed by the County
Council, as Local Highway Authority (LHA). The TA considers the
expected impacts of the development and an overview of the likely
transport-related interventions for a fully built out development.
The Local Highway Authority concludes;

e A range of facilities and amenities in Somersham are
situated within acceptable walking and cycling distance
from the site. The TA Highlights that there is a footway
along the northern side of Chatteris Road providing
pedestrian connectivity to the services and amenities within
the village. A site visit confirms this footway terminates at
the nature reserve access along Station approach for circa
73m before it commences again connecting to the existing
network in Somersham. Given the nature of this stretch of
road. The Highway Authority do not consider that a footway
here would be suitable and that the existing quiet and wide
carriageway can safely accommodate pedestrians where
there is no footway. Overall, in respect of walking and
cycling, it is considered that the development site is
connected to the village.

¢ In addition to the existing cycle and pedestrian connectivity,
a new connection for non-motorised users will be provided
between the development and the neighbouring local
nature reserve to the west of the site. Such provision would
accord with SM 5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan and
will be secured by way of a planning condition. 2m wide
footways will also be provided on both sides of the main site
access junction and will link with the existing footway
network.

e |t is acknowledged that the frequency of local public
transport services in Somersham is low.

e It is noted that on site car and cycle parking provision will
be provided in line with CCC parking standards.

e In terms of trip generation, it is expected that the
development will generate 83 two-way vehicle trips in the
AM peak and 82 two-way vehicle trips in the PM peak. The
development is anticipated to generate 4 pedestrian trips,
2 cycle trips, and 1 public transport trip in peak periods. The
trip distribution is agreed by the LHA.

Page 23 of 210



7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

e Having regard for existing committed development, the
LHA are satisfied with the rationale submitted and notes
that there is no committed development in the site vicinity.

e It is agreed that all junctions modelled within the TA are
anticipated to operate within capacity for all future year
scenarios.

e The Local Highway Authority seeks mitigation in the form of
securing the additional footpath link and the provision of
Welcome Travel Packs to encourage the use sustainable
travel from the site.

Trip Generation and Access Points:

As noted, the single point of vehicular access to the site will utilise
the existing southern access

Overall, the LHA accept the findings and conclusions of the
amended TA in terms of network peaks, accident data, trip
generations and junction capacity assessments. It is considered
that the proposed development will not result in a material impact
at the junctions assessed and any increase in traffic is unlikely to
be discernible from daily fluctuations on the network and it is
therefore concluded that the development impact is not severe.
The LHA have confirmed that there are no objections to the
proposals subject to a mitigation package. These details can be
secured within the Section 106 Agreement.

Internal Layout, Car and Cycle Parking:

Roads within the site have been designed as a series of shared
surface streets with main carriageway widths between 4.8m and
6m. The road network has been designed to ensure that there are
different surface treatments, localised road narrowing and tree
planting/soft landscaping limiting forward visibility. These features
help ensure low traffic speeds throughout the site and pedestrian
priority.

It is proposed to offer these roads up for adoption, This is
considered acceptable in principle and full details of construction,
management and maintenance prior to adoption by the County
Council will be secured by condition.

Car Parking - There are no specific parking policy standards within
local policy. Local Plan policy LP17 requires appropriate space
within the site for vehicular movements, facilitates accessibility for
service and emergency vehicles and incorporates adequate
parking for vehicles and cycles. The policy also requires clear
justification for the level of vehicle and cycle parking proposed
having regard to the following factors:

e Highway safety to and from the site
e Servicing requirements

Page 24 of 210



7.50

7.51

7.52

7.53

7.54

e Accessibility of the development to a wide range of services
and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling

e Needs of potential occupiers

e Amenity of existing and future residents

e Opportunities for shared provision

Car Parking - The housing mix (scale and appearance) is not
known at this stage. The size of the dwellings will dictate the
quantum of on-plot parking provision which will in turn inform the
on-plot layout. These matters will be considered and scrutinised at
the reserved matters stage, but the indicative layout suggests that
sufficient parking can be provided within the site to satisfy policy
LP17 of the Local Plan.

Cycle Parking — The housing mix (scale and appearance) is not
known at this stage. In accordance with Policy LP17 each property
will need to be provided with cycle parking, with a provision of 1
space per bedroom. This provision will be required by condition
with details to be considered and approved as part of any
subsequent reserved matters application. This approach is
supported. The provision of cycle parking is considered
acceptable, and a condition can ensure that the cycle parking is
provided prior to occupation of each unit.

These mitigation and enhancement measures are considered
acceptable and should be secured by conditions and through a
S106 Agreement where appropriate.

Highways Summary

Taking all the above into account, it is considered that the
proposed means of accessing and circulating this site is
acceptable and that the proposal complies with Policies SM 5,
LP16 and LP17 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036.

It is considered that the access details proposed are acceptable
for the scale of development sought and opportunities to promote
sustainable transport modes can be achieved. Therefore, it is
Officer opinion that the proposed development of this sustainable
site can be supported in highway terms subject to a number of
conditions and obligations.

HERITAGE ASSETS:

7.95

The NPPF recognises the importance of preserving heritage
assets and supports sustainable development. Paragraph 8 of the
NPPF confirms the three strands of sustainability. In relation to
environmental matters this confirms that this includes protecting
our natural, built and historic environment. Section 16 of the NPPF
(paragraphs 189 to 208) sets out principles and policies for
conserving and enhancing the historic environment. Paragraph

Page 25 of 210



7.56

7.57

7.58

199 also advises that great weight should be given to the asset's
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be. Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (LBCA) states that special regard
shall be paid to the desirability of preserving listed structures or
their settings or any features of special architectural or historic
interest which they may possess. Section 72(1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
special attention to be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas.

The site is not within the Somersham Conservation Area nor is it
considered to be within the setting of the Conservation Area given
the distance and intervening scale and forms of development. The
site does not fall within the setting of any listed buildings or other
heritage assets.

Archaeology:

With regards to archaeology, Cambridgeshire County Council has
advised that preliminary archaeological fieldwork for the site has
been completed. Roman period archaeological evidence was
present within the site, seeming to be confined to the northern third
of the site - mostly in the proposed Phase 3 area. A small area of
interest relating to Late Medieval or slightly later brick making was
found in the north-eastern corner of Phase 2 and this, too, will
require excavation and interpretation, especially since The
Bishop’s Palace and other notable buildings on the village were
substantially made of brick, with imported stone quoins or facades
also wused, particularly in the Post-Medieval period. It is
recommended that an archaeological investigation programme is
conducted in advance of construction in order that the significant
archaeological evidence that is contemporary with the known,
published, Roman inland port excavated at Colne Fen Quarry to
the east and surrounding supply farms, e.g., that excavated and
published at Knobbs Farm Quarry to the north-east can be
preserved by record and the construction impacts mitigated by this
measure.

Taking all the above into account, it is considered that subject to
the imposition of a condition with regards to archaeology, the
proposed development is acceptable with regard to the NPPF,
Policy LP34 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036.

BIODIVERSITY:

7.99

Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that 'the planning system
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by:

*protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity
or geological value and soils;

Page 26 of 210



7.60

7.61

7.62

*recognising the wider benefits of ecosystem services;
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity.'

Policy LP30 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 aims to
conserve and enhance biodiversity and advises that opportunities
should be taken to achieve beneficial measures within the design
and layout of development and that existing features of
biodiversity value should be maintained and enhanced. Policy
LP30 also notes that a proposal will ensure no net loss in
biodiversity and provide a net gain where possible and that large
scale development proposals should provide an audit of losses
and gains in biodiversity.

The site itself is not subject to any statutory or non-statutory nature
conservation designations. There are three statutorily designated
sites in proximity to the site, the closest one being the Ouse
Washes approximately 3.5km south-west of the site.

The application is supported by a site-specific Ecological
Appraisal dated December 2021 which concludes the following:

. The application site is considered to be of low ecological
value, comprising a large species poor semi-improved
grassland, bound by dry ditches supporting hedgerows and
tree lines.

. Reptiles and dormice are absent from the site, and the
breeding bird survey recorded common and widespread
species. A Barn Owl was seen utilising one of the trees
within the site, which it was seen emerging during dusk
hours, there was no evidence recorded of breeding at the
time.

. Twelve species/species groups were recorded utilising the
site to some degree, the majority of these were all common
species, with common pipistrelle the most recorded
species. Barbastelle Barbastella barbastellus, which are
Annex |l species, were recorded lower numbers.

. No suitable breeding habitat for GCN is present on site. Low
numbers of GCN in ponds P5 and P6, with eDNA confirming
present in pond P2. The presence of this species is
considered a constraint to the development proposals and
will require appropriate mitigation measures which will
require site specific or district licensing.

o Current development proposals will provide additional
native woody species planting to reinforce the existing
hedgerows and treelines as important wildlife corridors.
Habitat creation of grassland and a SUDS, will use diverse
seed native seed mixes, and will be managed to provide a
mosaic of habitats offering good invertebrate habitats as an

Page 27 of 210



important foraging resource for a variety of wildlife. Further
planting of trees, shrubs and hedgerows within the urban
infrastructure will offer important pollinator B-lines
throughout the development proposals.

Habitats that will be lost to the proposed development
include the species poor semi-improved grassland habitat
that comprises the majority of the habitat on the application
site. Hedgerow H1 on the southernmost boundary, will be
lost in their entirety to facilitate access onto the site for
pedestrian footpaths and roads.

The retention and enhancement of the maijority of features
present within the site that are suitable for breeding birds,
particularly the hedgerows, treelines and woodland edges
on the eastern and western boundaries, will ensure
continued use of the site by local bird populations and
compensate for the loss of some existing hedgerows.

7.63 The submitted appraisal makes various recommendations for
biodiversity enhancements and mitigation of which full details can
be secured by way of a condition that requires the submission and
approval of a biodiversity enhancement plan/strategy. The
recommendations include the following measures:

7.64

A mixture of nest box types can be sited within retained
habitats, or designed directly into the built environment
Removal of any vegetation suitable to support nesting birds
will take place outside of the bird breeding season

The retained hedgerows and other woody nesting habitat
should be buffered and protected with Heras fencing during
construction, to protect it from accidental damage or
disturbance.

Additional survey work is undertaken prior to development
to determine the presence of Barn Owls.

Installation of a barn owl box on a mature tree to the
northwest corner of the site at least 30 days prior to
construction.

The planting of species rich and tussock grassland being
provided around the peripheries of the site, providing
limited foraging ground for Barn Owils.

In addition, the introduction of new native planting across
the site and the creation of wetland habitat with SUDs
features will increase the biodiversity of the site.

The proposals are also supported by a Biodiversity Net Gain
metric, which demonstrates that the proposals will deliver 1.4
hedgerow units (52.76% increase) and 0.32 river units (506.4%
increase). However, the proposal will result in the loss of 2.34

Page 28 of 210



7.65

7.66

7.67

habitat units (13.44% decrease). The Wildlife Trust has however
calculated the amount to be closer to 3.8 habitat units.

The proposal therefore, when considered overall will result in a
small biodiversity loss. The applicant therefore has agreed to
contribute towards biodiversity enhancements off site. The exact
value of the contribution is not yet known or agreed and delegated
authority is requested to agree the contribution amount and
location of the spend prior to any permission being granted.
However, the Wildlife Trust has indicated that the amount is
expected to be between £78,000.00 and £98,000.00 (based on
DEFRA'’s latest guidance of between £20,000 and £25,000 per
unit) with a number of sites in the locality where the contribution
could be spent. The Cambridgeshire Wildlife Trust consulted as
part of the application has agreed to the contribution and will
support the applicant in delivery of a scheme off-site that will
ensure, overall, that there is not a biodiversity loss.

The proposals therefore adequately demonstrate the
redevelopment of the application site and an associated off-site
contribution will result in no net loss of biodiversity, in compliance
with both the NPPF and Local Plan policy LP30.

Subject to necessary conditions and off-site contribution, the
proposal is considered to comply with the NPPF and policy LP30
of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036.

FLOODING, DRAINAGE, GROUND CONDITIONS, CONTAMINATION
and HEALTH/ SAFETY:

7.68

7.69

7.70

Flooding and Drainage

The overall approach to flooding is given in paragraphs 152-173
of the NPPF and these paragraphs set out a sequential, risk-based
approach to the location of development. This approach is
intended to ensure that areas at little or no risk of flooding are
developed in preference to areas at higher risk. It involves
applying a Sequential Test to steer development away from
medium and high flood risk areas (FZ2 and FZ3 land respectively),
to land with a low probability of flooding (FZ1).

The application site falls within FZ1 as designated within the
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 2017, which represents the
lowest flood risk of flooding from rivers and sea. Notwithstanding
this, given the scale of development proposed, the application is
supported by a site-specific Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage
Strategy (FRA).

CCC as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) commented on the
application and raised initial concerns as the application did not
contain evidence from the Internal Drainage Board that an in-

Page 29 of 210



7.71

7.72

7.73

7.74

7.75

principle agreement had been reached to discharge into an
existing watercourse. Concern was also raised that permeable
paving was excluded from the surface water drainage proposals.

Following receipt of additional and updated details the LLFA have
confirmed that they have no objections to the development, noting
that surface water from the proposed development can be
managed through the use of online attenuation pond and swale to
hold and treat surface water before discharging to the watercourse
to the east of the site at a rate of 3.1l/s. Offline attenuation is also
proposed by means of geocelullar attenuation creates. The LLFA
has agreed that details of interception source control will be
expected at the reserved matters stage.

A number of conditions have been requested which include
securing a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site;
details for the long term maintenance arrangements for the
surface water drainage system; details of measures indicating
how additional surface water run-off from the site will be avoided
during the construction works; and upon completion of the surface
water drainage system (and prior to their adoption by a statutory
undertaker or management company) a survey and report to
confirm that the surface water drainage system has been
constructed in accordance with the approved details should be
submitted. These conditions are considered acceptable and meet
the statutory tests.

Anglian Water (AW) has commented on the application raising no
objections to the scheme. AW advises that foul drainage from this
development is in the catchment of Somersham Water Recycling
Centre and there is available capacity for wastewater treatment of
flows from this site. Regarding surface water disposal, it is
confirmed that SuDS would be the preferred method with
connection to the sewer as the last option and a condition is
recommended to secure further details. The condition
recommended by the LLFA to secure details of the surface water
drainage scheme will ensure that clarity with regards to proposed
surface water drainage arrangements is provided and that
adequate provision is made for the drainage of surface water.

It is therefore considered that subject to conditions, the
development can be made acceptable in flood risk terms, in
accordance with the NPPF and Policy LP5, LP6 and LP15 of
Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036.

Ground Contamination

The Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the submitted
application and confirms that the site lies adjacent to Dews
Coaches which could have released various contaminants in the

Page 30 of 210



7.76

past that may have migrated on to the application site, for
example fuels, oils, anti-freeze, etc, which could have caused
pollution to the groundwater and may allow harmful vapour
emissions to enter and accumulate in any future development. It
is recommended that a land contamination risk assessment (and
if necessary a remediation strategy) should be secured by
condition and submitted for approval by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of development. Where it is
necessary to carry out land contamination remediation work, a
remediation and verification report should also be submitted to
and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of
the site.

Subject to a condition that requires such remediation and
verification, the application would accord with Policy LP37 of the
Local Plan (2019) which requires that that where ground
contamination is a risk due to previous land uses, this needs to
be investigated and remediated where necessary. The proposal
would also therefore comply with Paragraph 183 of the NPPF
(2021).

OTHER MATTERS:

777

Third Party Comments -
The following require clarification:

e Construction Impacts - A Construction Environmental
Management Plan will be secured by condition to ensure
satisfactory details of the construction process are provided to
mitigate the impacts upon neighbours.

e Drainage — The Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) has
assessed the proposals and is satisfied that the site can be
adequately drained without increasing flood risk elsewhere.
The drainage engineer from the LLFA met with a local resident
from the area with concerns regarding the local ditch network
and proposals for the discharge of water from the site.
Following this inspection, it was confirmed that the residents’
concerns are substantiated and it has been confirmed that
work is required to the ditch as a discharge location in order to
be suitable to handle the flows of water proposed as part for
the drainage strategy. A condition is recommended that a full
survey of the downstream ditch network must be undertaken,
submitted and approved prior to the commencement of
development, with any necessary remediation works
undertaken before discharge of surface water to the ditch.

INFRASTRUCTURE REQUIREMENTS AND PLANNING
OBLIGATIONS:

7.78 Statutory tests set out in the Community Infrastructure

Regulations 2010 (Regulation 122) require that S.106 planning

Page 31 of 210



7.79

7.80

7.81

7.82

7.83

7.84

obligations must be necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the development
and fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the
development. S.106 obligations are intended to make
development acceptable which would otherwise be unacceptable
in planning terms.

Without prejudice to the eventual determination of the planning
application, negotiations have been held with the applicants in
order to determine the extent of the obligations required to make
the development acceptable. These negotiations have been held
in line with the advice within the Regulations and the outcome is
summarised below. Other relevant matters will be addressed via
specific planning conditions.

The Developer Contributions SPD sets out that contributions
cannot be sought for proposals under 200 units and instead all
contributions fall under CIL.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):

The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the
Council's adopted charging schedule; CIL payments could cover
infrastructure relating to footpath and access, health, community
facilities, libraries and lifelong learning, and education.

Affordable Housing:

The site is over 0.5 hectares in size and Local Plan 2036 policy
LP24 seek to achieve a target of 40% affordable housing on sites
of this size; based on 131 open market units this would equate to
a total of 52 affordable units. An affordable housing requirement
will not be placed on the self-build plot in the north eastern corner
of the site providing this plot is secured as a separate self-build
plot via a S106 agreement. These policies do acknowledge that,
in determining the amount and mix of affordable housing to be
delivered, site specific considerations and other material
considerations will be taken into account.

The applicant has agreed to provide affordable housing on site
and the location and distribution will be agreed as part of any
subsequent reserved matters application with the Council’s
Affordable Housing Officer. The exact mix of units in terms of
tenure, scale and appearance will be the subject of a planning
obligations contained within a Section 106 agreement and will be
reflected within the subsequent reserved matters submission.

This approach is acceptable to Officers and subject to final
wording within the S106 Agreement, the scheme is supported with
provision of on-site affordable housing in accordance with Policy
LP24.

Green Space:

Page 32 of 210



7.85

7.86

7.87

7.88

7.89

7.90

In accordance with the Developer Contributions SPD (2011) (Part
B), this development should provide 0.849Ha of informal green
space on-site and due to the scale of the development formal
green space can be negotiated.

The low density of development has resulted in an overprovision
of green space on the site. The scheme provides 8,186 sgm of
open space — this is mainly concentrated within the east and west
linear green spaces and the area surrounding the SUDS pond and
is well in excess of the 6,249sqm area required by the HDC
Developer Contributions SPD.

The improvements to pedestrian connectivity to existing adjacent
public open space will also increase access for future residents.

HDC Operations Officers have acknowledged that there is not a
shortfall of open space and play provision within Somersham but
given the detachment of the development from the settlement, on
site open space should be provided and be concentrated in central
and accessible parts of the site. The scheme has been amended
to reflect consultation responses. In accordance with the
Developer Contributions SPD as the scheme is under 200
dwellings there is not a requirement to provide any play equipment
on site, there is however space to provide play equipment in future
should the need arise.

The Developer Contributions SPD details a cascade mechanism
for future management and maintenance of green space with the
land first offered to the Town/Parish Council for adoption, then to
the District Council and then taken on by a Management
Company. The usual cascade mechanism in the SPD is to be
included in the Section 106 in order to secure the long-term
management and maintenance of the areas of shared open space.
A Landscape Maintenance contribution will be secured through
the S106 Agreement in the event that the open space is to be
transferred to the Town or District Council.

HDC Active Lifestyles Officer has requested a S106 contribution
of £81,998 as an offsite contribution towards formal open space
sports facilities. It is accepted that existing playing pitches are well
used and the demands placed on them will increase as a result of
the increased population arising from this development.
Therefore, opportunities to enhance this existing provision to
increase capacity for the additional population are currently being
assessed. A fully detailed and costed project has not been
confirmed at this stage to establish compliance with the
requirements of the CIL Regulations. However, Officers will
continue to assess the potential contribution and seek to secure
this, subject to CIL compliance. Therefore, delegated authority is
requested to finalise this aspect. A further update will be provided
prior to or at the Development Management Committee.

Page 33 of 210



7.91

7.92

7.93

7.94

7.95

7.96

Biodiversity Net Gain

Cambridgeshire Wildlife Trust has requested a sum of between
£78,000.00. and £98,000.00 with a number of sites in the locality
where the contribution could be spent. It is requested that the final
contribution amount and spend of that contribution be agreed with
the applicant using delegated authority prior to the determination
of the application.

Highways and Access:

Policies LP16 and LP17 of the Local Plan are relevant. Transport
and highways are included within Part C the Developer
Contributions SPD as a negotiated requirement, which is
dependent on the development and its impact on the local area.

The County Council as Local Highways Authority have requested
the following transport mitigation which, as referred to in the
Access section of this report, are considered necessary to ensure
the development is acceptable in highway terms:

¢ Residential welcome packs with free bus pass travel for
residents.

e Provision of an un-motorised link between the western
site boundary and the adjacent wildlife site.

The developer will be responsible for direct delivery of the junction
layout for accesses, welcome packs and the pedestrian link with
the adjacent wildlife site. Conditions will be used to ensure this
infrastructure and mitigation is provided within appropriate
timescales.

Health:

Policy LP4 of the Local Plan to 2036 relates to provision for
infrastructure needs and Part D of the SPD refers to health service
facilities. Within paragraph D.10 the SPD states that the Council
will negotiate with the prospective developers with a view to
securing the necessary health service facility needs for the
development. However, the SPD sets out how this will be
assessed, noting that contributions will only be sought for
proposals over 200 dwellings.

It is Officer opinion that the proposal, in line with the Developer
Contributions SPD, is acceptable without securing health
contributions and it is noted that the NHS can apply for CIL funding
should a project be identified in the future.

Education and Schools:

Page 34 of 210



7.97

7.98

7.99

7.100

7.101

7.102

7.103

In accordance with the Developer Contributions SPD,
contributions for education and lifelong learning cannot be sought
for proposals under 200 units and instead all contributions fall
under CIL.

Contributions relating to education and lifelong learning cannot
therefore be secured as this would be contrary to the SPD and
Local Plan Policy LP4.

Residential Wheeled Bins:

Policy LP4 of the Local Plan to 2036 relates to provision for
infrastructure needs, including waste recycling facilities and Part
H of the SPD refers to Residential Wheeled Bins.

Each dwelling will require the provision of one black, blue and
green-wheeled bin. The current cost of such provision is £150 per
dwelling.

Total S106 residential wheeled bins contribution = £19,800.00

This contribution is considered to meet the tests and will be
secured through the S106 Agreement.

S106 Total Costs:

The total costs to be secured through S106, excluding the
potential green space maintenance costs which are unknown at
this time (but would be secured in accordance with the Developer
Contributions SPD) are up to £199,798.00. As referred to above,
subject to the final agreement on amount and spend, these costs
are all considered to meet the statutory tests and are required to
mitigate the impacts of this development.

PLANNING BALANCE & CONCLUSION:

7.104

7.105

7.106

The presumption in favour of sustainable development requires
proposals to achieve economic, social and environmental gains;
as such a balancing exercise has to be undertaken to weigh the
benefits of the scheme against its disadvantages.

In terms of the economic dimension of sustainable development,
the proposal would contribute towards economic growth, including
job creation - during the construction phase and through the
additional population assisting the local economy through
spending on local services/ facilities.

Regarding the social dimension, the site appears to have no
significant constraints and is deliverable. It would also increase the
supply of market and affordable housing and there would be a net
benefit in social terms.

Page 35 of 210



7.107

7.108

7.109

In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable
development, the proposal details a high-quality scheme which
will secure planting and habitat enhancement and deliver a
biodiversity net gain overall. It is therefore considered that there
will be a net benefit in environmental terms. The application site
constitutes a sustainable location for the scale of development
proposed in respect of access to local employment opportunities,
services and facilities and this is a further factor in support of the
proposal.

Having fully assessed all three dimensions of sustainable
development; economic, social and environmental within this
report it is concluded that the development of this site will:
- provide a supply of market and affordable housing to meet
current and future generations;
- maximise opportunities for use of public transport, walking and
cycling;
- minimise pollution;
- manage flood risk and drainage effectively;
- have less than substantial harm on designated heritage
assets;
- have no significant adverse impacts on features of landscape
or ecological value;
- provide appropriate infrastructure to meet the needs
generated by the development.

When considered in the round, the proposal would positively
contribute to the environmental, economic and social dimensions
of sustainability and therefore it is recommended that permission
should be granted.

Page 36 of 210



RECOMMENDATION - Delegate powers to Officers
to finalise terms of the S106 agreement in relation to off-site
formal sports contribution and off-site biodiversity
contribution and, to

APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106
obligation, to include provision of informal green space,
wheeled bins, and on-site affordable housing (and formal
sports and biodiversity contribution, subject to CIL
compliance), and subject to conditions to include those listed
below.

OR

REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above
has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to
agree to an extended period for determination, or on the
grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the
obligation necessary to make the development acceptable.

CONDITIONS:

Approved plans

Submission of reserved matters (scale and appearance)

Finished floor levels

Materials

Boundary treatments

Phasing plan

Arboricultural Method Statement

Tree Protection Plan

Management Plan for existing retained Willow Tree

Hard and soft landscaping

Cycle parking provided prior to occupation and retained

thereafter

Lighting scheme

o Details of biodiversity enhancement measures, in line
with the Ecological Appraisal

o Surface water drainage details and management /
maintenance details

o Surface water run-off measures during construction

Surface water drainage system construction/ completion

report

Survey/remediation of downstream ditch network

Electric vehicle charging details

On-site parking / servicing prior to occupation

Archaeological investigation

Construction Environment Management Plan (to include

details of dust mitigation, wheel wash facilities,

Page 37 of 210



temporary parking/ turning/ unloading arrangements
during construction, routes for traffic associated with
construction, metalled routes and construction hours)

o Contamination - Remediation Strategy adherence and
any unexpected contamination condition

° Open space equipment, including benches and bins.

° Compliance with the Noise Report recommendations

o Provision and implementation of a Residential Welcome
Pack for sustainable transport

o Provision of secondary pedestrian access link

° Road adoption details, construction specification, and
maintenance and management arrangements

o Junction construction prior to occupation

Temporary facilities clear of the public highway during

construction

Road drainage measures

Visibility splays

M4(3) Building Regulations compliance

Approved Document G Building Regulations compliance

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an
audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Lewis Marshall, Senior Development

Management Officer lewis.marshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 38 of 210


mailto:lewis.marshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Sent: 30 September 2019 22:09
To: DevelopmentControl
Subject: Comments for Planning Application 19/01790/0UT

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:08 PM on 30 Sep 2019 from Mrs Penelope Bryant.

Application Summary

Address: Land North Of 16 The Bank Somersham
Application for outline planning permission for up to 145
Proposal: dwellings and associated access, all other matters

reserved on land North of the Bank.
Case Officer: Will Tysterman
Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Penelope Bryant
Email: clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk

The Norwood Building, Parkhall Road, Somersham PE28
Address: 3HE

Comments Details

Commenter Town or Parish Council

Type:

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Reasons for

comment:

Comments: Councillors have object to the increase of dwellings in

this application. 145 dwellings is excessive and
councillors wish the nhumber of dwellings to remain at
120 as per the Local Plan to 2036.

Page 3§ of 210



Sheila Brown

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
Sent: 15 March 2022 10:41

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 19/01790/0UT

Comments summary

Dear Sir/Madam,

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 15/03/2022 10:40 AM from Mrs Penelope Bryant.

Application Summary
Address: Land North Of 16 The Bank Somersham

Application for outline planning permission for a phased development of up to 145 dwellings
Proposal: and associated access, approval sought for access, layout and landscaping with scale and
appearance reserved, on land North of the Bank.

Case Officer: Shaun Robson

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name:
Email:

Address:

Comments Details
Commenter Type:
Stance:

Reasons for
comment:

Comments:

Kind regards

Mrs Penelope Bryant
clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk

The Norwood Building, Parkhall Road, Somersham PE28 3HE

Town or Parish Council

Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

At their meeting last evening Councillors accepted the Noise and Lighting Statement.

Councillors also wish to reiterate their view the site development proposal is too dense
and should only comprise of 120 houses.

Page 40 of 210



Sheila Brown

From: Penny Bryant <clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 26 May 2022 10:04

To: Tim Hartley

Cc: 'Irene Healis'; Lewis Marshall; Carry Murphy; Gavin Taylor
Subject: RE: 19/01790/0UT - The Bank Somersham

Morning Tim

Apologies for the delay.

Just to clarify, the council no longer has an objection to the plan for 132 (120 plus 10%) dwellings on the site.

Penny Bryant BA Hons. FSLCC

Parish Clerk for Somersham Parish Council

The Norwood Building, Parkhall Road, Somersham, Cambridgeshire PE28 3HE, 01487 841359
www.somersham-pc.gov.uk

Privacy notice: Email addresses are not shared with 3rd parties and are used only to communicate with the intended
recipient.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to
whom they are addressed. If you have received the email in error please notify the sender and delete the email and
any attachments. Any views expressed are the author's own and do not necessarily reflect the views of Somersham
Parish Council.

From: Tim Hartley <>

Sent: 20 May 2022 11:33

To: Penny Bryant <clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>

Cc: 'Irene Healis' <deputy.clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>; Lewis Marshall <Lewis.Marshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>;
Carry Murphy <Carry.Murphy@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>; Gavin Taylor <Gavin.Taylor@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: 19/01790/0UT - The Bank Somersham

Hi Penny

Many thanks for your email. Can you clarify though whether the formal stance of the Parish Council, now that the
application has been reduced to up to 132 dwellings, remains an objection to it or not please?

My contract is coming to an end and | leave the Council on Thursday next week. Lewis is the case officer and | have
copied Carry, the new team leader for the south, and Gavin, team leader for the north of the district, in on this email

Many thanks
Tim

Tim Hartley

Page 411 of 210



Development Management Team Leader (South)
Development Services
Tel: 07514 621803

From: Penny Bryant <clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>
Sent: 20 May 2022 10:15

To: Tim Hartley <Tim.Hartley@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Cc: 'Irene Healis' <deputy.clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: 19/01790/0UT - The Bank Somersham

Dear Tim

Councillors discussed your request at their meeting on 18" May 2022 and were agreed it could be amended to
reflect 132 dwellings.

Kind regards

Penny

From: "Tim Hartley" <Tim.Hartley@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Sent: Thursday, 21 April, 2022 15:13

To: "clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk" <clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: 19/01790/OUT - The Bank Somersham

Hi Penny

Further to my email below it has been drawn to my attention that the description of the application
had not been formally changed to align with the reduction in numbers that is now shown on the
revised layout

The formal description of the application is Application for outline planning permission for a
phased development of up to 132 dwellings and associated access, approval sought for access,
layout and landscaping with scale and appearance reserved, on land North of The Bank.

| have therefore requested a further formal 14 day consultation to the Parish Council so that you
can formally reassess whether you continue to object or whether the reduction in numbers means
that the Parish Council is able to support the application

Would it be possible to consider this at your meeting on 27 April?

Many thanks

Tim

Tim Hartley

Development Management Team Leader (South)

Development Services
Tel: 07514 621803

Page 422 of 210



From: Tim Hartley

Sent: 21 April 2022 13:34

To: clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk

Subject: 19/01790/OUT - The Bank Somersham

Hi Penelope
Could you clarify the Parish Council’s recommendation please

Your comments to us state that you now support the application but the minutes state that you are
objecting

Many thanks
Tim

Tim Hartley

Development Management Team Leader (South)
Development Services

Tel: 07514 621803

Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House St Marys Street Huntingdon PE29 3TN

Any comments represent the informal opinion of an officer of Huntingdonshire District Council. Any comments made are
without prejudice to any eventual determination through the planning process

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 43 of 210



Development Management Committee
Application Ref:19/01790/0UT

®

Scale = 1:2,500

Date Created: 29/06/2022

Location: Somersham

Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT

o 0N ETL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Dsmantieq ]

Nature Reserve

oL

Pond

D
=N

g
AN
s

Hale Fields

Coliefields

-

4

Ie

o
\\Q
W
N

AN

Key
7/, Scheduled Ancient Monuments
[ Listed Buildings

Conservation Area

The Site

Track

Sewage
Pumping Station

A2

N0

LOVN




W

Somersham Local Nature Reserve

Om

25m

50m

75m

100m

150m

e EE

SCALE BAR

Page 45 of 210

Fishing Platiorm

Thamikll Farmm

A

Red line updated to inchede site occess junction.

REVISION | DATE

DESCRIPTION DRAWN

ALLISON HOMES

LARKFLEET HOUSE
SOUTHFIELDS BUSINESS PARK
BOURNE

LINCOLNSHIRE

ALLISON |==

HOMES

TEL: 01778 371550

FROJSECT

THE BANK,
SOMERSHAM

DRAWING TITLE
LOCATION PLAN
SCALE DATE DRAWN APPROVED
1:2500 @ A3 | 09.04.2019 DAW
DRAWING NO, REVISION

Lo=af

LP/O1

A




soell

176

(|
o
T8 A\
1)
4
3
‘,‘(11
§
{

House

=
S
e i
g
=
— —
=
o
i
4
.
J
i
\
|
.
1
|
¥
[
A
oy
5 T = =
!

i
\ 3 P!
- e L
?_,; .fﬁfﬂ ;
. ’_,.:,-.-'
P . -~ = <
e ZORI PP
= 3 -

.
o
e m—
e ——

|
i J
e
] L
— P
X :
1
i
- |
L
1
|
S
1
|
i
|
i
” | ‘
5 0
W X d
g L
- - - B
= — -
s
A 0
— - =)
|
u
b
i
\
\
I
|
1
|
J
i
|
'TI'I
I
i
|
||
|
i
N
I
|
i
W
| Track
d -___.-_____.-l-o-_
== .___...-—'—"_"_-_--_.--—
i
f::j
1 0
| ":1
i

Page 46 of 210

ALLISON ==
H OM Es TEL: 01778 391550
" THE BANK
SOMERSHAM
COLOUR SITE PLAN 2

| L—/CSP/02 .

REVEION




LEGEND:
S

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 2.023 acres

SUDS OVERSPILL 0.102 acres

T SUDS 0.495 acres
N> e ° oy
o P TR
~ ' o 2 AJV”"\'MMVMV/ A | %
. ISV o 2 prnnt )
5] O © o
(T o
0 Y \\114\ \1sts \\ LA
o \\ \114\\ \\ g S 116 /
\]28\128\ \ N2 ——=
VoV = === R
- L g0 1 e -3
| | Lo——=F-~ R
11271127 1 A 3 N7
\ /\ B ‘ [
\
\ ' 117
A >
127 Wy == °
~ A \ \ /
AR \ Vs 118 ="
1 114 \ R
128 ====7 ) .
S AEAL TR
‘ ~ il
| ~
125 \ 121 N L4
123 122 i 120 . .
—— ST e Y v
12 =T yolwl¥ y 1122121
//12/4 b \\]23\\ \ \%/%\\\f‘% R
- \ ! oo 11001201
A 199" 121} S
124 \123\ | l\\ S A
\ [
e L/J\
| I
. TT5 R o
| \ T K L9 ::.]OO". o1 102|
= \| / \ —~ |
\ | h : \\\\ 68\\ | \ & \\\( 70\\ ! -—v‘--—t . L'*TT'
\ \ \\ 67 \\\\ 4‘\‘ \ \\//%\\ | \ 99 u:~:100~: ATVA ‘110111102.
l FTS. \F,—\\\k ! \ 69\\\%4\ 2 [ 1 -
| 167\ 68 \ L 70! :
AL NS R W g ° 100 ¢ 10T 1
lo— \ L R l
| | N \ \ 70 ° L
N 67 0\ V69 ° 28 -
| \ ) < “ \ 68 \ EE 98’7~
| \ © N 66 ~ 1 <=7 = 98 @
\ T S ),
‘ \ T 1 66| 71 o < _
| Lo———z = - N - = -——
- T 71 <
i s % ° Iy =t " 57 102
|| 7 65 == 72 s i _
N > ° < s 72 [p 7 5 -== B
\ _ - — - - -
‘ < > 73 96 ® 104
N & 73 . s <
| 64 96 o JEEE——
N \ 4 -——
b > FVEE - ® 74 ~2& .
° ° 74 ° - -
\J = 7 < 63 - - - R {
\ .63.-4 75 _.75.- 94 ® e - -
| | - ® 75 ——— R
| L P - - 74 - = —
\\ "; q ® 76 -7 T 93 ®
| | "65' L | 62 - - S S - -
1 R N T 2 0.472 acres
' - —
\ TT4 ) o - - == 7_ o =1 —— -
| > 78 - <
| =<2 A -
Nl . 1 < 6 ® 78 - g 0 ® = 2 Fl
T - - = s S S q -
l \ e £l — -- ~L 71 J\,,,9],,~ - - 1 - \'/\v |?l
== 71 - - - = 79 I - T 09 ol e
B < e [~ e % 0 ® LA Bt L
o = \\«"
“ ® 80 o oo 09 o |
/ = B
R - - 81 | o == - = ‘/@Igﬂj
: -——T= ° © 7 T
§ . ® 81 . § gy ® (@7! AN
T | < 59 o = =~ = e T g | g9 9 110 . === {‘@Pﬁt‘
R D L”” - - - . ]"lO \110 ! »%ﬁ f
| ® e Eara | -4 (e
_ S — - I —— — - (I == ® 111 ' F(;‘{ g I N )
— 58 3_ < ® 111 gyﬁﬁ'ﬁ‘
® 83 s - ° I 18,
o 83 - _e = K%M.;\ée’,
) -- 4"_-_-""'""' 84 B > Wﬁé@\)
57 ® 84 » r’87 ‘.F 87 | o112 1 112 .,E 2 |
T - o - o N
0.903 acres T Wy | S
——ios |
T 56 L1 56 e —— ==
A, (T
° 56 85 N
<
T3 A AT
°/

\
0.212 acres /W r

0.225 acres

|
| »
\N\" <4 55 50
1} ° -
kN - —— 1 [} 50 1
K | ss A ss q s 1750
\ L::::L:,:ij rf,,f_r,,f,_‘
| Taw R
I R— P I ——
1\ TT2 . . y .
l l R >
~H — — - 4——— \‘53”52\‘ —— — =
g O R < Y 1=
| < 53 E- oo > ‘,47‘,:47,'
§ | 53|52 / } i /
Il
\ R [ W
I
1 \
1
Nl O HISH
l |
| 7/
: * T = - o
N | g0l
H = i - e
4‘
] ! s ] <}
\ < 37 \ | H ‘\ L \ | | 42\ A .
! 38 | 1139 11 40 | |41 | |
\ \ g ® ! (I A Al [ ’
o ‘ [ Iy i ww 43
[ N - e L TNLIY 2 , . /
L] YA I ' , = i
v B : 40 41 42 7 44 o4 :
|1l ////T//S/é 1 38 39 : , o
Al P s T2 36 " " , T N
L//// PR
1
1 H ° < - -/ | | ' N
I =9 35 | 32 f ! | 29 o
il [ \ ! 3 |
A 33 \ | ; | L
i r//T/s/s/ . vl [ A4 ; LA O
L35 < AN A 4 v 3ol 29 >
TT1 Lo < \ A v 21 EIED S e
44 IR R
\\/\< 3 | Il |
ol 34 \\\ 33\ J 32 '\J 31 '\ | “ I 29:
X 32\ 27N L o \‘ u‘u‘ !
\ _r i 7
° D —
A o34 N o N \ | 30” 21
\\\(/ N 33\ ° , L JL J N
N 34\V/
N
~ \
o /AN |
o ” 8 //>/\\
v<////28//>\\ .
\<//28 < J ) P \ .
N\~ \\ \\ y N 0.552 Ocres
\\ \\ \ )
NS N A /
4 3 S O | j
28 - v ) | |
\\ \\ N ‘ FWPS
(R0 | | :
) .
¢
® 27 [» ((f-\/%ﬁ
° VP
% 0.102 acres
7 P/
®R 26 |» /
" T 5

] 0.058 acres
/

@
S

\z 1
Y \%%
/
X
129 /
s =4
® 22 f&a@iop
— G
T T
'@ »
!
PRR
P
!
!
!
b

agha YL W [l
1130111311
| il |

[

\
1130}131
|

]

|

—

w

=
S o A A 0 A e eV

=
g
o 0.033 acres
7
T 7
s
£ Q
-2
~ // Z
A s 0.063 acres
P
~
=
Ve 7 ~
Ve
ﬁ
e e
- /
v
\\\
s
/s v‘/
/
/ﬁ C 13.12.21 | Updated to reflect highways layout changes. DAW
— B 09.12.21 | Updated to reflect minor layout changes. DAW
ﬁ/ A 05.11.21 | Updated to reflect layout amends and breakdown figures
added. DAW
REVISION DATE DESCRIPTION DRAWN
LARKFLEET HOMES
LARKFLEET HOUSE
SOUTHFIELDS BUSINESS PARK
BOURNE

LINCOLNSHIRE

ALLISON | ™

HOMES TEL: 01778 391550

PROJECT

THE BANK
SOMERSHAM

DRAWING TITLE

Om 5m 10m

OPEN SPACE PLAN
. 20m 50m

SCALE DATE DRAWN APPROVED
/ 1:500 @ AO 16.09.2021 DAW -
Page 47 of 210
. DRAWING NO. REVISION
SCALE BAR ‘ L———/POS/O ] B




yoell
—_
abenon
/
V)

- N\
i \/
N N\
7 \‘(A
\/ N
O
D & B 3
B RN N\ ’
\ \ e% Y
1Tc 1Ag | 1Pp 1Bp X \
1Bp 1Ag ‘\ \
1Pp %\ &
_ |5 EY 3 i = A 2 < = 3 E 3;; =) E
S _ . TR ) B ggﬂ éG\
» 3 Acer cam) A, ] , il - = @ N /(‘9
i v A N . 1 i i % = W, \ <% /é
=TT M (cECRERyes il A\ o
,i;g- ; 4 1A ; T = . TLsw N %
- K : ZﬁAgS ¥ : 5 — N\ < 6@
: %%g\ o, I3 1 T a5 ou 706‘ S
ull . 4 i ‘ 4 L 5704 I\ o o o 4 iz
s [ g ] al e e 5 SN
St Cedl 2 jl AN » 11 e M 7 N
T 7L o 2l | R o N <
=z RS \@ . o “ w{‘ | %§§| = \.\ s
2z LA i i 4 \ ¥
: — ) N i Y VA \ N %
—ol\. Aelsalsliz]® ] | o | o < l X Z o ®
= = PR PR A A A o Rl el : i %1* 1*5 Uaom L} Qm “ d - / N A
w2 N y mlE R R R b A ; |1 A |-B%84 =y ) 5 y y
. e R - 4 o J"% - _j | el Y 1A ) UJ’, e B IS l € D - © Y h
ot b oA R o " —] o ? “op | se ! et || Falleiialg| M5 | B e 4 1 @ 1‘% . X ; ~ \| P \
2 == - ta} - 5 - A 7 . T 55\84; E s s Pz 2204 [|E = |— 3 IS ] K \* 1 %‘Bp . I} £ & ) | ) / 54 \\
=l I g L= o =0 | e CE I e T R I R R g | |7 1 B e P / /\
L ;, - 4 - ng%% : o 1o <|m|g|E|§|g|® m|®|®|® . ‘4\ *‘%\ AT - | =« %, . \
: I 7 - ;|Q|N E@'N'@)'@ ®|®l®|-®' : Il My : ﬁgg 5
——— N §%E %@4_ ® 9@ ® ®| n 1 1 s ) ] ] E 18p 4 44\ 3 ! ] . o
i N P g N S H \ AR P BN T @ 4y Y S v'v vl el \/ \
: B — et L I L I A AR T - O SRR ) (RS
- = 3 S - 5 7 ] 9 V. E,, Z 304 05 JCa0s gl " Ay ) \{‘ g B \i B ; o
T ’ g TLE /g e o [l | G |I - 1 171 Ml : /A ” 15N
é SRI s &\ %SO‘,Q v (3305"%6 ! " : ﬁ; e > :’%3 \f © % \ \\
-U / 5 B T At v?:\ﬂ 5 5 Y el @ \f g\ N ﬂ\
m 7:% 2 . ﬁﬂégj 3|2 JE 3|3 s “l° B v\ig ;9&
(@) EEEE N 4 Sorkus £ = ILsw & 9 [ o ®\\
(-D 3 : 1 ) AT viam ® | ® ] A
p 3 — : \ N
o0 EREE S o= e E 5 5 o
g = d [
o
—h |
N
= \
o
- Track
5 8
P02 17/12/2021 Updates to road alignment GJH SLs
PO1 07.12.2021 First Issue JED SLS
‘rev ‘date description ‘ dm ‘ chk
terpl ing =
KEY environmenni;alsa:;':::mmenngt u
landscape design = FPCR Environment and Design Ltd
Scrub Planting (1,994m2) Native Hedgerow Planting (209m2/ 164 I/m) urban design = Lockington Hall
Application Site Boundary 56,677m2 1m centres 80% 60-80cm high and 20% 125-150cm high - planted in 5 plants per linear metre planted in a double staggered Trim Trail Areas (170m2) repooloay - '6‘;?';;:‘9‘0"
groups of 9-15 of the same species row 125-150cm high comprising, arboriculture=  DE74 2RH
Mix A - Crataegus monogyna 10%, Corylus avellana 20%, Cornus Crataegus monogyna 30%, Viburnum opulus 35%,
sanguinea 25%, Virburnum opulus 25%, Prunus avium 10%, Sorbus Corylus avellana 35% f
Total Gl Area 14,761m2 ) Focal Tree Seats C t: 01509 672772
aucupara 10%
e: mail@fpcr.co.uk
: fpcr.co.uk
Species Rich amenity grassland (1,630m2) = == == Metal Estate Fence v pereed
o . WFG20 Eco Species Rich Lawn, Germinal Seeds (or similar approved) ] client
Existing Vegetation Spec: https://germinalamenity.com/wfg20-eco-species-rich-lawn Recreational Footpaths (1,373m2) Larkfleet Homes
Neutral grassland (7,165m2) = =-===-¢ Timber post and 3 rail fence project
Retained Mat Wil WFG4 Neutral Soils, Germinal Seeds (or similar approved) Land at the Bank, Somersham
etained lature Y¥illows Spec: https://germinalamenity.com/wfg4-neutral-soils
. = == == Knee rail fence NOTES N
Individual Standard Trees - Feature Trees (Large) Attenuation - dry banks (1,074m2) ‘E"IV'__\;‘EEN INFRASTRUCTURE
. 16-18cm girth (RB or C as appropiate) See mix as for neutral grassland above This drawing is the property of FPCR Environment and Design Ltd and is
Liquidamber styraciflua 'Worplesdon' (Lsw) issued on the condition it is not reproduced, retained or disclosed to any STRATEGY
Tilia cordata (Tc) Attenuation - marshy (913m2) = == Brick wall gr;egﬁhgrisgd perscin, ecijtre)er Wholll}c/dor in part without written consent of
o _ WFG9 Wetland and Pond Areas, Germinal Seeds (or similar approved) nvironment and Lesign Ld. scale dm chk date created
Individual Standard Trees - Public Open Space Spec: https://germinalamenity.com/wfg9-wetland-and-pond-areas 1:1000 @ A2 JED SLS 07 December 2021
14-16¢cm girth (RB or C as appropiate) /’\ ot ot )
Betula per_ldula (Bp) Attenuation - read bed (79m2) Z | porgsc72um ” Sszus E’S(l)js
Alnus glutinosa Ag) 1m centre plug plants \\,/
Prunus padus (Pp) Phragmites australis (Common read) document number
Sorbus aucuparia (Sa) T T T 1] \ \ \ 08974-FPCR-XX-XX-DR-L-0001
Acer campestre (Ac) 0 5 10 15 20m ProjectCode - Originator - Zone - Level - Type - Role - Drawing Number
Prunus avium (Pa) Attenuation - open water (154m2)

File: WFPCR-FS-01\EarlyWork\8900\897 AL ANDS\Plans\08974-FPCR-XX-XX-DR-L-0001-P02-Landscape Plan.vwx



Agenda Iltem 4a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18" JULY 2022
Case No:  20/00923/REM (APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS)
Proposal: RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION FOR 25
DWELLINGS FOR ACCESS, APPEARANCE,
LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE PURSUANT TO
OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION 17/00101/OUT
Location: D J C PRODUCE PINGLE BANK, HOLME. PE7 3PJ
Applicant: DAVID NJC & SONS FARMS
Grid Ref: 519415 287475
Date of Registration: 27.05.2020

Parish: HOLME

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation as
Holme Parish Council's recommendation of refusal is contrary to
the officer recommendation of approval. The application has also
been called in by the Local Member Clir Alban.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application site consists of a wide-span building (use class
B8) and large areas of hardstanding, used by an existing
business packing fresh produce, located on the southern edge of
the settlement of Holme.

1.2  The site is located on the western side of Pingle Bank at the far
southern edge of the village of Holme, immediately to the south
of Nos.4 and 6 Pingle Bank and No.4A Station Road. The site
extends to 0.998ha and is occupied by two large warehouse
buildings and abuts the open countryside to the south and west.
There is limited existing landscaping on the site, as a result the
existing warehouse buildings form prominent structures from
views looking north along Pingle Bank.

1.3  The area of hardstanding associated with the current use abuts

the highway and as such access to the site is along the site
frontage.

Page 49 of 210



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

To the south, east and west of the application site there are
agricultural fields. The site is an area of low risk of flooding,
within flood zone 1.

This application comprises the submission of reserved matters
comprising the details of access, appearance, layout,
landscaping and scale for the development of 25 residential
dwellings, 40% (equates to 10 dwellings) of which are intended
to form affordable units. Vehicular access is to be provided from
two new vehicular access points from Pingle Bank.

This reserved matters application is made pursuant to Outline
Planning Permission (OPP) reference 17/00101/OUT which
granted outline planning permission for 25 residential dwellings
following demolition of the existing packing station subject to
conditions and a planning obligation which requires a minimum
delivery of affordable housing of 40% of the units consented, and
includes Green Space, wheeled bin provision and footpath Links
(footpath improvements scheme).

The OPP is subject to a number of conditional requirements.
Some of the conditions necessitate the provision of specific
information which has been provided to accompany this reserved
matters submission in regards to conditions 1 (Reserved
Matters), 7 (Scheme for the provision of a footpath link and
crossing - in accordance with the s106), 8 (existing and proposed
levels).

Details have been agreed prior to the reserved matters
submission in accordance with condition 6 (Phase 1 Ecology
Report) of the OPP. These details have been agreed by
application reference 20/80143/COND on 6.8.2020. The
submission part of this condition has been discharged and it
remains for the development to be carried out in accordance with
the approved details.

During the course of the application, amended plans and
documents have been submitted addressing requirements raised
by HDC's Urban Design and HDC's Landscape officer. The first
public consultation period ran from 08.07.2020 to 29.07.2020,
and a further period of re-consultation has been undertaken with
consultees, neighbours, Parish Council and contributors which
ran from 26.04.2022 to 27.04.2022.

Site Notices were displayed at the site on 09.07.2020 and
25.04.22.

The application is accompanied by the following reports and
documents:

e Affordable Housing Schedule (Received 6™ April 2022)
e Landscape Specification (Received 25 May 2021)

Page 50 of 210



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

e Ecology Update letter and Plan

Proposed drawings and elevations including existing and
proposed land levels

Design and Access Statement (Received 7" May 2021)
Site Location Plan and Block Plans 10/07/B1 Rev.B
Detailed House Type Drawings and elevations

Highway Improvement Plans 10/07/F1 & 10/07/F2

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (20th July 2021) (NPPF
2021) sets out the three objectives - economic, social and
environmental - of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2021 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2021 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):

delivering a sufficient supply of homes;

building a strong, competitive economy;

achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;

conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment.

The National Design Guide (2019):
e C1 - Understand and relate well to the site, its local and

wider context

C2 - Value heritage, local history and culture

I1 - Respond to existing local character and identity

I2 - Well-designed, high quality and attractive

I3 - Create character and identity

B2 - Appropriate building types and forms

M3 - Well-considered parking, servicing and utilities

infrastructure for all users

N3 - Support rich and varied biodiversity

e H1 - Healthy, comfortable and safe internal and external
environment

e H2 - Well-related to external amenity and public spaces

e H3 - Attention to detail: storage, waste, servicing and
utilities

National Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design
Guide 2019 are also relevant and are material considerations.

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

Page 51 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019):
e LP1 Amount of development

LP2 Strategy for Development

LP3 Green Infrastructure

LP4 Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery

LP5 Flood Risk

LP6 Waste Water Management

LP9 Small Settlements

LP10 The Countryside

LP11 Design Context

LP12 Design Implementation

LP13 Place Making

LP14 Amenity

LP15 Surface Water

LP16 Sustainable Travel

LP17 Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement

LP24 Affordable Housing Provision

LP25 Housing Mix

LP29 Health Impact Assessment

LP30 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

LP31 Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows

LP34 Heritage Assets and their Settings

LP39 Ground Contamination and Groundwater Pollution

3.2  Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance:

) Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2017), including:
- 1.0 Introduction:
- 1.6 Design principles
- 2.1 Context and local distinctiveness
- 2.5 Landscape character areas
- 2.7 Architectural character
- 3.5 Parking/ servicing
- 3.6 Landscape and Public Realm
- 3.7 Building Form
- 3.8 Building Detailing
- 4.1 Implementation

. Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD - Adopted 2017

. Developer Contributions SPD - Adopted 2011 (Costs
updated annually)

. Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment
- Adopted 2022

. RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide (CCC
SPD) 2012

. Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3

. Annual Monitoring Report - Part 1 (Housing)

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies

Page 52 of 210


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

4.

PLANNING HISTORY

The key planning applications relevant to this application are:

4.1

4.2

5.1

17/00101/OUT - Proposed residential development of up to 25
dwellings following demolition of existing packing station -
Approved 03.05.2019.

20/80143/COND - Conditional Information for 17/00101/OUT: C6
(Phase 1 Ecology Report) - Approved 06.08.2020.

CONSULTATIONS

Holme Parish Council recommends refusal of the application and
made the following objections summarised below (Full copies
attached):

*Highway safety issues for pedestrians and vehicles, lack of
parking and reduction in width of Pingle Bank making it unsafe
and too narrow for larger vehicles, waste collection, farm traffic,
fire appliances. The Parish Council also recommended a zebra
crossing should be installed and it should be lit.

*Design of the development is uninspiring and there is
inadequate spacing of homes, nowhere to store bins and cycles.

*The open space is not appropriate for 25 homes.

*Poor landscape screening which is sparse and should be
revisited.

Updated comments received 29.06.2022 in regards to the
revised Footpath/Highway works (full comments attached):

* Raised previous objections regarding the proposed width of the
road and footpath, stating contrary to Huntingdonshire Design
Guidance.

* Suggested an alternative route be considered for the footpath
going behind Station Road via the Old Coal Yard.

* Loss of roadside parking along the east side of Pingle Bank,
resulting in residents parking on the remaining road creating a
further reduction in the width and highway safety issues, access
issues for emergency vehicles, farm vehicles and making turning
out of driveways more difficult.

*Agreed the pedestrian crossing point over Station Road is much
better and broadly acceptable. Requested that the crossing is
upgraded to a controlled crossing to make it safe for pedestrians.
Stated a Puffin or belisha controlled/marked crossing is required
here.

*Required advance signage to alert drivers from the level
crossing direction.

*Raised concerns with the pedestrian crossing point over Pingle
Bank, require hedge to be regularly cut to ensure visibility
maintained secured by condition. Agreed positioning is
acceptable, but the crossing should be clearly marked.

Page 53 of 210



5.2

5.3

5.4

Councillor Tim Alban (District Councillor for Stilton, Folksworth &
Washingley Ward) - Objects and raised concerns summarised as
the following:

* Highway safety issues with the reduction in parking for existing
residents, dangerous positioning of the junction crossing on a
busy road, recommends alternative footpath and crossing
proposals are submitted.

*Updated comments received 27.06.2022 on the revised
highway works - Objects to the proposals, repeated previous
concerns.

Cambridgeshire County Councillor Simon Bywater (Sawtry and
Stilton Division) - objects to the proposals summarised as the
following:

Highway safety issues with the proposed new footpath and
crossings.

* Updated comments received 28.06.2022 - Previous objections
remain.

05.07.2022: Cambridgeshire County Council Local Highway
Authority (LHA) — Commented (following receipt of amended
highway plans June 2022):

Notes that internal the layout does not currently represent a
design that would be considered for adoption but a condition
requiring a management plan that includes neighbour parking
which could resolve any amenity issue related to the removal of
the existing layby would be acceptable

The access roads where they meet Pingle Bank are of a
sufficient width to cater for the new dwellings and the vehicle-to-
vehicle splays indicated are suitable given the posted speed of
the Pingle Bank.

Regarding the revised highway improvement plans;

“The proposal accords with the principle of the Outline consent,
where the relative impact of vehicles for the existing (B8 Storage
and Distribution) and the proposed (Residential) development
was considered and accepted.

“The works proposed to Pingle Bank now indicate an
improvement to the existing highway which equal to or better
than existing road widths in accordance with criteria within
Manual for Streets (1&2) for the movement of two-way traffic
flows.

“The proposal includes a 1.8m wide standard footway which is
suitable to cater for the existing and proposed development for
the number of pedestrians likely to use it, and provides a
significant improvement over the existing scenario. This
infrastructure will serve to link the proposed development and the

Page 54 of 210



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

existing dwellings to the existing pedestrian network adjacent
Station Road.

“The proposed pedestrian crossing points located on Pingle
Bank have visibility of 43m in accordance with the posted speed
of the road (30mph); further, whilst some splays are indicated as
43m, the available visibility is in far in excess of that required.

“The junction of Pingle Bank and Station Road is located on a
bend where vehicle speeds are highly unlikely to be higher than
the posted speed limits. Accordingly, inter-visibility between
vehicles and drivers is satisfactory to enable pedestrians to cross
in a safe manner.

“Crossing points indicated are not controlled crossing points but
are suitable for the nature of the highway and numbers of
pedestrians likely to use them. It would not be reasonable to
request anything over that proposed and, therefore, doing so
would fail the tests in planning terms. It would therefore not be
possible to defend at any subsequent appeal.”

Requests conditions relating to future management and
maintenance of unadopted streets; Roads built to binder course
level prior to occupation; minimum access widths; access
constructed to CCC specification; parking provide prior to
occupation; visibility splays secured prior to first occupation;
temporary facilities stored clear of the highway, access drainage
to be agreed; wheel washing facilities to be provided; off-site
highway works to be provided prior to first occupation.

Cambridgeshire Constabulary - No objections subject to securing
details of external lighting by condition.

Water & Planning Manager, Community Fire Safety Group - No
objections subject to securing details for the provision of fire
hydrants by condition.

Cambridgeshire County Council, Lead Local Flood Authority - No
objections.

Environment Agency — Wishes to make no comment further to
the outline application and the associated Flood Risk
Assessment.

Huntingdonshire District Council's (HDC's), Trees & Landscapes
- No objections subject to conditions

HDC's Policy and Enabling Officer (Affordable Housing) - No
objections.

HDC's Urban Design - No objections subject to conditions

Page 55 of 210



5.12 HDC's Open Spaces - No objections, commented " the green

6.1

6.2

7.1

space has not changed therefore | have no further comments to
make". Previous comments on the space were - Based on 25
dwellings of unknown size properties, this development requires
in the region of 1100m2 of POS including 450m2 of continuous
green space where children can play. No objections.

REPRESENTATIONS

A total of 39 consultation letters were sent. Representations
have been received from 18 properties (some on multiple
occasions) objecting to the proposals. The comments are
summarised below and available on public access:

e |mpacts on bats - no bat boxes provided.

e Highway safety for vehicles and pedestrians identified and
loss of parking along Pingle Bank.

e Lack of information in regards to the telegraph pole - will it
be moved?

¢ No details provided of dropped kerbs for existing accesses

e Narrowing of Pingle Bank will cause further issues with
access for emergency vehicles and will encourage vehicles
to park on the footpath.

e Additional congestion from the increase in vehicles
especially when the railway crossing is down vehicles back
up along Station Road.

¢ Noise impacts from the airfield, no mitigation for existing or
proposed occupiers.

e Lack of parking within the development.

e Concerns over further damage to the highway.

e Impacts on residential amenity with loss of privacy from
overlooking.

e Lack of street lighting.

e Poor design of dwellings out of character with the rest of the
village.

The above representations are a summary of the comments that
have been received and are addressed within the report. Full
details of the representations can be inspected via the comments
section on the public access application file.

ASSESSMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan's policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation,
government policy and guidance outline how this should be
done.

Page 56 of 210



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of
the development plan, so far as material to the application, and
to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within
paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2018). The development plan is
defined in section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as "the development
plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area".

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of:

¢ Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (2019)

e Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Local Plan (2021)
St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029
Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017)
Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018)
Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019)
Bury Village Neighbourhood Plan 2019 - 2036 (2021)
Buckden Neighbourhood Development Plan 2020 - 2036
(2021)
e Grafham and Ellington Neighbourhood Plan (2022)

The statutory term 'material considerations' has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of land:
Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 (Admin); [2011]
1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting that the NPPF
does not change the statutory status of the Development Plan,
para 2 confirms that it is a material consideration and significant
weight is given to this in determining applications.

The main issues to consider in assessing this application are
whether there is any conflict with Development Plan policies. If
there is any conflict, whether the application can be considered
to be in accordance with the Development Plan when taken as a
whole. If the application is not in accordance with the
Development Plan, whether there are any material
considerations, including emerging policies in the Local Plan to
2036 and the NPPF, which indicate that planning permission
should be granted. With this in mind the report addresses the
principal, important and controversial issues which are in this
case:
e The Principle of the Development
e The Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the
area (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and
Scale)
e Housing Mix and Affordable Housing
e Impact upon Residential Amenity

Page 57 of 210



e Biodiversity and Trees
e Highway safety, Car and Cycle Parking
e Other Matters

The Principle of the Development

7.6

7.7

The principle of residential development at the site has already
been established through the granting of outline permission
17/00101/OUT which granted planning permission for 25
residential dwellings in this location. This application for reserved
matters pursuant to the outline application seeks approval for the
Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale of the
development.

The principle of the development has therefore been established
and the proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle.

Impact upon Character and Appearance of the Area - (Access,

Appearance, Layout, Scale and Landscaping)

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

The site located to the southeast of the village on the western
side of Pingle Bank and is currently occupied by two buildings
associated with a former packing business, the remainder of the
site is used for open pallet storage and access. Existing
residential development exists to the north of the site with Pingle
Bank to the east, the remaining two boundaries to the south and
west are open in character and abut neighbouring agricultural
fields.

The immediate locality of the site is characterised by the existing
two storey semi-detached dwellings with parking to the side or in
front gardens off of the highway. The dwellings are finished in a
mixture of materials of red or cream brick as well as cream
render with pan tiled roofs.

Policy LP11 of the Local Plan to 2036 requires development to
respond positively to its context. Policy LP12 requires new
development to contribute positively to the area's character and
identity and to successfully integrate with adjoining buildings.

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF 2021 states that planning policies
and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not
just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout
and appropriate and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change
(such as

increased densities);

Page 58 of 210



712

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the
arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and materials to
create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work
and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain
an appropriate amount and mix of development (including green
and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users and where crime and disorder, and
the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 41 of the National Design Guide 2019 states that
development should respond positively to the features of the site
itself and the surrounding context, including layout, form, scale,
appearance and local character.

Access

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Access is defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 as
"the means of accessibility to and within the site, for vehicles,
cycles and pedestrians in terms of the positioning and treatment
of access and circulation routes and how these fit into the
surrounding access network".

The site is 0.998ha in size and there is open access to the site
which extends the full length of the site. Parking for the dwellings
of Pingle Bank is provided off road within the curtilage of the
dwellings either to the side or in front, with unrestricted parking
along Pingle Bank which is regularly used by residents and
visitors.

The proposals seek to introduce two formal vehicular accesses
to serve the dwellings from Pingle Bank with a number of new
footpath improvements which will remove space for the existing
on road parking that occurs currently by the creation of the
footpath and crossings as well as removal of the grass verge in
part along Station Road to create new footpaths and crossing
points.

The installation of the footpath and crossings has been secured
by the s106 attached to the Outline permission and condition 7 of
the outline permission requires details of the footpath link and
crossing to be assessed as part of this REM application.
Following several revisions to the details submitted the
improvements are considered to be acceptable in principle. The
highway safety aspects of this part of the proposals are further
discussed in following paragraphs.

Page 59 of 210



717

7.18

7.19

7.20

Access to each dwelling is via driveways and these are
considered to be acceptable in respect of width, depth and
surfacing.

Details of cycle parking have not been provided, these should be
covered and secure and sized to accommodate 1 bicycle per
bedroom to accord with Local Plan Policy LP17. These details
can be reasonably secured by a planning condition.

The Local Highways Authority has assessed the access and
associated infrastructure proposals and has concluded they meet
with technical standards, advising that the access roads where
they meet Pingle Bank are of a sufficient width to cater for the
new dwellings and the vehicle-to-vehicle splays indicated are
suitable given the posted speed of the Pingle Bank and that the
prosed works to Pingle Bank indicate an improvement to existing
highway width equal to or better than existing road widths.

In summary, the access proposals are appropriate for the nature
and scale of the development and will provide safe and effective
access for future occupiers in accordance with Local Plan policy
LP16.

Appearance

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

Appearance is defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 as
"the aspects of a building or place within the development which
determine the visual impression the building or place makes,
including the external built form of the development, its
architecture, materials, decoration, lighting, colour and texture".

In terms of the detailed design of the scheme, HDC’s Urban
Design team has assessed the proposal and provided detailed
suggestions which the applicant accepted and has subsequently
amended the overall proposal, to result in a design that the
officers are generally satisfied with.

The proposed dwellings have simple detailing with soldier course
window heads at ground floor, pitched roof canopies and
chimneys to reflect the similar simple detailing of existing
dwellings to the north as well as Flat roof porch canopies which
are considered to reflect the arrangement of some of the
adjacent dwellings along Pingle Bank.

The submitted plans identify the proposed materials palette and
the distribution of materials across the site and is considered to
be acceptable in principle. Specific details of finishing materials
for all buildings can be secured by condition as well as details of
the colour and location of flues/extracts/vents and meter boxes

Page 60 of 210



7.25

and architectural details in accordance with Policy LP12 and
LP12 of the Local Plan.

Notwithstanding the above, the overall design of the proposals is
considered to make a positive visual contribution to the character
of Holme and are considered to be acceptable in this regard
meeting the aims and objectives of Policies LP11 and LP12 of
the Local Plan to 2036. Whilst it is noted that some objections
have been received regarding the development conflicting with
the character of the area, it is considered that this particular area
doesn’t confirm to any strict character, featuring a mixture of
frontage and backland developments. In this regard, Officers
consider that the development would not directly conflict in
character terms.

Layout

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

Layout is defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 as
"the way in which buildings, routes and open spaces within the
development are provided, situated and orientated in relation to
each other and to buildings and spaces outside the
development".

The site layout plan submitted broadly follows the site layout
principles established on the illustrative Block Plan submitted
with the outline application in terms of a shared surface loop
road. Units fronting Pingle Bank to the east are to correspond
with the established building line of units to the north. Dwellings
backing onto the northern boundary with gardens abutting rear
garden boundaries of Nos. 4a, 6 and 6a Pingle Bank. The
southern and western boundaries comprise outward facing
dwellings and a perimeter block within the centre of the site with
units arranged back-to-back to secure rear gardens.

The proposed site layout has been amended to incorporate
revisions requested by HDC Urban Design and Landscapes
officers and is considered to respond broadly to the adjacent
residential development. The shared surface loop road has been
increased to 5.5m with 0.5m service strips either side and is
supported in design terms and will connect to the two access
points and associated footpath to provide appropriate
connectivity.

In respect of the density of development, the proposals are not
regarded as over intensive development, representing a
relatively low density of development.

The NPPF seeks to encourage higher densities of development,
it is also noted that the NPPF advises that it depends on the
appropriateness of achieving high densities on a site-by-site
basis. Site specific constraints are taken into account through the
overall layout of the site. In this respect, given the sites

Page 61 of 210



7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

Scale
7.36

7.37

landscape sensitivity due to its location (next to the open
countryside) alongside requirements for open space, a higher
density of development would not be suitable. The lower density
has allowed for the provision of good levels of open space and
the opportunity for effective boundary treatments and landscape
buffering, particularly upon the sensitive southern and western
edge of the site. This is consistent with the density transition as
set out on page 39 of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide page
2017.

Vehicular access is to be provided from two new vehicular
access points from Pingle Bank with new footpath connections
which will provide connectivity to the existing development.

The proposed layout facilitates pedestrian and cycle movements
and structural landscaping with single drives measuring 3m wide
each and the majority of properties include a footpath to the side,
to allow bins and bikes to be manoeuvred past parked cars and
to allow both driver and passenger doors to be opened fully. All
of the drives measure a minimum 10m depth to accommodate
tandem parking for larger family vehicles.

Officers are satisfied that the 5.5m shared surface would allow
occasional on street visitor parking to be accommodated in front
of the proposed dwellings.

Open Space - The OPP required in the region of 1180sgm of
informal green space, the proposals are considered to meet this
requirement and are in accordance with the Developer
Contributions SPD and page 105 of the HDC Design Guide SPD
2017.

The layout of the development is considered to respond to the
constraints and opportunities that the site presents and is
considered to be acceptable meeting the aims and objectives of
Policies LP11 and LP12.

Scale is defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 as
"the height, width and length of each building proposed within the
development in relation to its surroundings”.

The development comprises two storey dwellings which is
considered to be in keeping with the surrounding form of
development and would not result in harm to the character of the
area.

Landscaping

7.38

Landscaping is defined in the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 as

Page 62 of 210



7.39

7.40

7.41

"the treatment of land (other than buildings) for the purpose of
enhancing or protecting the amenities of the site and the area in
which it is situated and includes: (a) screening by fences, walls or
other means; (b) the planting of trees, hedges, shrubs or grass;
(c) the formation of banks, terraces or other earthworks; (d) the
laying out or provision of gardens, courts, squares, water
features, sculpture or public art; and (e) the provision of other
amenity features".

The application is supported by a Landscaping scheme, including
details of planting proposed and existing planting to be retained
as well as proposed boundary treatments, and hard surface
treatments. The landscape proposals are considered to integrate
the development well with is surroundings, whilst also providing a
clear definition between the public and private spaces within the
site. Front gardens are defined by shrub planting with some tree
planting in some verges and street corners and between parking
spaces.

The proposals have been fully assessed in consultation with
HDC's Landscape and Open Space Officers, who are generally
supportive of the proposals, subject to further details as follows;

e Additional low level shrub planting needed between open
space and visitor parking spots, to ensure that the open space
is not used for ad hoc parking.

¢ Additional planting required to the western boundary of plot 14
to soften the appearance of the wall and car parking to the
open space

e Additional groups of trees required to prevent parking on
verges.

¢ All public facing garden boundaries should be of brick wall
construct with their appearance softened by planting (hedge,
wall shrubs and/or climbers) This applies to the garden
boundaries of plots 1, 4, 5, 14, 15 and 17.

e Confirmation of the management and maintenance
arrangements for the above

The above elements can be reasonably secured by a condition
attached to the decision notice.

In conclusion, the proposed details are considered to be in
accordance with the design principles established at OPP stage
and it is deemed that the proposal will not have a significant or
demonstrable adverse impact upon the character and
appearance of the area, in accordance with the aims and
objectives of Paragraph 130 of the NPPF (2021), Policies LP11,
LP12 of Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036, Paragraph 41 of
the National Design Guide 2019 and the Huntingdonshire
District Design Guide 2017.

Page 63 of 210



Housing Mix and Affordable Housing

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

Policy LP24 of the Local Plan to 2036 requires a proposal which
includes housing development to provide a range of affordable
housing types, sizes and tenures. These should be appropriate
to meet the requirements of the local community taking into
account the latest evidence from the Housing Register, the
Cambridge sub-region Strategic Housing Market Assessment
and other local sources.

Policy LP25 of the Local Plan to 2036 outlines that a proposal for
major scale development that includes housing will be supported
where it provides a mix of sizes, types and tenures that help
achieve sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities.

The Cambridge sub-region Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) (2013) provides guidance on the mix of
housing required for Huntingdonshire up to 2031. This gives
broad ranges reflecting the variety of properties within each
bedroom category. This indicates a requirement for the following
mix: up to 4% 1-bedroom homes, 16-42% 2 bedroom homes, 26-
60% 3 bedroom homes and up to 30% 4 or more bedroom
homes.

The associated S106 requires the proposed development to
provide at least 40% of the 25 dwellings to be affordable. The
proposals meet this requirement in that 10 of the dwellings will
be affordable housing and 3 of which will be shared ownership,
making a valuable contribution to the affordable housing needs
of the district.

The mix and size of dwellings have been informed by the local
needs evidence, the requirements of Policy LP25 and following
discussions with the Council's Policy and Enabling Officer
(Affordable Housing).

The mix of housing is as follows:

Affordable rent (7 dwellings)

Size Number | Plots

2 Bed 4 7,8,9,10

3 Bed 2 22,23

4 Bed 1 15

Shared Ownership (3 dwellings)
Size Number | Plots

2 Bed 1 4

3 Bed 2 24, 25

Open Market (15 dwellings)

Size | Number | Plots

Page 64 of 210



7.48

7.49

7.50

2 Bed 5 3,11,12,13,14
3 Bed 8 1,2,5,6,18,19,20,21
4 Bed 2 16,17

The requirements within policy LP25 of Huntingdonshire's Local
Plan to 2036 relating to accessible and adaptable homes are
applicable to all new dwellings. This states that all dwellings
should meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) 'accessible
and adaptable dwellings'. These include design features that
enable mainstream housing to be flexible enough to meet the
current and future needs of most households, including in
particular older people and those with some disabilities, and also
families with young children.

Officers consider the quantum of affordable homes, tenure and
mix meets the aims of the SPD and Policy LP24 of
Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036. The mix proposed in this
scheme complies with the mix sought for Huntingdonshire in the
Cambridge Sub-Regional SHMA and will help to achieve a
sustainable, inclusive and mixed community in this locality.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed scheme accords with
the Housing Needs of Specific Groups (October 2021) and the
recommendations for Huntingdonshire contained within the
Cambridgeshire  sub-region  Strategic Housing  Market
Assessment (2013). The proposal is therefore considered to
accord with Policies LP24 and LP25 of the Local Plan to 2036.

Residential Amenity

7.51

7.92

7.593

Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states a proposal will be
supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and
maintained for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and
buildings.

Paragraph 130 (f) of the NPPF 2021 states that decisions should
ensure that developments should create places with a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users.

Officers have fully assessed the impact of the development with
regards to amenity, noise and air quality impacts, including
matters of overlooking, overshadowing, overbearing impact and
loss of privacy relating to existing residents.

Amenity Impacts

7.54

As mentioned earlier in this report, the detailed layout showing
the plot orientations demonstrates a scheme at a low density.
The proposal also includes a large area of open space as shown
on the submitted plans.

Page 65 of 210



7.95

7.56

7.57

In detail the northern extent of the site borders onto the rear
gardens of a number of dwellings on Pingle Bank in particular
numbers 4a, 6 and 6a Pingle Bank. The back to back distances
(rear elevations to rear elevations) achieved would be between
Plots 8-14 to No. 4a is approximately 37m, to No. 6a is
approximately 64.1m and to No. 6 is approximately 76m.

It is considered that given the scale and orientation of the
proposed residential units, as well as the existing and proposed
boundary treatments and landscaping between the proposed
dwellings and the neighbouring properties, the proposals would
not lead to any significant impacts in regards to overlooking or
overshadowing impacts. Given the density of the site and the
positioning of the proposed residential units, it is not likely that
the development will have an unduly overbearing detrimental
impact upon the residential amenity of existing neighbouring
occupiers and the proposed new occupiers would have sufficient
private amenity space in the form of private rear gardens for the
dwellings.

No details of external lighting have been provided. These details
can be reasonably secured by a planning condition.

Noise Impacts

7.58

7.99

7.60

7.61

It is acknowledged that there will be some noise impacts during
the construction phases of the development and as such a
Construction Environmental Management Plan is required to be
submitted, this is recommended to be secured by a condition in
accordance with policy LP14 of the Local Plan.

It is also noted that local concerns have been raised in regards to
the location and the proximity of the airfield, including those by
the airfield operators themselves, Aerolease Ltd. Whilst the
Environmental Health team haven’t formally responded to this
latest application, they did consider noise impacts under the
Outline application and concluded that they did ‘not have any
concerns over noise (or air quality) in this instance’ (see
comments under outline dated 15 August 2017).

The Civil Aviation Authority would ultimately look into any issues
around noise emanating from the airfield operations and may
review flight paths etc. in order to alleviate adverse impacts.
Given the existence of dwellings in the immediate vicinity, it is
assumed that noise issues are not currently prevalent or are
being managed appropriately. That the proposed dwellings
would be c.70m closer to the airfield than existing properties
adjacent is not significant in terms of noise impacts.

Notwithstanding this, it is expected that under modern housing

design standards, fenestration would likely be double glazed
which would form some defence. It is also noted that dwellings

Page 66 of 210



7.62

facing the southern, western and eastern boundaries have
rearward gardens and therefore the dwellings themselves will
provide some noise defence to their associated rear gardens,
albeit only where that noise emanates at ground level and not
from any overhead flights.

In summary, the proposal would accord with the NPPF, Policy
LP14 of Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 and the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2017 in respect of residential
amenity protection.

Biodiversity and Trees

7.63

7.64

7.65

7.66

Policy LP30 of the Local Plan to 2036 states that a proposal will
be required to ensure that no net loss in biodiversity and provide
a net gain where possible, through planned retention,
enhancement and creation of habitats and wildlife features,
appropriate to the scale, type and location of development.
Policy LP31 states that proposals are required to demonstrated
that the potential for adverse impacts on trees, woodland,
hedges and hedgerows has been investigated.

The proposals seek to remove the existing planting to the
northern boundary to the site which comprises some conifer and
native hedging. The proposals will create additional planting
within the landscape buffer and open space to the south and
west which containing native species of planting will soften the
development. The application is supported by a landscape
specification document by Skilled Ecology dated 18 May 2021.

The measures contained within the landscape specifications
PEA at outline stage. Officers are content that the proposed
layout and landscaping details would result in no net loss in
biodiversity and a net gain could be achieved.

The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF,
and policies LP30 and LP31 of the Huntingdonshire's Local Plan
to 2036 in respect of biodiversity and the impact on trees, subject
to the imposition of conditions.

Highway safety, Car and Cycle Parking

7.67

7.68

The layout is detailed as a standard conventional layout with
shared surface elements, both of which are in line with nationally
accepted practices and are in accordance with the principles set
out in Manual for Streets 1 and 2. The proposal also accords with
Ministerial advice which states that shared space schemes are
acceptable where 'traffic volume and speeds will be low, such as
within small housing schemes, or those parts of a larger
schemes designed as mews or cul-de-sacs.'

Car parking is proposed by way of on plot car parking to the side
of dwellings. Two car parking spaces of proposed per dwelling

Page 67 of 210



7.69

7.70

7.71

7.72

7.73

and some visitor parking can be achieved within the internal loop
road. Secure and covered cycle parking is to be provided in
accordance with the requirements of the Huntingdonshire Design
Guide (2017). Secure cycle storage can be secured by a
condition attached to the decision notice.

The road layout submitted broadly follows the site layout
principles established on the illustrative Block Plan submitted
with the outline application in terms of a shared surface loop
road. Vehicular access is to be provided from two new vehicular
access points from Pingle Bank with new footpath connections.

The proposals have been assessed in consultation with CCC
Highways who have confirmed that the proposals as submitted
are acceptable, subject to conditions as summarised above in
the comments section.

The proposed layout facilitates pedestrian and cycle movements
and structural landscaping with single drives measuring 3m wide
each and the majority include a footpath to the side to allows
bins and bikes to be manoeuvred past parked cars and to allow
both driver and passenger doors to be opened fully and bins and
bikes to be moved past the parked cars. All of the drives
measure a minimum 10m depth to accommodate tandem
parking for larger family vehicles. The provision of and retention
of the parking spaces, visibility splays and surfacing of roads and
footways to a binder course can be secured by a condition
attached to the decision notice. It is considered to be
appropriate and necessary to secure the provision of these prior
to the occupation of the dwellings.

Officers are satisfied that the 5.5m shared surface would allow
occasional on street visitor parking to be accommodated in front
of the proposed dwellings.

The proposals have been assessed in consultation with CCC
Highways who have stated that the design of the development
does not meet that required for adoption. As such, details of the
long-term management and maintenance of the roads will be
required to be secured by planning condition, to ensure that this
infrastructure is maintained appropriately for use by future
occupiers.

In summary, the arrangement of streets and driveways is
acceptable.

Footpath and Pedestrian Crossings

7.74

It is noted that there is local concern regarding the proposed
changes along Pingle Bank, through the introduction of 1.8m
wide footpaths - specifically with regard to the proposals falling
short of the guidance set out within the Huntingdonshire Design

Page 68 of 210



7.75

7.76

7.77

7.78

7.79

7.80

Guide, which sets out an aim of 2m wide footpaths. In response
to the concerns raised, Officers would like to make the following
observations:

As set out on page 57 of the HDC Design Guide (DG) 'Each
street type has a table with additional information which gives
recommended overall dimensions for all new highways. Early
engagement with Cambridgeshire County Council, as highway
authority, is encouraged with regards to the design of all street
types, highway adoption and parking solutions'.

The minimum 2m footpath widths in the DG are derived from
Manual for Streets para 6.3.22 which states 'There is no
maximum width for footways. In lightly used streets (such as
those with a purely residential function), the minimum
unobstructed width for pedestrians should generally be 2m.
Additional width should be considered between the footway and
a heavily used carriageway, or adjacent to gathering places,
such as schools and shops'.

The key point is that these are general recommendations and
whilst 2m wide footpaths are ideal, in reality these paths are
likely to see low pedestrian footfall from the development and
existing adjacent units. Furthermore, there doesn't appear to be
sufficient space with the adjacent swale along Pingle Bank to
increase the paths much further.

It's also worth noting that the Department of Transport Inclusive
Mobility - A guide to Best Practice on Access to Pedestrian and
Transport Infrastructure Dec 2021 Section 4.2 states 'Footways
and footpaths should be made as wide as is practicable, but
under normal circumstances, a width of 2000mm is the minimum
that should be provided, as this allows enough space for two
wheelchair users to pass, even if they are using larger electric
mobility scooters. If this is not feasible due to physical
constraints, then a minimum width of 1500mm could be regarded
as the minimum acceptable under most circumstances, as this
should enable a wheelchair user and a walker to pass each
other. Where there is an obstacle, such as lamp columns,
signposts or electric vehicle charging points, the absolute
minimum width should be 1000mm, but the maximum length of
such a restricted space should be 6 metres.

The proposed highway improvement scheme appears compliant
with this guidance given the physical constraints of the swale.

The Local Highways Authority has assessed the latest highways
arrangement plans and have concluded that they are acceptable
in design terms, equal to or better than the existing highway
arrangement, with crossing points suitable for the nature of the
highway and numbers of pedestrians likely to use them. It is
concluded that the arrangement will not compromise the safety

Page 69 of 210



7.81

Other

7.82

7.83

7.84

7.85

7.86

or accessibility of users. Whilst concerns have been noted,
Officers do not have sufficient technical evidence to indicate that
a refusal of the scheme in highway grounds would be warranted.

The proposal is therefore considered to meet the requirements of
Policies LP16 and LP17 of Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036
and Section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021
and Huntingdonshire's Design Guide 2017.

Matters

Water Efficiency

Policy LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036 states that new dwellings
must comply with the optional Building Regulation requirement
for water efficiency set out in Approved Document G of the
Building Regulations. A condition could be attached to any
approval decision to ensure compliance with the above.

Accessible and Adaptable Homes

Policy LP25 of the Local Plan states that proposals for new
housing will be supported where they meet the optional Building
Regulation requirement M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable homes'
unless it can be demonstrated that site specific factors make this
impractical or unviable. A condition could be attached to any
approval decision to ensure compliance with the above.

Fire and Rescue

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service require the provision of
fire hydrants; these could be secured via a condition attached to
the decision notice.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):

The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the
Council's adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover
footpaths and access, health, community facilities, libraries and
lifelong learning and education.

Environment Impact Assessment (EIA):
According to the Regulations and Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG), 'Screening' is the procedure used to determine if a

proposed development is likely to have significant effects on the
environment.

Page 70 of 210



7.87

7.88

7.89

7.90

7.91

7.92

It is for the Local Planning Authority to determine whether a
development is of a type listed in Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017. The PPG sets out the criteria
and thresholds representing 'exclusion thresholds' in Schedule 2
of the Regulations, below which an Environmental Impact
Assessment does not need to be considered (subject to the
proposal not being in a 'sensitive area'). It also provides
indicative criteria and thresholds to help to determine whether
significant effects are likely.

Under Schedule 2 the proposal is considered to comprise an
Urban Development Project (development type 10b in the PPG
Annex). Schedule 2 sets out the assessment criteria for these
types of development as follows:

(i) includes more than 1 hectare of urban development which is
not dwellinghouse development; or

(ii) The development includes more than 150 dwellings; or

(iii) The overall area of the development exceeds 5 hectares.

The overall site area is 0.998ha and fewer than 150 dwellings
are proposed. The development therefore falls below the
thresholds set out in the assessment criteria in Schedule 2. An
EIA screening is therefore not necessary.

Resident comments
Whilst most residents’ comments have been addressed in the
above sections, the following matters also require attention;

Location of telegraph pole

One resident has raised concerns regarding the possible
relocation of an existing telegraph pole. This mater would be
dealt with outside of the planning system and would be a matter
for the developer and the communications operator to resolve
and is not a material planning matter.

Installation of dropped kerbs to existing residences

The development would not be responsible for delivery of further
dropped kerbs outside of the development area, unless the LHA
required this in order to mitigate the impacts of the development.
No such request has been made and it would therefore not meet
the tests of planning conditions/ obligations to seek this
infrastructure improvement.

Conclusion

7.93

The principle of development on this site for 25 dwellings was
established at outline stage.

Page 71 of 210



7.94

7.95

7.96

This application deals with the details of access, appearance,
layout, landscaping and scale of the site granted by the outline
consent. These details have been found to be satisfactory with
regard to the appearance, layout, landscaping and scale and will
provide a good quality residential environment whilst avoiding
unacceptable detrimental impacts upon the amenity of the
existing adjacent and proposed occupants.

The proposals are considered to respond to the opportunities
and constraints of the site and relevant national and local
planning policies and are acceptable in terms of access highway
safety.

Having regard to all relevant material considerations, it is
recommended that approval be granted for the reserved matters
which comprise access, appearance, layout, scale and
landscaping subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to

conditions to include the following

Approved Plans

Architectural details

Materials

Cycle Storage details

Provision and retention of parking spaces prior to

occupation

e Boundary treatments details for plots for plots 1, 4, 5, 14,
15 and 17 and provision prior to occupation

e Provision of visibility splays prior to occupation and
retention free from obstruction

e Provision of future management and maintenance of any
unadopted streets

e Surfacing of roads and footways to binder course prior to
occupation

o Water efficiency

Soft Landscaping details in accordance with Planting

schedule

External lighting details for the whole site

Details of any noise attenuation required

Fire Hydrants

Tree Protection

Ecology and biodiversity mitigation and enhancement

measures

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Debra Bell - Senior Development
Management Officer —debra.bell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 72 of 210


mailto:%E2%80%93debra.bell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

HOLME PARISH COUNCIL

Parish Clerk: Mrs. J Osborn
Home Farm
24 Church St
Holme
Peterborough
Cambs.
PE7 3PB

Tel. No. 01487 831451
holmeparishclerk@gmail.com
28 July 2020

Dear Ms Bell
20/00923/REM
Reserved matters pertaining to development of 25 homes, Pingle Bank, Holme.

The Parish Council has met to discuss this application and at the meeting several
members of the public voiced their opinions. | have also received numerous
comments, written, emailed, by telephone and verbally and a document containing
the points raised is attached, grouped into various headings as follows:

Footpath along east side of Pingle Bank.

The development

Junction of Pingle Bank and Station Road
Pedestrian crossing across B660/Station Road

vk wnN e

Co-ordination, Ecological, Contamination, logistical matters.

I will summarise below the main arguments but please refer to the document
attached for more detail.

1. The footpath, whilst fundamental for the development, may mean loss of
amenity along Pingle Bank (parking spaces) and this would need to be
addressed as part of the plan as those who park there, and visitors, have no
other option.

The installation of the 1.8m footpath may mean that the road, already
narrow, currently 8m in places, would become too narrow for larger vehicles,

Page 73 of 210



waste collection, farm traffic etc. and fire appliances (bearing in mind that
this is the main road to the Airport, so there is a higher risk of fire than
normal).

The crossing over the southern end of Pingle Bank needs to be well defined,
ideally zebra marked and lit, and not compromising the driveway where it has
been drawn on the plan.

The development. Comments range from lack of adequate car parking to the
uninspiring design, inadequate spacing of homes, very narrow spine road and
nowhere to store bins and bicycles. Screening is sparse and should be
revisited. The open space has no dimensions — is this area appropriate for a
development of 25 homes?

Junction of Pingle Bank and Station Road. This is a Y shaped junction on a
corner of a busy road, B660. The bend in the B660 is blind in both directions.
The proposal shows a dropped kerb crossing on the curve which is
unacceptable under Dept. of Transport recommendations and the crossing
point should be further south along Pingle Bank and clearly marked with a
zebra or similar. A central refuge may also be appropriate. The Speed
Indicator device owned by the Council records some very fast speeds in the
area, up to 88mph has been shown. The V85 speed percentile is currently
34mph.

Pedestrian Crossing over B660 Station Road. This is required to link the
Pingle Bank footpath with the Station Road existing footway which is on the
northern side of Station Road.

The proposal is for a dropped kerb approximately 30m from the apex of
Pingle Bank corner. This proposal is entirely unacceptable under Dept. of
Transport guidelines as it is too close for vehicles to stop even if they are
travelling at the legal speed limit. As above, most of them are travelling much
faster.

The Council wishes to object most strongly to this proposal, and demands the

re-siting of the crossing point to be compliant with DoT rules, a minimum of
40m and preferably more than 48m away from the bend.

The crossing point is shown as 2 dropped kerbs. Even if the crossing were to
be moved away from the bend the crossing needs to be a signified and lit
crossing such as a pelican or puffin crossing with good advance signage and
some street lighting would be required (as there is none).

Other matters are self-explanatory. Could an additional bat survey be
requested as there is from local knowledge current bat activity. It would be

Page 74 of 210



helpful to co-ordinate the crossing proposal with that shown in current
application 20/00989/0UT.

The Parish Council, at the meeting on 21 July voted unanimously to recommend
Refusal of this application, taking into account all the items mentioned.

The Council and parishioners look forward to being consulted on a new or amended
application taking into account the comments made above and in the document
attached. It would be helpful to have a drawing of any revised proposals with
measurements and dimensions added please, to show the exact positioning of the
crossing points and footpath.

Yours sincerely

Mrs. J Osborn
Clerk to Holme Parish Council

Page 75 of 210



Holme Parish Council
Planning application 20/00923/REM

Points made at public consultation and during Parish Council meeting 21 July 2020

Footpath along Pingle Bank East side — whilst a footpath is absolutely necessary for road safety it
would mean removing the existing 3/4 parking spaces which are used daily. What alternative street
parking is to be provided for those who have no or insufficient off street parking on Pingle Bank?

The crossing point over from the proposed estate to the proposed new footpath on the east side of
Pingle Bank should be a zebra crossing to allow children going to school the confidence that vehicles
are supposed to stop.

The proposed position of the dropped kerb at the estate end of Pingle Bank is shown as in
someone’s driveway and it needs to be repositioned 2 or 3 metres further south.

At any time of day there is considerable parking on both sides of Pingle Bank by current residents
and visitors/tradesmen. The road is already congested and narrow and introducing a footpath would
cause issues of its own. The road is not a quiet back road but has a lot of traffic using it even before
any more traffic is introduced from the new homes.

Because of the number of cars which park along Pingle Bank which would lose their existing space
and to prevent blocking the road, residents will most likely park on the footpath - rendering it
useless for the disabled and those using prams and pushchairs.

Dropped kerb and access will additionally need to be provided for the driveway to numbers 9-15
Pingle Bank (access between numbers 3 and 5).

The road is narrow (the topographical survey shows the road to be approx. 8m widening to 12m
maximum) and if the installation of a footpath of 1.8m width caused carriageway width to be further
restricted then it could cause difficulties for farm traffic, lorries, buses and emergency vehicles as
there are always parked cars to negotiate. The school bus uses this route twice a day although does
not stop here.

The existing 30mph limit should be taken down further south along Pingle Bank — perhaps as far as
the bridge - to give vehicles a chance to slow down to 30mph before arriving at the southern
entry/exit to the development.

This is a through route to Peterborough Business Airport which is quite a busy commercial light
aircraft airport as well as a flying club offering lessons etc.

The Development

Is the spine road to be a one way road as the width of the road is only 3.10 m as shown? This will
need to be cleared with the Fire Officer. This width is too narrow for 2 cars to pass.

Visitors’ parking spaces on the site are insufficient for the number of homes and disabled spaces are
not shown.

Are vehicles in each household going to be somehow limited to numbers that can park on each plot?
How? If not, where will the overflow park as the road is too narrow and Pingle bank will be full?

Page 76 of 210



Landscaping - Noise and artificial light screening. Currently the onion sheds provide some screening
from the view and noise of the airfield (and lighting during operational hours). Many trees near to
the boundary of the adjoining field have already been felled by the landowner leaving the whole
area very open. The new homes will need some sort of screening to reduce noise and light
disturbance from the airfield. This is part of the S106 agreement. The few trees to south and west
shown on the Soft Landscaping schedule will not provide much protection and this needs to be
revisited.

The house designs are uninspiring, the houses are cramped being less than the recommended
minimum of 12m between frontages, and do not have sufficient parking provision for 2 cars per
home as the driveways are narrow. This could lead to parking on the spine road and in the visitor
places.

There do not appear to be any bin stores which will lead to wheelie bins (3 per household) being left
in view which will be unsightly and cluttered. (This is already the case following development in
Church St) and no garages/bicycle storage either.

No evidence of sustainability measures e.g. rainwater harvesting, solar panels, and ground source or
air source heat pumps. It is assumed that the chimneys are drawn for appearance only and that the
heating systems will not be oil fired (no mains gas).

*The plans and layout do not correspond in terms of the house types on individual plots. It is not
clear exactly what is proposed. (*This has been raised with Ms Bell already)

Open Space Will this have a play area or be suitable for ball games? There is no play equipment in
Holme at present. Measurements of this land are not shown. Fencing to keep animals (domestic or
wild) out will be required. Maintenance of area and fencing needs to be discussed and arranged per
the 106 agreement. Is it possible to take the opportunity to incorporate a larger area of land at this
stage?

Junction Pingle Bank/Station Rd
The junction of Pingle bank and Station road is on a blind bend.

The B660 regularly takes traffic passing at high speeds, breaking the speed limit. Data from the
Speed Indicator Device shows the average is about 35mph in the 30 zone at this point but speeds up
to 85mph have been recorded.

Traffic volumes using the junction will increase by possibly 50 cars each way per day if each home
has 2 vehicles. This would be a significant increase and could cause queueing when the crossing is
closed (traffic frequently backs up to this junction) or vehicles trying to pull out into or turn in front
of fast moving traffic. People may use the road down to Conington as a rat run going south which
will have an adverse impact on Conington village.

The pedestrian crossing point on the corner needs to be very well marked — preferably by a zebra
crossing and/or with a central refuge for pedestrian safety.

As combine harvesters and all sorts of large vehicles use this junction daily it would be better to
stagger the crossing point back (southwards) away from the main road to allow for turning heavy
vehicles.

The crossing point should not be on a curve.

Page 77 of 210



Pedestrian crossing across B660/Station Rd

There are no measurements on the plan. The proposed crossing appears to be about 30m from the
junction but this is too short a distance to comply with regulations on this busy road.

Type proposed — dropped kerbs only — this is not a proper pedestrian crossing and 2 dropped kerbs
to mark this crossing point are not sufficiently safe along this fast road near a bend.

There is currently no street lighting in the area. Children going to and returning from Holme School
or the bus stop for the school bus (at the Green on Station Rd) will use this crossing and in winter it
will be dark at school going home time.

The crossing needs to be a Pelican or similar signalised crossing with warning signs in both
directions.

As planned the crossing point is far too close to the bend. Drivers coming from the east would not
be able to see pedestrians until last minute (at the apex of the bend) making it difficult for them to
slow down in time. During the winter months the issues surrounding this crossing would be
compounded by the dark and possibly bad weather.

This is a crazy scheme and the location of the dropped kerbs as proposed is a dangerous place to
cross this busy road.

The crossing point and signalised crossing needs to be measured in compliance with the Dept of
Transport rules set out in the Manual for Streets chapter 7.5.

Co-ordination with Old Coal Yard scheme

The scheme for the land off Pig and Whistle Yard (the Old Coal Yard) HDC ref 20/00989/0UT shows
the crossing point over the B660 further west, on the western side of the access to that site. No
crossing type has been shown. Similar comments have been made on that application i.e. that
provision of a lit crossing at the minimum should be a condition attached to the development.

One suggestion would be to re-profile the road by purchasing part of the field and enhance visibility
by removal/reduction of the hedge.

Another suggestion, made by the operator of the mobile post office van (which parks at the Green
on Station Road and is acutely aware of the traffic passing at speed), would be to install a series of
speed humps in the area.

Ecological Survey

At the time of the meeting 21 July 2020 a local resident pointed out the current existence of bats
flying at dusk in and out of the area. A further bat survey should be requested as the survey carried
out in June did not discover the bats.

There are yellowhammers, swallows and reed warblers using the site. The Ecological survey is
disappointing.

Contamination Survey

Page 78 of 210



Asbestos removal is a concern for local residents, some of whom have small children. Particular
regard should be had for the prevailing wind conditions when the asbestos is removed, indeed the
whole of the demolition is likely to cause significant nuisance to neighbouring properties and
appropriate mitigation should be employed.

Logistics

If an agreement can be reached on all of the above it will be fundamental to provide the
infrastructure (footpath, crossing points) before any building works start so that safety is assured
before lorry movements associated with the building works begin. Furthermore all site deliveries
will need to be made actually on site not in the road. This is covered in the S106.

Members of the District Council should view this road junction and critically examine the proposal to
appreciate for themselves the dangers that such a proposal would potentially cause. This is not a
crossing proposal as it stands. The provision of 2 dropped kerbs simply allows people to negotiate
the kerb and does not help them to cross the road, nor does it make it safe — indeed it may lead
them to think it is safe when it is not.

Page 79 of 210



From: Janice Osborn

To: Bell, Debra (Planning); DMAdmin

Subject: 20/00923/REM Pingle Bank

Date: 10 June 2021 10:04:08

Attachments: We sent you safe versions of your files.msg

Pingle Bank Reserved Matters letter 090621.pdf
Document A Pingle Bank 9.6.21.pdf
Holme SID Vehicle Data for CCC Document B.xlsx

Mimecast Attachment Protection has deemed this file to be safe, but always exercise caution when opening
files.

Dear Ms Bell
Please see attached letter and 2 supporting documents which are the Parish Council's
response to the revisions on the Reserved Matters application.

You will see that the Parish Councillors would like you to come to see the site and to meet
them so that they can be assured that you completely understand the issues they are facing
If you could give me a date and time I will facilitate this with a couple of Councillors.

Kind regards

Janice Osborn

Clerk to Holme Parish Council
01487 831451

Data Protection: Your name and email address and any other personal information you
have provided will be stored by the Clerk for the purposes of dealing with your enquiry.
They will be stored for future use by the Clerk. Your details will not be disclosed to any
other person or organisation without your express permission and if this becomes
necessary the Clerk will contact you for your consent. The Council's privacy policies can
be viewed on our website: www.holmecambsparish.org

Page 80 of 210


mailto:holmeparishclerk@gmail.com
mailto:Debra.Bell@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:Development.ManagementAdmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/uAndCPjXH5R17Ki0Imso?domain=holme.cambs.info

We sent you safe versions of your files

		From

		postmaster@3csharedservices.org

		To

		DMAdmin

		Recipients

		Development.ManagementAdmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk



 	

 		

 	



We sent you safe copies of the attached files





If you want the originals, you can request them.



	

 	

Files

 	

Pingle Bank Reserved Matte... 090621.doc (41.5 KB)

Document A Pingle Bank 9.6.21.docx (17.4 KB)

Holme SID Vehicle Data for...ment B.xlsx (14.0 KB)

	

	

 	

Message Details



 	

From



"Janice Osborn" <holmeparishclerk@gmail.com>



Subject



20/00923/REM Pingle Bank



Sent



10 Jun 2021 10:03



	

 	

Request Files	

	

 	

 	

 

 	

© 2015 - 2018 Mimecast Services Limited.

 	

	

                                                           




HOLME PARISH COUNCIL

Parish Clerk: Mrs. J Oshorn
Home Farm
24 Church 5t
Holme
FPeterborough
Cambs.
FE7 3FE

Tel. Mo. 91487 831451
holmeparishclerk@gmail.com

18 June 2621

Dear Ms Bell

26/00923/REM - 25 homes, Pingle Bank, Holme - Reserwved Matters

Holme Parish Council has discussed this application, and on 6 June a
public consultation meeting was held. 4 residents were present.

A document (A) 1s attached which is a record of the points brought up
and discussed at the meeting and should be read in conjunction with
this letter.

On the whole the Councillors are disappointed with the reserved
matters revised plans and I set out below why this is.

1) Footpath along Pingle Bank.

a.

Chapter 3.3 of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide (HDG) sets
out the minimum road and footpath reguirements. Pingle Bank
iz a through road and a bus route and takes local traffic to
Conington, through traffic to the Al southbound, is used as
a shortcut for people travelling north from the Al towards
YaxleysRamsey and is the route for traffic to the
airfield/flying club as well as being used by farm machinery
to work on adjoining fields. It is also a popular walking
and cycling route for local people. It could be classified
as a Secondary Route (HDG). As such the road width needs to
be a minimum of 5.5 m and the footpath 2m. Even if it were
classified as a Tertiary Route, the road width should be
4.8m and footpath Zm. The plans submitted show a non-





compliant 1.8 m footpath width, and the existing road (in
particular where it narrows just by the start of the
development site) is simply too narrow along most of its
length to accommodate both a satisfactory road width and a
suitable footpath. Yet a footpath is important here to
promote safety and wellbeing. A more creative approach has
to be sought.

b. There are currently roadside parking spaces along the east
side of Pingle bank. The residents use these for parking and
have done for many Jyears and the road is indeed marked to
show this as parking space. The fear is that all of these
spaces will be lost to accommodate the proposed footpath,
leaving residents and wisitors nowhere to park. It is not
safe to park on the busy Station Roads/Bee&, and Pingle Bank
further towards the south is too narrow and has deep ditches
each side. 2 homes on Pingle bank (no & and Pingle Bank
House) do not have any off road parking space at all to use.
Currently 4 residents living on the east side of Pingle Bank
need disabled parking. Many of the homes are owned by Chorus
and they should be consulted as their tenants will he
affected by the loss of amenity.

c. The crossing point across Pingle Bank at the Station Rd end
is not compliant with the Manual for Streets (MfS) Chapter
6.3.12 which reguires that crossings are perpendicular to
the road to be crossed - this should be moved further to the
south.

d. Please refer to document A for additional comments.

2) Pedestrian Crossing Point over Station Rd.

a. Position: The crossing shown is far too close to the bend of
Station Road. The MfS indicates at Chapter 7.5 that the
stopping distance at 3@mph is 46m (43m with bonnet length
included). The crossing is situated 9.6 metres east fraom the
edge of the driveway to the bungalow “Winshury” according to
a dimensioned plan from the developer I have been sent and
the proposed site for the crossing point is therefore much
less than 46m away from the apex of the hend. The crossing
point is definitely not safe at this point and the Council
objects strongly to this siting.

b. Please refer to the Speed Indictor Dewvice records submitted
regularly to Cambs Highways (document B attached) which show
that the V85 figure for this area of station road is 32mph -
core data can be provided on demand. The stopping distance
would therefore be more than 4ém.





c. Type: The crossing over this busy road (BEEG) which takes
traffic from the Al to Ramsey and beyond including a large
proportion of HGYs carrying fruit and vegetables to/from the
packing plants to the East as well as heawy local traffic
needs to be properly signed and marked and at the very least
a Belisha beacon marked zebra crossing is reguired, although
a light controlled Pelican or Puffin would he the preferred
and by far the safest option here. The Council understands
that several solar solutions are available if no electricity
can be provided. The priority here is to keep pedestrians
safe, many of whom will be children. The HDG at point 4.1
(4 says that people should be put before traffic.

d. Please refer to document A.

3) Design

a. The Overall feeling is that the designs submitted for 3
different house types are too similar and there is not
enough variety in the styles and little architectural
merit in the proposal as it stands. Much as Councillors
agree that the houses should blend in with the existing
housing, it is nevertheless important to produce both a
cohesive and an attractive design bearing in mind that
the HDG states that “good design is an integral part of
systainable development”. The houses basically all look
the same and some more creative design is reguired here
- more detail in document A.

b. There is little sense of place in this conventional grid-
iron layout and there are some specific issues with the
designs covered in the attached document & regarding the
public realm-facing fencing which should be revised to
brick walls according to HDG 3.8; wisitor parking spaces
which hawve been reduced in number to 8 for 25 houses
which is guite simply not enough; rear parking for plots
1, 4 & which is inconvenient for owners/tenants and may
lead to parking in the street.

c. Please refer to document A.

4) Ecology/Environmental Plans
a. The plans show a public open space, but it is not
clear what this is to be for. The HOG says that (3.6)
all public spaces should be defined and designed to
fulfil specific roles and functions for a range of
users. This plan shows a grass area which is only to





be cut once a year which may therefore not be suitable
for children to play on and will then inewvitably
become contaminated by dogs. What use is enwvisaged, is
any infrastructure to be provided (play surface or
equipment, goal posts?) and what arrangements are
envisaged for its maintenance?

b. The Council welcomes the introduction of nesting
bricks and such like for wildlife.

. How is noise nuisance from the airfield to he
mitigated?

The Councillors would like to meet with you on site to
help you to fully understand the issues they are facing
with these proposals. Would you be able to contact me to
fix an appointment, please.

The Council would also wish you to consult with the
officer dealing with the 0l1d Coal Yard application
(28/989/0UT - Karina Adams) as a Pedestrian crossing owver
Station Road is also shown on that application and a
Joined up approach would be sensible when reaching a
resolution to item 2 above.

Yours sincerely

Mr=. Janice Oshorn
Clerk to Holme Parish Council






Pingle Bank Planning

Points made at the public meeting

a. Footpath.

1.

ii.

iii.

iv.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Narrow Road cannot accommodate 1.8m footpath and still be
a satisfactory Road width, it would reduce to 4.3m at the
narrow end. This is contrary to the recommendations in the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

The footpath should actually be 2m according to the Design
Guide.

This is a bus route. 415 bus (Wednesdays only) would need to
be able to get through and road should be 7m according to
Design guide.

Access for emergency and farm vehicles, especially to
airfield. (Fire risk)

Loss of amenity for homes without their own parking spaces
and those using the roadside to park when visitinghomes
along Pingle Bank. No suitable alternative parking places are
available. At least 4 homes currently require disabled
parking.

Possibility of adverse possession being invoked - people have
parked here for years.

2 homes on Pingle Bank do not actually have any spaces for
off road parking. There is nowhere local for them to park
other than on Pingle Bank.

The crossing point over the top of Pingle Bank is dangerous
and far too close to Station Road, and also on a bend which is
not acceptable according to the MfS. The crossing point must
be perpendicular to the kerb, therefore further South, to be
safe.

Possibility of rerouting footpath to the west via the Old Coal
Yard site?

b. Pedestrian Crossing point, Station Road

2 issues- location and type.

i.
ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Location

Proximity to the bend. Visibility is compromised.

Fast road - V85 is 32mph. (30mph limit). High speeds up to 80+
are recorded occasionally.

Health and safety audit should take place. If there were to be an
accident here who would be responsible?

Are Police highway safety people consulted?

Per Manual for Streets stopping distance is 40m from sight point
and the crossing point should be far further west.

Joined up approach with old Coal Yard scheme is desirable.
Type

Any crossing must be prominently marked, signed and lit -
suggestion of solar Belisha beacons and zebra crossing, if not a





vii.
viii.

full Pelican or Puffin crossing. Safety is paramount. Particularly
when approaching from the East.

Traffic calming could be an option.

Pedestrian safety is paramount.

Ecology/Environment plan.

i.

ii.

jii.
iv.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

iX.

Possibility of bins not being emptied because of access problems
around new estate - solve problems before they occur.

What is the grassland area for? It is not clear what use is
intended. (Design Guide). If this is not a playing field then it will
become a dog fouling area and this is not acceptable. If a play
area is any equipment being provided?

Ball games against the wall of plot 14 could be undesirable.

Who is going to maintain this area and enforce the replacement
of dead/dying plants and cut the grass and hedges etc.? Danger
of this area becoming an eyesore if this agreement (with ?) is not
properly structured.

Street lighting. None is shown. Is any intended? Dark skies are
important here.

. Design.

It is difficult to appreciate designs on line drawings, colour would
be helpful.

Layout of estate is unimaginative and in straight lines/grid iron
pattern, old fashioned and promotes no sense of community or
place.

Urban layout for a country village is not appropriate.

What is the purpose of the narrowing of the spine road outside
plots 18 and 19 and if this is for speed control why is this not also
employed outside plots 24 and 25?7

3 homes have parking spaces at the rear which may encourage
parking on Pingle Bank as these are not so convenient to use.
There are timber fences shown which should be brick walls (plots
1, 4, 5,14, 15, 17) (Design Guide) and the dividing fences at the
road frontage are not needed and unsightly, as well as possibly
impeding the view for turning/emerging vehicles.

Individual houses all look very similar. There needs to be a
variety of styles, using features such as gables, dormers, porches
and canopies to make them more interesting as well as some
variations in materials, doors and windows to break up the
sameness.

This is a lost opportunity for some good and creative design
which could enhance this area.

Visitor Parking reduced to 8 not 12 spaces. More (6?) could be
provided along the southern side of the spine road which would
help accommodate extra vehicles.(expected 2 per house plus at
least 3 in the bigger houses, maybe trailers and caravans as on
Pingle bank and visitors, deliveries, tradesmen etc. Need to
avoid people parking on the roadside and stopping through traffic
i.e. bin lorry.

Is this to be an adopted highway?





General points:

Noise from airfield — loss of buffer of the sheds which may make the noise level unacceptable both
here and in the village. Mitigation?

To request meeting between planning officers for Old Coal Yard and Pingle Bank to ensure joined up
approach to Crossing point and footpath.

To request meeting between HPC and planning officer/Members of DMC to show exactly the
problem with the proposed crossing point.

Method of heating?
To consult Marge Beutell re bin emptying and how to avoid problems
Plan is wrong as marked Long Drove where it should be Station Rd

ECMain Line is not disused!






Instructions



		Please email to: gis@cambridgeshire.gov.uk

				etc

				etc





















Traffic Data

		Parish Name						Inbound						Outbound

		Date of Publication		Dates of Data Range (28 Day)		Location of Data Taken		85% Speed		Average Speed		Vehicle Count		85% Speed		Average Speed		Vehicle Count		Max speed

				16.10.2018 -08.11.2018		Holme Lane 		41		34		13078								78

		11.12.2018		9.11.2018 - 10.12.2018		Station Rd E		34		29		13423								88

		16.1.2019		10.12.18-16.1.2019		Station Rd W 		34		29		13872								75

		17.2.19		17.1.19 - 17.2.18		Holme Lane 		41		31		17878								97

		27.3.19		11.3.19-27.3.19*		Station Rd E		34		29		11589								67		* no data  for 18 Feb to 11 March

				27.3.19-28.4.19		Station Rd W 		34		29		11027								87

				28.4.19 - 29.5.19		Station Rd E		31		26		13730								77

				1.6.19-20.7.19		Holme Lane 		40		32		23773								79

		28.8.19		20.7.19 -13.8.19		Station Rd E		34		29		13850								70

				14.8.19-12.9.19		Station Rd W		32		27		12835								57

				12.9.19-1.11.19		Station Rd by shop E		34		29		18177								74

		31.12.19		1.11.19-22.12.19		Holme Lane 		40		32		27793								83

		21.1.20		22.12.19-20.1.2020		Station rd by shop W		33		28		9616								68

		4.5.20		20.1.20- 1.3.20		station rd shop Eastb		34		29		24714								68

		4.5.20		1.3.20 - 3.5.20		Cemetery, westb		35		29		14414								77

		22.6.20		3.5.20 - 9.6.20		Holme Lane  		42		32		22875								82

		30.7.20		9.6.20-29.7.20		Station Rd shop E then W		34		28		17180								63		*12 days no data

		1.9.20		29.7.20 - 28.8.20		Station rd shop W		33		28		8334								56

		16.10.20		28.8.20-15.10.20		Cemetery, westbound		34		28		16671								80

		16.11.20		16.10.20- 15.11.20		Cememtery Eastbound		30		25		13118								58

		18.1.21		16.11.20-18.1.21		cem west till 6.1 then e		30		25		18593								65

		24.2.21		18.1.21-24.2.21		cem east		31		25		10293								63

		10.2.21		22.1.21-10.2.21		Holmewood		36		29		5313								63

		14.4.21		9.3.21-23.3.21		Station Rd westbound		31		26		2423								58		* road closure/no data 2 weeks

		1.6.21		24.4.21 -31.5.21		Cemetery Eastbound		32		26		22886								83

		1.6.21		24.4.21-31.5.21		Holmewood		36		29		22922								65






HOLME PARISH COUNCIL

Parish Clerk: Mrs. J Oshorn
Home Farm
24 Church 5t
Holme
FPeterborough
Cambs.
FE7 3FE

Tel. Mo. 91487 831451
holmeparishclerk@gmail.com

18 June 2621

Dear Ms Bell

26/00923/REM - 25 homes, Pingle Bank, Holme - Reserwved Matters

Holme Parish Council has discussed this application, and on 6 June a
public consultation meeting was held. 4 residents were present.

A document (A) 1s attached which is a record of the points brought up
and discussed at the meeting and should be read in conjunction with
this letter.

On the whole the Councillors are disappointed with the reserved
matters revised plans and I set out below why this is.

1) Footpath along Pingle Bank.

a.

Chapter 3.3 of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide (HDG) sets
out the minimum road and footpath reguirements. Pingle Bank
iz a through road and a bus route and takes local traffic to
Conington, through traffic to the Al southbound, is used as
a shortcut for people travelling north from the Al towards
YaxleysRamsey and is the route for traffic to the
airfield/flying club as well as being used by farm machinery
to work on adjoining fields. It is also a popular walking
and cycling route for local people. It could be classified
as a Secondary Route (HDG). As such the road width needs to
be a minimum of 5.5 m and the footpath 2m. Even if it were
classified as a Tertiary Route, the road width should be
4.8m and footpath Zm. The plans submitted show a non-

Page 81 of 210



compliant 1.8 m footpath width, and the existing road (in
particular where it narrows just by the start of the
development site) is simply too narrow along most of its
length to accommodate both a satisfactory road width and a
suitable footpath. Yet a footpath is important here to
promote safety and wellbeing. A more creative approach has
to be sought.

b. There are currently roadside parking spaces along the east
side of Pingle bank. The residents use these for parking and
have done for many Jyears and the road is indeed marked to
show this as parking space. The fear is that all of these
spaces will be lost to accommodate the proposed footpath,
leaving residents and wisitors nowhere to park. It is not
safe to park on the busy Station Roads/Bee&, and Pingle Bank
further towards the south is too narrow and has deep ditches
each side. 2 homes on Pingle bank (no & and Pingle Bank
House) do not have any off road parking space at all to use.
Currently 4 residents living on the east side of Pingle Bank
need disabled parking. Many of the homes are owned by Chorus
and they should be consulted as their tenants will he
affected by the loss of amenity.

c. The crossing point across Pingle Bank at the Station Rd end
is not compliant with the Manual for Streets (MfS) Chapter
6.3.12 which reguires that crossings are perpendicular to
the road to be crossed - this should be moved further to the
south.

d. Please refer to document A for additional comments.

2) Pedestrian Crossing Point over Station Rd.

a. Position: The crossing shown is far too close to the bend of
Station Road. The MfS indicates at Chapter 7.5 that the
stopping distance at 3@mph is 46m (43m with bonnet length
included). The crossing is situated 9.6 metres east fraom the
edge of the driveway to the bungalow “Winshury” according to
a dimensioned plan from the developer I have been sent and
the proposed site for the crossing point is therefore much
less than 46m away from the apex of the hend. The crossing
point is definitely not safe at this point and the Council
objects strongly to this siting.

b. Please refer to the Speed Indictor Dewvice records submitted
regularly to Cambs Highways (document B attached) which show
that the V85 figure for this area of station road is 32mph -
core data can be provided on demand. The stopping distance
would therefore be more than 4ém.

Page 82 of 210



c. Type: The crossing over this busy road (BEEG) which takes
traffic from the Al to Ramsey and beyond including a large
proportion of HGYs carrying fruit and vegetables to/from the
packing plants to the East as well as heawy local traffic
needs to be properly signed and marked and at the very least
a Belisha beacon marked zebra crossing is reguired, although
a light controlled Pelican or Puffin would he the preferred
and by far the safest option here. The Council understands
that several solar solutions are available if no electricity
can be provided. The priority here is to keep pedestrians
safe, many of whom will be children. The HDG at point 4.1
(4 says that people should be put before traffic.

d. Please refer to document A.

3) Design

a. The Overall feeling is that the designs submitted for 3
different house types are too similar and there is not
enough variety in the styles and little architectural
merit in the proposal as it stands. Much as Councillors
agree that the houses should blend in with the existing
housing, it is nevertheless important to produce both a
cohesive and an attractive design bearing in mind that
the HDG states that “good design is an integral part of
systainable development”. The houses basically all look
the same and some more creative design is reguired here
- more detail in document A.

b. There is little sense of place in this conventional grid-
iron layout and there are some specific issues with the
designs covered in the attached document & regarding the
public realm-facing fencing which should be revised to
brick walls according to HDG 3.8; wisitor parking spaces
which hawve been reduced in number to 8 for 25 houses
which is guite simply not enough; rear parking for plots
1, 4 & which is inconvenient for owners/tenants and may
lead to parking in the street.

c. Please refer to document A.

4) Ecology/Environmental Plans
a. The plans show a public open space, but it is not
clear what this is to be for. The HOG says that (3.6)
all public spaces should be defined and designed to
fulfil specific roles and functions for a range of
users. This plan shows a grass area which is only to

Page 83 of 210



be cut once a year which may therefore not be suitable
for children to play on and will then inewvitably
become contaminated by dogs. What use is enwvisaged, is
any infrastructure to be provided (play surface or
equipment, goal posts?) and what arrangements are
envisaged for its maintenance?

b. The Council welcomes the introduction of nesting
bricks and such like for wildlife.

. How is noise nuisance from the airfield to he
mitigated?

The Councillors would like to meet with you on site to
help you to fully understand the issues they are facing
with these proposals. Would you be able to contact me to
fix an appointment, please.

The Council would also wish you to consult with the
officer dealing with the 0l1d Coal Yard application
(28/989/0UT - Karina Adams) as a Pedestrian crossing owver
Station Road is also shown on that application and a
Joined up approach would be sensible when reaching a
resolution to item 2 above.

Yours sincerely

Mr=. Janice Oshorn
Clerk to Holme Parish Council

Page 84 of 210



Pingle Bank Planning

Points made at the public meeting

a. Footpath.

1.

ii.

iii.

iv.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Narrow Road cannot accommodate 1.8m footpath and still be
a satisfactory Road width, it would reduce to 4.3m at the
narrow end. This is contrary to the recommendations in the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

The footpath should actually be 2m according to the Design
Guide.

This is a bus route. 415 bus (Wednesdays only) would need to
be able to get through and road should be 7m according to
Design guide.

Access for emergency and farm vehicles, especially to
airfield. (Fire risk)

Loss of amenity for homes without their own parking spaces
and those using the roadside to park when visitinghomes
along Pingle Bank. No suitable alternative parking places are
available. At least 4 homes currently require disabled
parking.

Possibility of adverse possession being invoked - people have
parked here for years.

2 homes on Pingle Bank do not actually have any spaces for
off road parking. There is nowhere local for them to park
other than on Pingle Bank.

The crossing point over the top of Pingle Bank is dangerous
and far too close to Station Road, and also on a bend which is
not acceptable according to the MfS. The crossing point must
be perpendicular to the kerb, therefore further South, to be
safe.

Possibility of rerouting footpath to the west via the Old Coal
Yard site?

b. Pedestrian Crossing point, Station Road

2 issues- location and type.

i.
ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Location

Proximity to the bend. Visibility is compromised.

Fast road - V85 is 32mph. (30mph limit). High speeds up to 80+
are recorded occasionally.

Health and safety audit should take place. If there were to be an
accident here who would be responsible?

Are Police highway safety people consulted?

Per Manual for Streets stopping distance is 40m from sight point
and the crossing point should be far further west.

Joined up approach with old Coal Yard scheme is desirable.
Type

Any crossing must be prominently marked, signed and lit -
suggestion of solar Belisha beacons and zebra crossing, if not a

Page 85 of 210



vii.
viii.

full Pelican or Puffin crossing. Safety is paramount. Particularly
when approaching from the East.

Traffic calming could be an option.

Pedestrian safety is paramount.

Ecology/Environment plan.

i.

ii.

jii.
iv.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

iX.

Possibility of bins not being emptied because of access problems
around new estate - solve problems before they occur.

What is the grassland area for? It is not clear what use is
intended. (Design Guide). If this is not a playing field then it will
become a dog fouling area and this is not acceptable. If a play
area is any equipment being provided?

Ball games against the wall of plot 14 could be undesirable.

Who is going to maintain this area and enforce the replacement
of dead/dying plants and cut the grass and hedges etc.? Danger
of this area becoming an eyesore if this agreement (with ?) is not
properly structured.

Street lighting. None is shown. Is any intended? Dark skies are
important here.

. Design.

It is difficult to appreciate designs on line drawings, colour would
be helpful.

Layout of estate is unimaginative and in straight lines/grid iron
pattern, old fashioned and promotes no sense of community or
place.

Urban layout for a country village is not appropriate.

What is the purpose of the narrowing of the spine road outside
plots 18 and 19 and if this is for speed control why is this not also
employed outside plots 24 and 25?7

3 homes have parking spaces at the rear which may encourage
parking on Pingle Bank as these are not so convenient to use.
There are timber fences shown which should be brick walls (plots
1, 4, 5,14, 15, 17) (Design Guide) and the dividing fences at the
road frontage are not needed and unsightly, as well as possibly
impeding the view for turning/emerging vehicles.

Individual houses all look very similar. There needs to be a
variety of styles, using features such as gables, dormers, porches
and canopies to make them more interesting as well as some
variations in materials, doors and windows to break up the
sameness.

This is a lost opportunity for some good and creative design
which could enhance this area.

Visitor Parking reduced to 8 not 12 spaces. More (6?) could be
provided along the southern side of the spine road which would
help accommodate extra vehicles.(expected 2 per house plus at
least 3 in the bigger houses, maybe trailers and caravans as on
Pingle bank and visitors, deliveries, tradesmen etc. Need to
avoid people parking on the roadside and stopping through traffic
i.e. bin lorry.

Is this to be an adopted highway?

Page 86 of 210



General points:

Noise from airfield — loss of buffer of the sheds which may make the noise level unacceptable both
here and in the village. Mitigation?

To request meeting between planning officers for Old Coal Yard and Pingle Bank to ensure joined up
approach to Crossing point and footpath.

To request meeting between HPC and planning officer/Members of DMC to show exactly the
problem with the proposed crossing point.

Method of heating?
To consult Marge Beutell re bin emptying and how to avoid problems
Plan is wrong as marked Long Drove where it should be Station Rd

ECMain Line is not disused!

Page 87 of 210



012 J0 88 abed

Date of Publication

11.12.2018
16.1.2019
17.2.19
27.3.19

28.8.19

31.12.19
21.1.20
4.5.20
4.5.20
22.6.20
30.7.20
1.9.20
16.10.20
16.11.20
18.1.21
24.2.21
10.2.21
14.4.21
1.6.21
1.6.21

Parish Name

Dates of Data Range (28 Day)
16.10.2018 -08.11.2018
9.11.2018 -10.12.2018
10.12.18-16.1.2019
17.1.19-17.2.18
11.3.19-27.3.19*
27.3.19-28.4.19
28.4.19-29.5.19
1.6.19-20.7.19
20.7.19-13.8.19
14.8.19-12.9.19
12.9.19-1.11.19
1.11.19-22.12.19
22.12.19-20.1.2020
20.1.20- 1.3.20
1.3.20-3.5.20
3.5.20-9.6.20
9.6.20-29.7.20
29.7.20-28.8.20
28.8.20-15.10.20
16.10.20- 15.11.20
16.11.20-18.1.21
18.1.21-24.2.21
22.1.21-10.2.21
9.3.21-23.3.21
24.4.21-31.5.21
24.4.21-31.5.21

Location of Data Taken
Holme Lane

Station Rd E

Station Rd W

Holme Lane

Station Rd E

Station Rd W

Station Rd E

Holme Lane

Station Rd E

Station Rd W

Station Rd by shop E
Holme Lane

Station rd by shop W
station rd shop Eastb
Cemetery, westb
Holme Lane

Station Rd shop E then W
Station rd shop W
Cemetery, westbound
Cememtery Eastbound
cem west till 6.1 then e
cem east

Holmewood

Station Rd westbound
Cemetery Eastbound
Holmewood

85% Speed
41
34
34
41
34
34
31
40
34
32
34
40
33
34
35
42
34
33
34
30
30
31
36
31
32
36

Inbound

Outbound

Average Speed @ Vehicle Count B5% Speec\verage Speechicle CotMax speed

34
29
29
31
29
29
26
32
29
27
29
32
28
29
29
32
28
28
28
25
25
25
29
26
26
29

13078
13423
13872
17878
11589
11027
13730
23773
13850
12835
18177
27793

9616
24714
14414
22875
17180

8334
16671
13118
18593
10293

5313

2423
22886
22922

78
88
75
97
67
87
77
79
70
57
74
83
68
68
77
82
63
56
80
58
65
63
63
58
83
65

* no data for 18 Feb to 11 March

*12 days no data

* road closure/no data 2 weeks



HOLME FARISH COUMCIL

Parish Clerk: Mrs. J Oshorn
Home Farm
24 Church 5t
Holme
FPeterborough
Cambs.
FE7 3FE

Tel. Mo. 91487 831451
holmeparishclerk@gmail.com

28 June 2@z
Dear Ms Bell

26/00923/REM - 25 homes, Pingle Bank, Holme - Reserwved
Matters/Footpath and Pedestrian Crossing layouts

fll the Councillors at Holme Parish Council have seen these plans and
I give bhelow their response.

1) Footpath/Road along Pingle Bank.

a. As already stated in June 2621, the Huntingdonshire Design
Guide (HDG) sets out the minimum road and footpath
requirements. Pingle Bank could be classified as a Secondary
Route. As such the road width needs to be a minimum of 5.5 m
and the footpath 2m. Even if it were classified as a
Tertiary Route, the road width should be 4.8m and footpath
2m. The new plans submitted still show a non-compliant 1.8 m
footpath width, and the existing road (in particular where
it narrows just by the start of the development site) is
simply too narrow along most of its length to accommodate
hoth a satisfactory road width and a suitable footpath.

The new proposal does nothing to improve this and the
proposal is still considered unsatisfactory, showing road
widths of 4.8m and 5.3m with a footpath of 1.8m, all
contrary to the HOG recommendations.

b. As a positive suggestion, could an alternative route for the

footpath be considered, going behind the development to
Station Road wia the 0ld Coal Yard site? This has been

Page 89 of 210



sugeested before. Ohviously the current developer may not
have control of this land but it might be a solution.

. There are currently roadside parking spaces along the east

side of Pingle Bank. The residents use these for parking and
have done for many years and the road is indeed marked to
show this as parking space. These spaces will be lost to
accommodate the proposed footpath, leaving residents and
visitors nowhere to park and they will probably park on the
footpath making it unsafe and useless for its intended
pedestrian use. Alternatively they will have to park in the
road exacerhbating the narrowness of the road and potentially
this is harmful in terms of access for larger emergency
vehicles, oil lorries, refuse collection and farm traffic as
well as making turning indout of driveways more difficult
for all properties.

Bearing in mind that this road is the main access road to
Peterborough Business Airport from the Be&S the road must he
able to allow passage of fire appliances, ambulances etc. at
all hours and pedestrian safety must be provided too.

The proposal is still unacceptable in current form.

2) Pedestrian Crossing Point over Station Rd.

d.

The crossing point in this new location is much better than
before and is broadly acceptable. However the Council’s wiew
is that the crossing must be upgraded to a controlled
crossing to make it safe to use, given the high speeds of
tratfic along this road and the relatively minimal
visibhility from Pingle Bank corner. Many of the pedestrians
using this crossing will be children going tosfrom the
primary school or to the bus stop for the secondary school
in Sawtry on Short Drove. A Puffin or a Belisha
controlled/marked crossing is reguired here.

fdvance signage to alert drivers coming particularly from
the level crossing direction is reguired, or drivers will
unexpectedly come upon pedestrians in the road as they
accelerate away from the corner.

3) Pedestrian Crossing point over Pingle Bank

a. This will only work if the hedge located to the right
itowards the level crossing) i(helonging to the homes
on the corner, Chorus properties) is regularly cut
back to enable traffic coming from the East to be seen

Page 90 of 210



bhefore people commit to cross. Is there some way of
conditioning this? However the positioning is
acceptable. The crossing point would also need to he
clearly marked.

The response of the Highways authority is awaited with interest.
Yours sincerely

Mr=. Janice Oshorn
Clerk to Holme Parish Council

Page 91 of 210



/‘-‘

Development Management Committee : e,
Huntingdonshire

@ Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref:20/00923/REM DISTRIET COUNGCIL
Date Created: 29/06/2022 | gcation: Holme ©Crouncopgh cnd dosons o 202

o]

(59 i~
N o
AR ° ’ I/ “FNatioral atu

,’/6\\?/':\\ E: & A/ \ :

o g
#&ﬁ %00

Key
7/, Scheduled Ancient Monuments
[ Listed Buildings
Conservation Area
|~ /] The Site




1gle Bank House

REVISION NOTES

ﬂa\nor Mews

Bridge Street
Ives
ingdon_
| cambs PE27 5UW

TeI64480 494969
J1Fax: 01480 493939
{ Email: enquiries@partnersinplanning.co.uk

PROJECT

|-PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL
| -"DEVEL OPMENT, PACKING STATION,
N \\PING\E BANK, HOLME.

RAWING TITLE
' LOCATION PLAN

BQAWN\DJM SCALE  1.9500

Page 93 of 210 DATE  FEB 16

WG NO.
2009.29/PB1




0TZ J0 v6 abed

2.4m x 43m Visibility splays

I—ILEIION

REV | DATE BY |REVISION NOTES

A 15.04.21 |CWM|Added dimensions and visibility splays

B 27.04.21 |CWM|Added affordable housing mix

Suite 2, Clare Hall,
St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,

Cambs, PE27 4WY

© COPYRIGHT

Tel: 01480 494969
Email: enguirnes@planningondarchitecture.co.uk
Web: www.planningandarchiteclure.co.uk

PROJECT

Residential development off
Pingle Bank, Holme,
Peterborough,
Cambridgeshire, PE7 3RJ

CLIENT

Mr N Colleft

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Block Plan

DRAWN BY SCALE

CWM 1:250 @ Al

DATE DWG. No. REV.

28/02/20 10/07/B]1 B




0T¢ 40 G6 abed

BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM 2

|
L
I

a8

0| KITCHEN DINING AREA

m 01 | [T
i

FRONT ELEVATION PLOTS 1-2, 5-6, AND 18-25

= r—
|
3698

TanG

2150

H.

o 1m0

LANDING

LIVING AREA

|
[

i o
(LINEN
\LINE BEDROOM 1

1l

il

N[;
L]
C ]
[ ]
L
]
]
Hp
]
[
L
[
“@
]
|

]

T | [ 0] | [ —' |
— § kichen |02 IS0 kircHen R
REAR ELEVATION PLOTS 18-19 AND 24-25 REAR ELEVATION PLOTS 1-2, 5-6 AND 20-23 i }
2| 5 g
) LIVING ROOM LIVING ROOM I
g g
A J REDROOM 1
ﬁ ) { | a000 L 3574 | L 1644 1272 574 |
] ] = GROUND FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 1-2, 5-6 AND 20-23  Gia93.19m? (10031 FIRST FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 1-2, 5-6, 21 AND 23
SIDE ELEVATIONS PLOTS 19 AND 25 SIDE ELEVATIONS PLOTS 2, 6, 21 AND 23
PLOT 22 SIDE WINDOWS
TO BE OBSCURED GLAZED
| } [{ 1] L }
— il : — : — = PLOTS 1-6 TO HAVE -
D U‘L jD N CAST STONE WINDOW HEADERS AND SOFFITS
= L COLOURED WINDOW FRAMES
BLACK FASCIAS AND SOFFITS
SIDE ELEVATIONS PLOTS 18 AND 24 SIDE ELEVATIONS PLOT 20 AND 22 SIDE ELEVATIONS PLOTS 1 AND 5

REV | DATE BY | REVISION NOTES
A 23.09.21 |CWM| REMOVED PLOT 22 FF WINDOW3
B 17.12.21 |CWM| REMOVED PLOT 21 FF WINDOWS

Suite 2, Clare Hall,
St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,

Cambs, PE27 4WY

(©) copvricHr \ ¢ |
Tel: 01480 494969 PARTNERS

Email: enquiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk in PLANNING
Web: www.planningandarchiteciure.co.uk and ARCHITECTURE

PROJECT

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
OFF PINGLE BANK,

HOLME

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

CLIENT

MR N COLLETT
HOUSE TYPES PLOTS 1-2, 5-6 AND 18-25
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

PRAWEEY scaE 1:100 @ Al
NFM 10 20 30 40 50 40

DATE DWG. No. REV.

29/02/20 10/07/101/02 | B




= =  BEDROOM |
DINING AREA 5|  KITCHEN o= [ 3
o6 89 3
. = KO
E 8| [ cLoaxs (CIjE O e
LIVING AREA § ﬂ'
2 g
) HALL )
L ' ™ ' | BEDROOM 2
J s H 2066 I
GROUND FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 3-4 AND 7-14  Gla79.19m? (852ft%) FIRST FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 3 AND 7-13
L 3430 [ 2144 I
1 BEDROOM 1
g
BEDROOM 2 LANDING
FIRST FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 4 AND 14
I L
T T T T R 1 T T T

)

8092

%

]
| =
| =

I O[O0 L
1] 0 | @

4964

[

I
=
| |

=

FRONT ELEVATION PLOTS 3-4 AND 7-14 REAR ELEVATION PLOTS 3-4 AND 7-14

PLOTS 1-6 TO HAVE -

L CAST STONE WINDOW HEADERS AND SOFFITS
COLOURED WINDOW FRAMES

BLACK FASCIAS AND SOFFITS

REV | DATE BY | REVISION NOTES
A 23.09.21 |CWM| REMOVED PLOT 7 FF WINDOWS

Suite 2, Clare Hall,

]
I ..
=S|

SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 3 AND 7-13 SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 4 AND 14 St lves Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,
Cambs, PE27 4WY

(C) copvricH .

Tel: 01480 494949 PARTNERS
Email: enquiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk in PLANNING
Web: www . planningandarchitecture.co.uk and ARCHITECTURE ©
? ; FROJECT
HL JE PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
L] L OFF PINGLE BANK,
HOLME
— _ — |- SIQTMBRIDGESHIRE
m m MR N COLLETT
— — — DRAWING TITLE
| I . - HOUSE TYPES PLOTS 3-4 AND 7-14
SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 3 AND 7-13 SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 4 AND 14 FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
DRAWN BY SCALE '| :'| OO @ A2
NFM 10 20 30 40 50 60
DATE DWG., No. REV.
Page 96 of 210 29/02/20 10/07/101/01 | A




’ | 3640 1 4144

BEDROOM 1

BRz

i L
1T

L]

"@.

—
-

I

—

KITCHEN

DINING AREA

4964

3912

CLOAKS(_II

[u
[
]

|
|
=

F400
£504

Il

FRONT ELEVATION PLOT 15 FRONT ELEVATION PLOTS 16-17 LIVING AREA
Ll 1l , :
STUDY 3
= i; ﬁl :

BEDROOM 2 —

s HALL T
GIROUND FLOOR PLILLKN PLOT l..% GIA IIO.SQm; [1190f3)

D D KITCHEN
= DINING AREA

[

amz

0T¢ J0 /6 abed

REAR ELEVATION PLOT 15 REAR ELEVATION PLOTS 16-17
LIVING AREA
. BEDROOM 2 N
3 : » 2080 2000 |‘ 3450
€ D o b 4 L - D GROUND FLOOR PLAN PLOT 16 Gia 110520 (1150 FIRST FLOOR PLAN PLOT 16
o | e | — I { 4146 0 3650 | }

3012
Aoz

DINING AREA

SIDE ELEVATIONS SIDE ELEVATIONS SIDE ELEVATIONS

oo n

L

A T]
brraF.1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN PLOT 17 GiA 110.52m? (1190 FIRST FLOOR PLAN PLOT 17
i—| - — ] —
Rev[ Date [ BY | REVISION NOTES
SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 15 AND 17 SIDE ELEVATION PLOTS 15 AND 17 :
KIN PS5 QRIFLIAS 5 Suite 2, Clare Hall,

St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,

Cambs, PE27 4WY

© COPYRIGHT @
Tel: 01480 494969 PARTNERS

Email: enguiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk in PLANNING
Web: www.planningandarchiteciure.co.uk and ARCHITECTURE

PROJECT

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
OFF PINGLE BANK,

HOLME

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

CLIENT

MR N COLLETT
HOUSE TYPES PLOTS 15-17
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

BRERNET At 1:100 @ Al
NFM 10 20 30 40 50 40

DATE DWG. No. REV.

29/02/20 10/07/101/03




0TZ J0 86 abed

SK

Z

770 W S{;}b .
4 '?O | [/
| 4 O : - [ | propased uncantiolied

d | pedestrian crossing |

, l Proposed uncontrolled

" | pedestrian crossing % -
| <
| e
I -
| #' -
-t
| -
"# A%
| b‘q,((\
/ | .
! /&
I
| L
L -
/tc/ KEY
—— _r055ing point visibility splays
o = . Proposed asphalt carriageway
‘/ — e Highway boundary
Extent of Section 278 works Proposed asphalt footway
— — — ————— Visibility splay 2.4m x 43.0m (30mph)
Proposed grass verge
T Existing overhead cables
\ SNP — Street name plate }V,/__.e-;;s; o o .
:E_H'.-. _ RSx ~ Road sign WPIEIIIILN ehicle access (light)
Sropose ———{}——— Existing surface water sewer A
AN Vehicle access (heavy)
%5 Proposed adoptable BRSO
Highway Authority road gully s
ﬁ Tactile paving

Highway Authority

Q Proposed adoptable
concrete sandbag headwall

! Proposed footpath to narrow
to 1.5m adjacent Lo open
watercourse

! Existing private drive remain .

Existing private drive remain

‘ y PROJECT

Proposed residential development, Pingle Bank,

| ZA l _ Existing private drive remain |
7 | Holme, Peterborough
i

A Y
SN |
- W

.'II CLIENT
. A \ a NJC and Sons Farms Limited
n \ | u
CUTLINE ‘JI--JI.‘F- -%-.. .- 1--..JCUTUNE DRAWING TITLE

Highway Improvement Plan - North

seaes 1:200 @ AO

i ; " " ‘” I| A \ DJM

SCALE 1:200

DATE

16/06/22

OWG. Nao,

10/07/F1




0 z

+ M 4
SCALE 1:200

UBER

20

CUTLINE:fHIIt--ql
e 2

e

Proposed uncontrolled .

pedestrian crossing

v

4 Ll
gxshingd AT

EEEEmE

\

+IIIII‘CUTLINE
L1 & o

| Existing private drive remain

| Existing field access Lo remain

—

—

Proposed 5.5m wide access into residential

development from Pingle Bank

Proposed 5.5m wide access

into residential development
from Pingle Bank

Page 99 of 210

KEY

Crossing point visibility splays

— o w e Highway boundary

Extent of Section 278 works

—— —=— —— Visibility splay 2.4m x 43.0m
(unless otherwise stated)

Existing overhead cables
SHP —— Street name plate
RSx — Road sign

Existing surface water sewer
G_ Proposed adoptable
H Highway Authority road sully
Proposed adoptable
— e ﬂ Highway Authority

concrete sandbag headwall
Fall

2m x 2m pedestrian visibility splay

PROJECT

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Proposed asphalt carriageway

Proposed asphalt footway

Proposed grass verge

Vehicle access (light)

Proposed residential development, Pingle Bank,
Holme, Peterborough

NJC and Sons Farms Limited

Vehicle access (heavy)

j Tactile paving

DRAWN

DJM

DATE

16/06/22

Highway Improvement Plan - South

seaes 1:200@ AO

DWGE. No

10/07/F2

REV.




Existing private drive remain

Proposed uncontrolled
pedestrian crossing

CUTLINE S mm mm < \"
i \ a Proposed uncontrolled '
, edestrian crossin
Q‘ 4 rr e ,'/ p g “/
\. /'f a® /
*\ .,/f . it / . d /
Nn, o ’-“
\o- d " :
/ - -
. -"-'
C— _ _ PR ,"'.
: .h..-._.._._-+.--#-

.'/."
/

i
/
yi
3

Existing private drive remain

/ station Road

| Existing private drive remain

I Existing field access to remain

Proposed uncontrolled
pedestrian crossing

O
o
O 1
Proposed footpath to narrow
to 1.5m adjacent to open
watercourse
Q
o
L0 .

Existing private drive remain

Proposed 5.5m wide access into residential
development from Pingle Bank

Existing private drive remain

KEY
Site boundary -
Proposed asphalt carriageway
—ww m—w s Highway boundary
Extent of Section 278 works Proposed asphalt footway
— — — —%— — —— Visibility splay 2.4m x 43.0m (30mph)
PI’OpOSEd grass verge
T Existing overhead cables
SNP — Street name plate 7 _ _
RSx ~ Road sign // % Vehicle access (light)
———-{F——— Existing surface water sewer %
. Vehicle access (heavy)
______ G_ Proposed adoptable ) !
Highway Authority road gully —
Tactile paving
Proposed adoptable =%
————————————— ﬂ Highway Authority
concrete sandbag headwall
NOTES WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED
PLANNING DRAWINGS '10/07/SL1 REV A" &
1. Contractors must check all dimensions on site. Only figured 10/07/11" (17/00101/0UT)
dimensions are to be worked from. Discrepancies must be
reported to the Architect or Engineer before proceeding.
: © This drawing is copyright.
]
\ 2. Reproduced from OS Sitemap ® by permission of Ordnance
'- Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty's
‘ Stationery Office. © Crown copyright 2008. All rights
s ) reserved. Licence number 100007126.
= Proposed 5.5m wide access
. i idential devel
\‘ - }:;ﬁ.,rs;f‘:;: g:nkeve . a 3. Until technical approval has been obtained from the
. relevant authorities, all drawings are issued as preliminary
\ and not for construction. Should the Contractor commence
[ site work prior to the approval being given it is entirely at REV/| DESCRIPTION DRN | CHD | DATE
\ their own risk. [ PRELIMINARY ] INFORMATION [] TENDER
\Rs3
re . 4. Woods Hardwick cannot accept any discrepancies in terms [ ] CONSTRUCTION [ ] ASBUILT
\ _ of coordinates or any other information deciphered from
% ek .dwg files.
\._ ) SCALE 1:200 @ A1 DATE ~ OCTOBER 2020
. s 3. The exact location and level of all existing sewers, drains
b and services are to be confirmed on site prior to the
\'_. : commencement of any works. DRAWN ML CHK  PK
]
\ . 6. Works to be undertaken in accordance with Cambridgeshire
. County Council - Housing Estate Road Construction DRAWING NO. 18859-PBHO-5-500 REV -
AR ‘ Specification (April 2018).
3 . TITLE
Ay : PINGLE BANK
% \. SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL HOLME
\ -
i k\, \ In addition to the hazards, risks normally associated with the —
% . type of work detailed on this drawing, note the following SECTION 278 AGREEMENT
\ \ significant risks and information. GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
\x " 8| Construction:
\ .
\\ : j Quantity, location & level of buried utilities and/or /\ &
- . structures unknown. Contractor to undertake detailed \.J W d H d k
\ ; / W
) survey prior to the commencement of any works and 00 S a r ]C
-\\ confirm with statutory utility providers that proposed Architecture | Engineering | Planning | Surveying
\ : works do not affect their apparatus.
) - _
\\ 2. Close proximity to existing overhead statutory utility BEDFORD : HEAD OFFICE BIRMINGHAM
\\ ' cables. 15-17 Goldington Road Fort Dunlop, Fort Parkway
\ g ' . . ) . . Bedford MK40 3NH Birmingham B24 9FE
\ ) For information relating to end use, maintenance, demolition, T+.+44 (011234268862 T- +44 (O) 121 6297784
\ I see the health and safety file. - ©) * ©)
\ ,
\\ N 1 ibf d that all works will be carried out by a competent ONLINE: mail@woodshardwick.com | woodshardwick.com
Page 1 2 :
X - ontractor, where appropriate, to an approved method
: ' statement.
02 4 6 10 20 30 - o PLEASE CONSIDER THE ENVIRONMENT BEFORE PRINTING THIS DRAWING

SCALE 1:200



Agenda Iltem 4b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18" JULY 2022
Case No:  19/01258/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: ERECTION OF 4 DWELLINGS WITH GARAGING AND
PARKING FOLLOWING THE DEMOLITION OF THE
EXISTING INDUSTRIAL BUILDINGS

Location: LAND NORTH EAST OF THE LAURELS FENTON
ROAD FENTON

Applicant: MR AUGSTEIN
Grid Ref: 531775 279689
Date of Registration: 24.07.2019

Parish: PIDLEY-CUM-FENTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee DMC as Fenton Parish Council’s recommendation of
refusal is contrary to the Officer’s recommendation of approval.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application site currently hosts a collection of industrial barns
which are located to the north-east of a cluster of residential
properties that front Fenton Road. The site is rectilinear in shape
and measures approximately 0.5 hectares. The sites northern
boundaries are defined by soft established landscaping with
open countryside beyond.

1.2 The site is located in the countryside and not within an
established built-up area, albeit the site sits within a small cluster
of six existing dwellings. From the proposed point of access to
Fenton Road, the built-up area of Warboys is located 225m to
the north west. Pidley cum Fenton to the south west is
approximately 1.7km away. The access point is as existing via
Padgetts Lane, which is a public right of way which provides a
link to Heath Road in Warboys to the north and Fen Road in
Pidley to the south. The total floor space of the existing buildings
proposed for demolition is 1313m2.

1.3  The site does not lie within or adjacent to a Conservation Area.

The site is adjacent to the Grade Il Listed Laurels Farmhouse
which fronts Fenton Road. The site lies within Flood Zone 1 as

Page 101 of 210



1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

identified by the Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment and the Environment Agency Maps for Flooding.

This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition
of existing industrial buildings and the construction of four
detached dwellings with associated access improvements,
landscaping, and parking areas.

The scheme has been amended over the course of the
application to address concerns raised by Officers. The proposed
amendments have reduced the quantum of development from 9
dwellings to 4. The proposed development would consist of the
following mix of units:

Plot 1: 3 bed detached house (140m2)

Plot 2: 3 bed link detached house (144m2)

Plot 3: 4 bed link detached house (153m2)

Plot 4: 5 bed detached house (243m2)

The application site currently hosts a collection of industrial barns
which are located to the north-east of a cluster of residential
properties that front Fenton Road. The site is rectilinear in shape
and measures approximately 0.5 hectares. The sites northern
boundaries are defined by soft established landscaping with
open countryside beyond. The site does not lie within or adjacent
to a Conservation Area. The site is adjacent to the Grade Il
Listed Laurels Farmhouse which fronts Fenton Road. The site
lies within Flood Zone 1 as identified by the Huntingdonshire
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and the Environment Agency
Maps for Flooding. The site is located in the countryside and not
within an established built-up area, albeit the site sits within a
small cluster of six existing dwellings. From the proposed point of
access to Fenton Road, the built-up area of Warboys is located
225m to the north west.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (20th July 2021)
(NPPF 2021) sets out the three objectives - economic, social and
environmental - of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2021 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2021 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):
e delivering a sufficient supply of homes;
e building a strong, competitive economy;
e achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;
e conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment

Page 102 of 210



2.3 Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design Guide are
also relevant and materials considerations

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)

LP1 Amount of Development

LP2 Strategy for Development

LP4 Contributing to infrastructure delivery
LP5 Flood Risk

LP6 Wastewater Management

LP8 Key Service Centres

LP9 Small settlements

LP10 The Countryside

LP11 Design Context

LP12 Design implementation

LP13 Place making

LP14 Amenity

LP15 Surface water

LP16 Sustainable travel

LP17 Parking and vehicle movement
LP25 Housing Mix

LP30 Biodiversity and geodiversity

LP31 Trees, woodland, hedges and hedgerows
LP33 Rural Buildings

LP34 Heritage Assets and their Settings
LP37 Ground Contamination and Ground Water Pollution

3.2  Supplementary Planning Guidance

Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017) including:

1 Introduction:

1.6 Design principles

2.1 Context and local distinctiveness

2.5 Landscape character areas

2.7 Architectural character

3.5 Parking/ servicing

3.6 Landscape and Public Realm

3.7 Building Form

3.8 Building Detailing

4.1 Implementation

Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

Huntingdonshire Townscape and Landscape SPD (2022)
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2017
Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3

ECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide (CCC
SPD) 2012

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies

Page 103 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

PLANNING HISTORY

18/02362/PLID -change of use from light industrial use (B1) light
industrial to 3 dwellings (C3) - Prior approval change of use
approved

18/02361/PLID - change of use from light industrial use (B1) light
industrial to 2 dwellings (C3) - Prior approval change of use
approved

18/02360/PLID - Change of use from Light Industrial Use (B1(c)
to 3 dwellings (C3) — Prior approval change of use approved

18/02359/P3PPA - Change of use from Storage (Class B8) to
dwellings (Class C3) - Schedule 2, part 3, Class P — Prior
approval change of use refused

CONSULTATIONS

The application has been subject to five different periods of
consultation following the receipt of amended proposals and
revised plans. The comments received are summarised below.

Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council — Recommends refusal on the
following grounds:

25" August 2019

e Concerns over traffic and highway safety - Proper
entrance and footpaths either side would be required.
Would like to see Traffic calming, 40mph and would like
this to be reduced to 30mph with footpaths, pedestrian
crossings and additional lighting would all be required.

e |t was felt that the width of the road through the houses
was quite small for the number of cars with a few passing
places to get by.

e Lorry bin collections also caused concerns as a lorry
would not be able to get in. All bins would have to be
walked through the houses and be on the main road on
collection day and the night before.

e Other general concerns were pulling out on to the road, no
shops in walking distance. No footpaths to be able to
leave the development and walk anywhere safely.
Sewerage also caused concern and building within the
open countryside.

10" September 2021

e The development has the potential to cause issues for the
house where the bins will accumulate the night before
collection.

e They also felt that this would be overdevelopment of the
site if approved.

Page 104 of 210



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

e There is no net gain on the environmental impact as many
trees are being removed.

e itis noted that there may be a loss of employment with the
industrial units that are currently in use no longer being
available.

e The sustainable safety of the development with the
increase of families as there is no footpaths, street lights
and the speed limit is over 30mph.

13" May 2022

e Concerns over the bin collection day, the lighting, speed
limit and the lack of connectivity to Warboys. Therefore in
relation to LP9 of the local plan this was rejected by all of
the Parish councillors.

18" June 2022

e The Parish comments remain the same along with the
decision to reject this application.

e |tis of great concern to us with the lack of infrastructure,
lighting, footpaths etc that this has been in the past for
commercial use and not many people walking around the
area as they would be in and out in vehicles. With this
becoming residential the use changes and safety is of
most importance.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways — No objection is
raised. The information submitted confirms that there will be less
vehicle movements associated with the proposal than with the
existing use. it is also confirmed that the existing access is
acceptable for the proposed development. Therefore, the
proposal is unlikely to have any adverse impact on the public
highway should planning permission be approved. It is
suggested that the Local Planning authority consider the
sustainability of the development given there is no footway
connectivity to Warboys.

Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue — Should the Local Planning
authority be minded to approve the application, it is requested
that fire hydrants are secured by way of a Section 106
Agreement or planning condition. The location and number of fire
hydrants will be determined following a risk assessment. Access
and facilities for the Fire Service should also be provided in
accordance with the Building Regulations Approved Document
B5, section 16.

Cambridgeshire Public Rights of Way - No objection is raised.
Informatives are recommended.

Cambridgeshire Constabulary — It is confirmed that the area
experiences low crime rates. The proposed layout appears to be
acceptable in relation to crime prevention and the fear of crime
providing reasonable levels of natural surveillance. Suggestions

Page 105 of 210



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

6.1

are made in respect of bin collection, external lighting,
landscaping and access to rear gardens.

HDC Environmental Health — No comments or objections

HDC Landscape - Following the receipt of amended plans,
supports the application subject to a condition that requires the
landscaping to be completed in accordance with the approved
details.

HDC Trees — Having reviewed the revised plans and
Arboriculutral Impact Assessment, previous concerns have been
addressed. The development should be carried out in
accordance with the approved details in terms of the
development and tree protection measures.

HDC Conservation — it is confirmed that the scheme will not
cause harm to the setting of the listed building. It is requested
that a small outbuilding within the site to the rear of the
farmhouse is retained. Conditions are recommended to secure
details of the brick wall to be constructed between the site and
the listed building.

HDC Urban Design — Following amendments to reduce the
number of units, the application is supported subject to
conditions covering materials, architectural details, and boundary
treatments.

Environment Agency - No objection. However, it is believed that
the receiving Water Recycling Centre has limited permitted
capacity. Therefore, in order to prevent harm to the local water
environment, please confirm with Anglian Water that they can
receive the foul drainage without exceeding their permit limits
and that any necessary infrastructure updates will be made
ahead of occupation of the development”.

Anglian Water — No comment. Confirms that comments are only
provided on developments of 10 dwellings or more.

REPRESENTATIONS

One letter of objection has been received raising the following
concerns:

. The application is for a significant number of dwellings in a
rural location backing onto open countryside contrary to local
plan policy.

. The proposal does not fulfii the aims of sustainable
development.

. There are no local services or amenities.

. There is no footpath or cycle way to facilities nearby.

. There is no safe way to access the nearby bus stop.

Page 106 of 210



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

. 40mph road with poor visibility and no street lighting
represents a danger to highway safety

. There has been no consideration for any contamination
remedial works that may be necessary,
. The ecological site visit was conducted over one day and

appears to underestimate the rich variety of wildlife

ASSESSMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation,
government policy and guidance outline how this should be
done.

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of
the development plan, so far as material to the application, and
to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within
paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2021). The development plan is
defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development
plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area”.

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of:
¢ Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019)
e Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Local Plan (2021)
St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029
Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017)
Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018)
Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019)
Buckden Neighbourhood Plan (2021)
Bury Neighbourhood Plan (2021)

The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of the
land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97
(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting
that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of the
Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material
consideration and significant weight is given to this in
determining applications.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this reserved

matters application are:
e The Principle of Development

Page 107 of 210



Impact upon the Character of the Area
Impact upon Residential Amenity
Impact on Heritage Assets

Highway Safety and Parking
Biodiversity

Trees

Flooding and Drainage

Infrastructure

Other issues

Principle of Development

7.6

7.7

7.8

When determining if the principle of development is acceptable,
the key policies of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (the
Local Plan) to consider are as follows. LP2 which sets out the
broad overarching strategy for the quantum and location of
growth across the borough. Generally, the level of and access to
services that meet day to day needs should be commensurate
with the scale of the development. Policy LP10 defines the type
of development that would be acceptable in the countryside.
Policy LP16 seeks to ensure the provision of sustainable
transport in order to reduce the reliance on the private car. Policy
LP33 provides an opportunity for the conversion or replacement
outbuildings in the countryside, providing certain criteria are met.
Applications should be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. In this case, there are other material considerations to
have regard for, and this is considered further below.

Development Strategy

In terms of Policy LP2, the main objectives are:

- Concentrate development in locations which provide, or have
the potential to provide, the most comprehensive range of
services and facilities;

- Direct substantial new development to two strategic expansion
locations of sufficient scale to form successful, functioning new
communities;

- Provide opportunities for communities to achieve local
development aspirations for housing, employment, commercial
or community related schemes;

- Support a thriving rural economy;

- Protect the character of existing settlements and recognise the
intrinsic character and beauty of the surrounding countryside;

- Conserve and enhance the historic environment; and

- Provide complementary green infrastructure enhancement and
provision to balance recreational and biodiversity needs and to
support climate change adaptation.

Regarding the distribution of growth, Policy LP2 states that

approximately a quarter of the objectively assessed need for
housing, together with a limited amount of employment growth,

Page 108 of 210



7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

will be permitted on sites dispersed across the key service
centres and small settlements to support the vitality of these
communities and provide flexibility and diversity in the housing
supply. In addition, rural exception, small and windfall sites will
be permitted on sites which are in conformity with other policies
of this plan providing further flexibility in the housing supply.

The site is detached from the built-up areas of the nearby Key
Service Centre of Warboys which offers a moderate range of
services and facilities. The site is also considered to be
significantly detached from the smaller settlement of Pidley cum
Fenton with no safe access on foot and with limited access via
public transport.

It is considered that the site cannot be accessed safely from the
local road network by all future occupiers via sustainable
transport modes such as walking or cycling unless the routes
provided by the public rights of way are utilised, which may deter
some users due to the length of the route and the condition of
the footpath. Representations have been made by the Parish
Council and members of the public on this matter. There is
however access via public transport due to the presence of a bus
stop in close proximity to the site, although it should be
acknowledged there is a lack of pedestrian infrastructure linking
the site to the nearest bus stop. Whilst it is considered likely that
many future users of the site would access nearby services via
private car, it should be acknowledged that the number of
vehicular movements generated would be less than is generated
by the current use, which overall would reduce the amount of
trips generated from this site. This has been confirmed by the
Local Highways Authority Cambridgeshire County Council.

It should also be acknowledged that the short distance to
Warboys (approximately 225m) is accessible for some users on
foot or cycle, particularly in daytime hours. Therefore, whilst it is
recognised that future occupiers of the site would be reliant on
private vehicle use to access the nearest services and facilities,
the number of trips generated, and the short distance to Warboys
would represent a reduction in trip rates from and to the site. This
should be given positive weight in the planning balance.

Transport Sustainability

Notwithstanding this, the detachment to local services and
restricted ability for future householders of these dwellings to
access them via sustainable modes of transport leads to some
conflict with the first objective of the Strategy for Development in
Huntingdonshire under Policy LP2 of the Local Plan listed above
as well as Policy LP16 which states, “New development will be
expected to contribute to an enhanced transport network that
supports an increasing proportion of journeys being undertaken
by sustainable travel modes”.

Page 109 of 210



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

Balanced against this conflict is the significant material
consideration provided by the fall-back position of the local
planning authority previously having granted prior approval in
2019 for the conversion of the existing buildings to create 8
dwellings in total across the site under Schedule 2, Part 3, Class
PA of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015. Whilst this change of use
was deemed to be permitted but was never implemented,
nevertheless it demonstrates that the conversion of the existing
buildings to create a large-scale residential development is
possible and could be applied for successfully again. When
having regard to this as a genuine fall back position for the
applicant, the proposal in terms of the quantum of development
and the relative sustainability better complies with policies LP2
and LP16 of the Local Plan and should be considered more
favourably in this regard and carries significant weight in the
determination of the application.

Development in the countryside

It is noted that other policies of the Local Plan provide
opportunities for some development in rural areas to allow the
organic growth of the rural economy and convert/replace
redundant and disused buildings.

Because the site is located in the countryside, the proposal must
be assessed against Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.

Policy LP10 states that development in the countryside will be
restricted to the limited and specific opportunities as provided for
in other policies of this plan and that all development in the
countryside must:

a. seek to use land of lower agricultural value in preference to
land of higher agricultural value:

i. avoiding the irreversible loss of the best and most versatile
agricultural land (Grade 1 to 3a) where possible, and

ii. avoiding Grade 1 agricultural land unless there are exceptional
circumstances where the benefits of the proposal significantly
outweigh the loss of land;

b. recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside; and

c. not give rise to noise, odour, obtrusive light or other impacts
that would adversely affect the use and enjoyment of the
countryside by others.

With regard to part a. of Policy LP10, the site is previously
developed land (also known as brownfield land) and would
therefore not result in the loss of any of the districts best and
most versatile agricultural land.

Page 110 of 210



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

The appropriate re-use of previously developed land is promoted
within the NPPF 2021 under paragraph 120 part c. which states
“Planning policies and decisions should give substantial weight
to the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements
for homes and other identified needs, and support appropriate
opportunities to remediate despoiled, degraded, derelict,
contaminated or unstable land”.

In terms of part b. of Policy LP10, the layout of the proposed
scheme would result in a low gross site density of 12.2dph
(based on a site area of 1.8Ha) which is considered appropriate
in design terms and reflective of the rural context. The site layout
comprises an inward facing development reinforcing the
characteristics of a farmstead This arrangement is supported and
generally is considered to respect the character and appearance
of the countryside.

In terms of the design and appearance of the proposed buildings,
the new build units take a simple traditional approach and seek
to reflect barn style dwellings with some simple and traditional
detailing to complement the rural setting and the existing
farmstead complex. The general design, layout, scale, theme
and character of the proposed development is supported as it
would respond positively to the context of the surrounding area
and result in a high quality appearance in replacement of
predominately out of scale and character industrial buildings
which lack significant architectural merit and currently provide a
limited contribution to the rural character of the area. The
footprint of the proposed development would result in a 52%
reduction in floor area compared with the existing industrial
buildings. It is considered that the proposed development
accords with part b. of Policy LP10.

With regard to part c. of Policy LP10, it is not considered that the
proposed development would give rise to noise, odour, obtrusive
light or other impacts that would adversely affect the use and
enjoyment of the countryside by others that could not be
overcome with the use of conditions. The proposed residential
use would be in keeping and more sympathetic to the cluster of
six residential properties that surround the site. Given the nature
of the current use of the site, the development provides the
opportunity to remediate any possible contaminated land and
would be unlikely to increase the noise levels from the site.

It is considered that the proposal accords with Policy LP10 when
assessed on its own specific criteria. However, the policy clearly
states that development in the countryside will be restricted to
the limited and specific opportunities as provided for in other
policies of this plan. The main other policy of relevance to this
proposal is LP33 and this forms the main justification from the
Planning Agent as to why the application should be acceptable.

Page 111 of 210



7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

1.27

Rural Buildings

Policy LP33 of the Local Plan states that “A proposal for the
conversion of a building in the countryside that would not be
dealt with through 'Prior Approval/ Notification' will be supported
where it can be demonstrated that:

a. the building is:

i. redundant or disused;

ii. of permanent and substantial construction;

ii. not in such a state of dereliction or disrepair that significant
reconstruction would be required; and

iv. structurally capable of being converted for the proposed use;
and

b. the proposal:

i. would lead to an enhancement of the immediate setting; and

ii. any extension or alteration would not adversely affect the form,
scale, massing or proportion of the building.”

A proposal for the replacement of a building in the countryside
will be supported where criteria a, i to iii above are fulfilled and
the proposal would lead to a clear and substantial enhancement
of the immediate setting. A modest increase in floorspace will be
supported. The position of the replacement buildings within the
site should be considered comprehensively so that it is located
where it would have the least possible adverse impact on the
immediate surroundings, the wider landscape and the amenity of
the users of existing buildings nearby.”

This local plan policy is supported by Paragraph 80 part c of the
NPPF 2021 which states that “Planning policies and decisions
should avoid the development of isolated homes in the
countryside unless the development would re-use redundant or
disused buildings and enhance its immediate setting”.

With regard to part a. i. of Policy LP33, it is acknowledged that
the existing buildings are in use. The Applicant has sought to
overcome this policy conflict with the submission of a viability
report which confirms that significant investment in the buildings
would be required in the short term to maintain the standards
required for commercial letting.

In terms of the remaining criteria of part a. of Policy LP33, it is
considered that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction, not in a state of dereliction or disrepair that
significant reconstruction would be required and are structurally
capable of being converted for the proposed use. This view is
supported by the Local Planning Authority having granted prior
approval for their conversion and change of use previously and
as recently as 2019. As discussed above, the general design of
the proposed development is acceptable and would provide a
clear and substantial enhancement of the site and immediate
setting. There is no objection to the proposed footprint of the

Page 112 of 210



7.28

7.29

dwellings in relation to the existing buildings as the development
would see a significant reduction in footprint and volume which
would enhance the site and the immediate and wider countryside
setting.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not result in the
loss of the district's best and most versatile land and the
redevelopment would enhance the immediate setting and
therefore accords with policies LP10 and LP33 which provide for
redevelopment opportunities within the countryside. However,
while the efficient re-use of land is supported within the NPPF
2021, the proposed development is not considered to be in a
highly sustainable location with regard to access to nearby
services and facilities and the reliance on future occupiers of the
site to use private vehicles to travel. This proposal would conflict
with the fundamental objectives of the strategy for development
in Huntingdonshire and the overarching aims of the NPPF 2021
which seek to achieve sustainable development. This weighs
against the development. However, as discussed, the fall-back
position and the additonal environmental, social and economic
benefits are considered sufficient to outweigh any harm arising
through conflict with Policies LP2 and LP16.

Loss of employment land

Concerns have been raised by the Parish Council that the
development would lead to the loss of an employment site that is
in existing use. Whilst this is accepted, it must be acknowledged
that the site is not specifically protected by policy LP18 of the
Local Plan and there are strategic policies in the plan that seek
to support the protection or creation of new or expanded
employment sites at other locations. Policy LP19 seeks to
support the creation of new or expanded small scale businesses
within the countryside where there is a requirement for such
businesses to be in the countryside. However, the policy does
not seek to restrict the loss of small scale business uses and it
has not been demonstrated why the existing occupants could not
operate in other established employment areas. The application
is also supported by a viability assessment which demonstrates
that the existing buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction, but significant investment would be required in the
short-term future in order to remain in viable use. Furthermore,
the creation of Permitted Development Rights for the change and
use and conversion of buildings and sites such as this
reemphasise the support for flexibility in uses, particularly where
it would boost the supply of housing or meet other development
needs.

Page 113 of 210



7.30

Summary and conclusion

Overall, it is acknowledged that the site is detached from the
nearest settlement and future residents would be reliant on the
private car to access local facilities and services. This leads to a
degree of conflict with policies LP2 and LP16 and this weighs
negatively in the planning balance. However, the proposal would
accord with policies LP10 and LP33 in terms of redeveloping the
existing site and enhancing the immediate locality. This weighs
positively in the planning balance. Having regard for the fall-back
position provided by permitted development rights, it is
considered overall and on balance that the principle of
development is acceptable.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

Policy LP11 of the Local Plan states “A proposal will be
supported where it is demonstrated that it responds positively to
its context and has drawn inspiration from the key characteristics
of its surroundings, including natural, historic and built
environment, to help create distinctive, high quality and well-
designed places. In order to achieve this a proposal will need to
have applied the guidance contained in the Huntingdonshire
Design Guide SPD (2017) and the Huntingdonshire Landscape
and Townscape SPD (2017). A proposal should also have had
regard to relevant advice or guidance that promotes high quality
design, details the quality or character of the area or describes
how the area should develop in the future.”

Policy LP12 of the Local Plan states that “New development and
advertisements will be expected to be well designed based upon
a thorough understanding of constraints and appraisal of the
site's context, delivering attractive, usable and long-lasting
buildings and spaces.”

As discussed in detail within the ‘Principle of Development’
section above, it is considered that the proposed development
responds positively to its context and would be a low-density
high-quality development suitable for this rural location in design
terms and would represent a clear and substantial enhancement
to the site and its setting. Notwithstanding the location of the
site, the proposed layout of the development would be
accessible and functional in and around the plots to meet the
requirements of future occupiers.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal accords with policies

LP11 and L12 having regard for the character and appearance of
the area.

Page 114 of 210



Impact on Residential Amenity7.

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states a proposal will be
supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and
maintained for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and
buildings.

The NPPF, at paragraph 127 states that decisions should ensure
that developments should create places with a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users.

The low density of the proposed site and the predominant back-
to-back arrangement of the units has ensured that there would
be no significant unneighbourly impacts resulting from the
development and that adequate separation is achieved at first
floor levels between the proposed dwellings and to the existing
neighbouring properties in excess of the 21 metres
recommended by the Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2017.

It is considered that there are no concerns with regard to
overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking as a result of the
proposed development, for the reasons set out above.

The proposal would provide a high standard of amenity for future
users and occupiers of the site and would retain and improve a
high standard of amenity for users and occupiers of neighbouring
land and buildings in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Local
Plan and Paragraph 130 part f of the NPPF 2021.

Impact on Heritage Assets

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

Policy LP34 seeks to protect heritage assets and their settings
by giving great weight and importance to conservation and
echoes the sentiments of the NPPF in that any harm should be
outweighed by public benefits.

Paragraph 195 of the NPPF requires that local planning
authorities should identify and assess the particular significance
of a heritage asset (or its setting) that may be affected by a
proposal. Paragraph 197 states that decisions should take
account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the
significance of a heritage asset and putting them to viable use
consistent with their conservation.

Section 66 of the Town and Country Planning (listed buildings
and conservation areas) act 1990 requires that special attention
shall be had for preserving a listed building and its setting.

The site is not within a conservation area or the setting of any

conservation area, but the site is within the setting of the grade Il
Listed Laurels Farmhouse.

Page 115 of 210



7.44 The listing description of Laurels Farm House is as follows:
“4/10 II 2. Mid C19 house. Gault brick. Slate roof of low pitch.
End stack. Two-storeys. Flat arches to range of three hung
sashes with glazing bars. Central doorway. Doorcase of pilasters
and plain entablature with shaped cornice. Late C19 two-storey
extension to left hand.”

7.45 In terms of the proposals submitted as part of the application, it is
accepted that they represent an opportunity to improve the
existing negligible adverse setting of the principal listed building
which has occurred in association with the previous use. The
removal of the modern additions to the former farm complex and
the construction of new build on the footprint of the former range
will partly help to restore the historic layout of the site and the
understanding of the farm complex in association with the house
and therefore partly restore its setting thus better reveal its
heritage significance. Removal of the large modern barns and its
replacement with smaller scale buildings that reinforce the
traditional agricultural appearance of the group will be beneficial
to the sites overall setting. Overall and when considering all
elements of the proposals, it is concluded that the development
would result in impacts ranging negligible beneficial to medium
beneficial and therefore the proposals would not result in harm to
the setting or significance of the listed buildings, their settings or
that of the non-designated heritage assets. The Council’s
Conservation Officer raises no objection to the proposal following
clarification that was received which confirms that an existing
outbuilding outside of the application and adjacent to the Listed
Farmhouse is to be retained. It is however suggested that details
of the brick wall to be constructed to the rear of the listed
farmhouse be secured by way of a planning condition.

7.46 Overall, it is considered that the proposal represents an
opportunity to enhance the setting of the listed building and
therefore better reveal its significance in accordance with
paragraph 197 of the NPPF. The proposals are also considered
to have regard for the desirability of preserving the special
intertest of the listed buildings and their settings in accordance
with Section 16 and 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Areas) act 1990.

7.47 The enhancement to the setting of the heritage assets described
above as a benefit of the scheme is considered within the
planning balance below.

Highway Safety and Parking

7.48 There are no specific parking policy standards within local policy.
Local Plan policy LP17 requires appropriate space within the site
for vehicular movements, facilitates accessibility for service and
emergency vehicles and incorporates adequate parking for
vehicles and cycles. The policy also requires clear justification for

Page 116 of 210



7.49

7.50

the level of vehicle and cycle parking proposed having regard to
the following factors:

Highway safety to and from the site

Servicing requirements

Accessibility of the development to a wide range of services and
facilities by public transport, walking and cycling

Needs of potential occupiers

Amenity of existing and future residents

Opportunities for shared provision

Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that development should only
be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be
an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Given the scale and use of the proposed development and the
favourable consultation comments received by the County
Council Highways Team, Officers are satisfied the proposal is
acceptable with regards to highway safety and parking provision.
The application therefore complies with Policy LP17 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 as the access roads would
provide appropriate space for vehicular movements within the
site, provide for sufficient parking and would take into account
highway safety when entering or leaving the site and within the
site. The Highways Officer has not recommended the use of any
conditions within their formal consultation response. It is however
considered reasonable and appropriate to impose a condition
that requires the provision of parking prior to occupation and its
retention thereafter.

Biodiversity

7.51

7.52

7.593

Policy LP30 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 requires
proposals to demonstrate that all potential adverse impacts on
biodiversity and geodiversity have been investigated and ensure
no net loss in biodiversity and provide a net gain where possible,
through the planned retention, enhancement and creation of
habitats and wildlife features, appropriate to the scale, type, and
location of development.

Paragraph 174 part D of the NPPF (2021) states that planning
policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the
natural and local environment by: minimising impacts on and
providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current
and future pressures.

This application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal (PEA) which confirms that the site is not protected in
statutory terms and the nearest statutorily designated site is
Warboys Clay Pits Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)
located 2km north west of the site. Priority habitats are located

Page 117 of 210



7.54

7.55

130m south and 350m east of the site. The PEA considers the
presence of and potential for species and habitats in respect of
Bats, birds, reptiles, amphibians, Badgers and other mammals.
The PEA concludes that the site supports common and
widespread habitats low in ecological value. The boundary trees
are considered to be the highest value foraging habitat. There
were no signs of or evidence of protected, priority or rare species
and the risk to significant impact on such or to local ecological
value was considered to be very low.

It is considered that the scheme provides an opportunity to
enhance the ecological value of the site through the creation of
domestic gardens which are likely to be more diverse than the
existing industrial use of the site and the associated areas of
buildings and hardstanding. The PEA makes various
recommendations to secure enhancements such as bird and bat
boxes which can be fixed to buildings or trees, provision of a
hedgehog dome and soft landscaping to be of native species,
prioritising fruit producing varieties of trees and hedgerows. It is
recommended that a condition is imposed on any permission that
requires an ecological mitigation strategy to be submitted that
accords with the recommendations within the PEA.

Subject to such condition, it is considered that the proposal
would accord with Policy LP30 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
and would avoid a net loss in biodiversity.

Impact on Trees

7.56

7.57

7.58

This application is accompanied by an Arboricultural Impact
Assessment which has been amended in response to revised
proposals.

The scheme has been amended significantly in response to
Officer concerns by reducing the number of dwellings from nine
to four. The amended scheme has subsequently reduced the
extent of development and therefore the pressure on existing site
features such as trees which otherwise would have been
removed.

Subject to conditions that require the landscaping scheme to be
carried out and implementation of the approved Arboricultural
Method statement, it is considered that the arboriculture
constraints of the development have been assessed and a
combination of protective measures, sensitive construction work,
and compensatory planting can be secured to ensure that the
development can be made acceptable in arboricultural terms, in
accordance with Policy LP31 of the Local Plan.

Page 118 of 210



Flood Risk and Drainage

7.99

7.60

7.61

7.62

7.63

7.64

Policy LP5 states that proposals will only be supported where all
forms of flood risk have been addressed. The application is for
minor development (less than 10 units) and is not therefore
required to be accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).
The site is located in Flood Zone 1, no fluvial flood mitigation is
required.

In terms of surface water drainage, paragraph 6.3.17 of the
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2017 states that it is a
Building Regulations and PPG requirement that the discharge
hierarchy for surface water drainage is followed.

The hierarchy requires that rainwater shall discharge to the
following, listed in order of priority:

- To ground in an adequate soakaway or some other adequate
infiltration system

- A watercourse

- A surface water sewer, highway drain or other drainage system
- A combined sewer

The submitted application form states that surface water will be
discharged of by main sewer. Whilst it should be acknowledged
that this is not the preferred method having regard for the above
guidance, it is beyond the scope of this application and would be
subject to building regulations and a separate consenting
process with Anglian Water. Anglian Water have been consulted
as part of the application and have confirmed that they have no
comments to make as the development proposal is for less than
10 dwellings. In the unlikely event that Anglian Water refuse to
allow a connection to the main sewer, an alternative means to
discharge surface water will need to be considered and it is
recommended that this is considered, approved and secured by
way of a planning condition.

In terms of foul water drainage, the application form states that it
is unknown how foul water will be disposed of. Connection to the
foul sewer in the locality would also be subject to building
regulations approval and approval by Anglian Water. It is not
considered that a foul water strategy is required, and the specific
details of foul water drainage can be agreed through the use of
planning conditions without contravening Policy LP6 of the Local
Plan.

Overall, it is considered that the risk of flooding has been
appropriately assessed and whilst no detailed mitigation
measures have been proposed, these can be secured by
imposing reasonable and appropriate planning conditions.
Subject to a condition, in terms of flood risk and drainage the
proposal accords with Policies LP5, LP6 and LP15 of the Local
Plan and Section 14 of the NPPF 2021.

Page 119 of 210



Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations

7.65

7.66

7.67

7.68

7.69

7.70

The Infrastructure Business Plan 2013/2014 was developed by
the Growth and Infrastructure Group of the Huntingdonshire
Local Strategic Partnership. It helps to identify the infrastructure
needs arising from development proposed to 2036 through the
Core Strategy.

Statutory tests set out in the Community Infrastructure
Regulations 2010 (Regulation 122) require that S106 planning
obligations must be

* necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms,

* directly related to the development and

* fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the
development.

S.106 obligations are intended to make development acceptable
which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms.

In accordance with the Developer Contributions Supplementary
Planning Document 2011, the following planning obligations are
required to make the development acceptable.

Residential Wheeled Bins:

Each dwelling would require the provision of one black, blue and
green wheeled bin. The current cost of such provision to the
developer is £150 per dwelling and would be secured through a
Unilateral Undertaking prior to any permission being granted.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):

The development would be CIL liable in accordance with the
Council's adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover
footpaths and access, health, community facilities, libraries and
lifelong learning and education.

Other issues

7.71

Accessible and Adaptable Homes

The requirements within Policy LP25 of Huntingdonshire’s Local
Plan relating to accessible and adaptable homes are applicable
to all new dwellings. This states that all dwellings should meet
Building Regulation requirement M4(2) ‘accessible and
adaptable dwellings’ and that for all affordable housing an
appropriate  proportion should meet Building Regulation
requirement M4(3) ‘wheelchair adaptable dwellings’. These
include design features that enable mainstream housing to be
flexible enough to meet the current and future needs of most
households, including in particular older people and those with
some disabilities, and also families with young children. It is

Page 120 of 210



7.72

7.73

considered that a suitably worded planning condition could
secure compliance with Policy LP25.

Water Efficiency

Policy LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036 requires proposals that
include housing to comply with the optional building regulation for
water efficiency, as set out in Approved Document G. The agent
has confirmed that the proposed development is designed in
accordance with the standards and will be built in accordance
with these. A condition will be imposed upon any consent to
ensure that the development is built in accordance with these
standards and that they are maintained for the life of the
development.

Bin Storage and Presentation

The Parish Council have raised concerns that the proposal does
not adequately provide for bin storage or bin collection. Each
dwelling has sufficient space within its curtilage for the storage of
the required bins. In terms of bin presentation, plot 1 would be
served by a secondary and unique pedestrian access directly
reaching Fenton Road for the purposes of bin presentation. Plots
2, 3 and 4 would also be served by a bin presentation that
currently exists for the adjacent properties on the northern side of
the existing cluster of dwellings. Subject to exact details being
submitted of bin presentation to ensure it is safe and of
satisfactory appearance, it is not considered that there are any
concerns in respect of bin storage or bin presentation.

CONCLUSION

7.74

7.75

This application must be considered against the test in S38 (6) of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, namely, in
accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF has at its heart the
presumption in favour of sustainable development (para 11) and
requires the approval of development proposals that accord with
an up-to-date development plan without delay. The presumption
in favour of sustainable development requires proposals to
achieve economic, social and environmental gains; as such a
balancing exercise has to be undertaken to weigh the benefits of
the scheme against its disadvantages. When considered in the
round, a development proposal would contribute to the
economic, environmental and social dimensions of sustainability.

In terms of the economic dimension of sustainable development,
the proposal would contribute towards economic growth both in
the short term through job creation during the construction phase
and in the longer term through the additional population assisting
the local economy through spending on local services and
facilities. There would also be Council Tax, Section 106 and

Page 121 of 210



7.76

.77

7.78

Community Infrastructure Levy contributions arising from the
development.

In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable
development, the proposal would re-use a previously developed
site and would enhance the site and its setting and the setting of
heritage assets. The access is considered to be safe and
suitable to serve existing and proposed uses.

In terms of the social dimension of sustainable development, the
scheme would make a contribution to local housing requirements
and would deliver four residential dwellings seeking to support
the aspirations of present and future generations. Purely in terms
of the application site itself, the proposal is well laid out and
would provide safe, accessible and functional residential units
with ample private amenity spaces which would not have a
significant impact on neighbour amenity. The site is in a
countryside location but is not isolated and there are reasonable
but limited means of accessing the services and facilities within
the nearby settlements without relying on the private car. The
proposal represents a significant positive opportunity to secure
the comprehensive redevelopment of the site for a fewer number
of dwellings that could otherwise be achieved through the less
than desirable conversion of the existing building without the
need for planning permission.

Having regard to all relevant material considerations, it is
recommended that approval be granted subject to the imposition
of appropriate conditions and the receipt of a satisfactory legal
agreement to secure payment of bin provision for each dwelling

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following

Standard 3 year time limit

Approved plans

Provision and retention of parking spaces

Details of, provision of and retention of cycle storage
Details of, provision of and retention of waste storage and
presentation

Architectural and external material details

Provision and details of Boundary Treatments

Finished floor levels to be agreed.

Provision/details of fire hydrants prior to occupation
Unexpected contamination to be remediated and verified
prior to occupation.

Ecological mitigation strategy

e Tree mitigation

e Details of surface water and foul drainage

Page 122 of 210



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Lewis Marshall Senior Development
Management Officer — lewismarshall@huntingdonshire.qgov.uk

Page 123 of 210


mailto:lewismarshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

From: DMAdmin

Sent: 25 August 2019 10:57
To: DevelopmentControl
Subject: FW: ref:19/01258/FUL

From: Pidley cum Fenton <pidleycumfenton@gmail.com>

Sent: 23 August 2019 21:07

To: DMAdmin <Development.ManagementAdmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Subject: ref:19/01258/FUL

Hi,

Apologies, i seem to have lost the email in relation to the planning application for Land North East of New Laurels
Fenton Road, Fenton hence my delay in replying.

Unfortunately this was rejected by all of our councillors in our August meetings for a number of reasons which i
document below:

There are concerns over the traffic and highway safety - Proper entrance and footpaths either side would be
required. We would like to see Traffic calming, 40mph and would like this to be reduced to 30mph with footpaths,
pedestrian crossings and additional lighting would all be required.

It was felt that the width of the road through the houses was quite small for the number of cars with a few passing
places to get by.

Lorry bin collections also caused concerns as a lorry would not be able to get in. All bins would have to be walked
through the houses and be on the main road on collection day and the night before.

Other general concerns were pulling out on to the road, no shops in walking distance. No footpaths a this moment
to be able to leave the development and walk anywhere safely. Sewerage also caused concern and building within
the open countryside.

Many thanks and kind regards

Louise Clowery
Parish Clerk - Pidley cum Fenton
07368 271251 or 01487 500 115

You have received this email from Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council. The content of this email is confidential may be
legally privileged and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of
the message with any third party, without a written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake,
please reply to this message and follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the
future.

Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council ensures that email security is a high priority. Therefore, we have put efforts into
ensuring that the message is error and virus-free. Unfortunately, full security of the email cannot be ensured as,
despite our efforts, the data included in emails could be infected, intercepted, or corrupted. Therefore, the recipient
should check the email for threats with proper software, as the sender does not accept liability for any damage
inflicted by viewing the content of this email.

By contacting Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council you agree that your contact details may be held and processed fore
the purpose of corresponding.

You may request access to the information we hold on you pidleycumfenton@gmail.com

Page 154 of 210



From: Louise Clowery <clerk@pidleycumfenton-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 10 September 2021 12:50
To: DMAdmin
Subject: Re: Planning Permission Consultation - Land North East Of The Laurels Fenton

Road Fenton (ref 19/01258/FUL)

Hi,

Our councillors felt that the alleyway was too narrow and has the potential to cause issues for the
house where the bins will accumulate the night before collection.

They also felt that this would be overdevelopment of the site if approved.
There is no net gain on the environmental impact as from the plans many trees are being removed.

it was noted that their may be a loss of employment with the industrial units that are currently in use
no longer being available.

Lastly the sustainable safety of the development with the increase of families as there is no footpaths,
street lights and the speed limit is over 30mph. If this application is approved, could these factors be
considered?

This application was rejected by all of our councillors.

Kind regards

Louise

Louise Clowery
Clerk to Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council
07907 339 077 or 01487 500 115

On 2021-08-19 09:07, Dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk wrote:

Dear Parish Clerk,

Please find correspondence from Development Management at Huntingdonshire District Council
attached to this email in relation to the following application for planning permission.

Proposal: Erection of 5 dwellings with garaging and parking following the demolition of the existing
industrial buildings

Site Address: Land North East Of The Laurels Fenton Road Fenton
Reference: 19/01258/FUL
Opting out of email correspondence

We are continually striving to improve the service we deliver to our customers. As part of this we are
now contacting our customers by email where possible in an effort to provide a faster, more efficient
service.

Page 125 of 210



If you would prefer not to receive correspondence from us via email you have the right to opt out. If
you wish to opt out please contact us at the address provided below so that we can remove your email
details from our records.

Keeping safe on the internet

You should never open a file attached to an email when you do not trust the sender's authenticity.

We will only contact you via email when you have already contacted us in relation to this specific
application (or one directly related to it) and provided your email address as a contact - we will not
transfer your contact details between unrelated applications.

If you have any doubts or concerns relating to this email please contact us directly, our contact details
are provided below.

Development Management
Huntingdonshire District Council

T: 01480 388388
E: dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 126 of 210



From: Louise Clowery <clerk@pidleycumfenton-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 13 May 2022 13:38
To: DMAdmin
Subject: Re: Planning Permission Consultation - Land North East Of The Laurels Fenton

Road Fenton (ref 19/01258/FUL)

Categories: Jason

Hi,

This application was met by our councillors with similar views to the last time it was submitted for
approval. There were concerns over the bin collection day, the lighting, speed limit and the lack of
connectivity to Warboys. Therefore in relation to LP9 of the local plan this was rejected by all of our
councillors.

Kind regards

Louise

Louise Clowery
Clerk to Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council
07907 339 077 or 01487 500 115

On 2022-05-05 09:32, Dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk wrote:

Dear Parish Clerk,

Please find correspondence from Development Management at Huntingdonshire District Council
attached to this email in relation to the following application for planning permission.

Proposal: Erection of 4 dwellings with garaging and parking following the demolition of the existing
industrial buildings

Site Address: Land North East Of The Laurels Fenton Road Fenton
Reference: 19/01258/FUL

Opting out of email correspondence

We are continually striving to improve the service we deliver to our customers. As part of this we are
now contacting our customers by email where possible in an effort to provide a faster, more efficient
service.

If you would prefer not to receive correspondence from us via email you have the right to opt out. If
you wish to opt out please contact us at the address provided below so that we can remove your email
details from our records.

Keeping safe on the internet

You should never open a file attached to an email when you do not trust the sender's authenticity.

Page 1217 of 210



We will only contact you via email when you have already contacted us in relation to this specific
application (or one directly related to it) and provided your email address as a contact - we will not
transfer your contact details between unrelated applications.

If you have any doubts or concerns relating to this email please contact us directly, our contact details
are provided below.

Development Management
Huntingdonshire District Council

T: 01480 388388
E: dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 128 of 210



Development Management Committee

Scale = 1:2,500
Date Created: 25/05/2022

®

Application Ref:19/01258/FUL

Location: Pidley-cum-Fenton

//_—%\‘
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT o 0N ETL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Warboys Heath

Pond

)
As)
bt
e

/A

W
NS LN N

r

Fm

S
=% Ballanty,

Avenue

Fam

Q
CW‘MQ Fenton

Key y

7/, Scheduled Ancient Monuments /] oo

[ Listed Buildings /) P

Conservation Area /,/'j /
The Site ///’// '
Page-129-6f 210 Y%



VAR A 4

0TZ J0 0ST abed

1:1250 Site Location Plan
(license no. 100022432)

Site Area:
5782m2
0.58 Hectares

e + "

1:1250 Site Location Plan

(Based on topographical survey)

Suita 2, Clare Hall,
5t Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St Ives,

Cambs, PE27 4WY

PROECT
Proposed Development
Fenton Road,

Fenton,

Warboys

PE28 25N

CUENT

Mr Augstein

DRAWING TLE

Site Location Plan

DA BT

SD

SEALE

1:1250 @ A3

DATE

5/2/19

GG, ho

2018.24.101

HEW,




Sloped pathway leading
to alternative pedestrian access

Existing trees to be retained.
5
\\ _ Proposed cobbled courtyard opening
. ™ . - views to the countryside from Old Laurels
SN N Famhouse
N . \\ ™.
\\\\ \\\ Existing roadway to be utilised and extended along the southern edge
“\;\ \\ S 1 to prevent any impact on existing trees to be retained- roadway to be
N \\B F e top-dressed. Surface to be in accordance with accompanying
\\:\\\ ~ N F = arboricultural report
'\,‘\ ‘\\\\ \ St / N
\ XN 4
% N
T h S e :
SN R . Retain existing native hedgerow
SN %
\\:\\ | Existing hedgerow to be tfrimmed back and
W retained

0TZ J0 TET abed

SCALE 1:500 (METRES)
0 5 10 15 20

1 e e —

Bin collection point
Plots 2,3,4

Existing outbuilding to be

retained in its entirety _ sl
retained and top-dressed , "
X -
?;/ < o
1.5m wall to be constructed at “ N P
boundary to Old Laurels Farmhouse ™™ ™ N e
Proposed trees \ P f_f” Blackthorn
| \“\ \\\ A - Barn
Proposed native hedging N \\\ / i '
Bin collection point™. ™ ey
S P
Existing trees to be retained PlOT ] S i < Elm
Barn
Existing trees to be removed \
Avenue ' Keepers
Farm
Grass Cottage

Tarmac access road

Patio slabs

|

Existing tfrees and native hedgerow planting to
be retained and enhanced
North-eastern boundary

|

Existing access track fo be

Cobbled courtyard & pedestrian path ’ . . ’&’,‘ /( \
PP TR R R / Application for 2 plots L 4\-\ SN AN \‘\ ra )\
Existing buildings to be demolished dpproven Gnecriet. \\\\ \\ \\ E": 'i\;r :"”"’i \ \\ < ,/\\/{
A 19/02003/FULTDC WO\ O\ AXSN
v, "\__\ \.\ N , "-\) s .
: \\ NN\ x\\/
WO N .
/ \\\ N\ \ /
e 1:500 Block Plan AN \
- * \'\\ \\‘\,\ \ \-'-.\\

House Legend:

Plot 1- 3 Bed: 140m?2
Plot 2- 3 Bed: 144m?2
Plot 3- 4 Bed: 153m?2
Plot 4- 5 Bed: TBC

USRS
e
e
T
e

L

18/01/22 | SD | Plot 5 removed, trees to north re-instated, access road

moved away from trees to north of plot 2

D 27/05/20 | SD | Plots 4 and 5 reduced, roof plan added to existing

uutbuilding_-, extent of trees amended

[g]

06/02/20 | SD | Access road altered, sheds added to plots 2 and 3,

proposed levels added, tree survey added

17/10/19 | SD

B Plots 1-4 removed, existing access re-instated
A 11/07/19 | SO | Additional dims added to site layout
EV DATE BY REVISION NOTES

Suite 2, Clare Hall,

St Ives Business Park,

Parsons Green,

St Ives, d
Cambs, PE27 4WY

§
© COPYRIGHT

Tel: 01480 494949
Email: enquirles@planningandarchitecture.co.uk
Web: ,_\n.mw.pmnnIngcndc:rchHecfure.co;uk

PROJECT
roposed Development
Fenton Road,
Fenton,
Warboys
PE28 2SN

CLIENT

Mr Augstein

DRAWING TITLE

Detailed Block Plan

DRAWN BY SCALE

SD 1:1250, 1:500 @ Al
DATE DWG. Na. REV.
5/2/19 2018.24.102 E




0TZ J0 2£T abed

7813

1:100 Side Elevation

1:100 Side Elevation

[ IACO AR IO D

TR o o P i
- 1-'-’9-’ - f'.}-hl-o--"'lﬁ '1.'1'“l"

S S

St e
IS AR 10 it 1 Lo f

1 1 T o 1 o 3 o 5 o1 o1 1 o
lIl]lIl]lIlllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllIllllllli
) 0 0 9N 0O 0 N 0 O 1
Il:llllllIlllllllllllllllllllll
016D 0 06 9N 0O M 10 N 0 O ot
Il:llllllIlllllllllllllllllllll

Dining

-

Living/Family Room

1:100 Ground Floor Plan

1:100 First Floor Plan

7813

6733

5162

Ml
=
i
=

1:100 Front Elevation

.‘I‘_I‘ I I 1 I I 1 I 1 | | | | | I | | | | | I.‘:Illlllll

2 B L L

i =il =Sal=a
[10T) SO 60 o ) B e

\
L LT

Y 1 01 0 ) L v L
00 08T AT TN AT AT Y

(30 B 0

1:100 Roof Plan

e I = I:-&" TT

2400

4930

6733

5162

2400

Living Room

1:100 Rear Elevation

1:100 Section A-A

SCALE 1:100 (METRES)
0

™ ™ ™ s ™ e ™ s ™ s s 5/2/19

6733

Materials Legend:

Doors &Windows: Engineered
timber or aluminium, colour, style
tbc. stone sills where shown on
elevations

Walls: Brickwork- mix of red multi
and classic buff across the site
I-lljorizontal Boarding- colour/style
tbc.

Roof: Mix of grey slate tiles and
clay pan tiles across site, exact
plots tbc.

changes

C | 31/03/22 | SD | Sheet layout reyvised, section added, no design

B8 | 05/02/20 | SD | Windows lined up {front elevation), window
moved bed 2 following urban design comments

A | 17/10/19 | SD | Plots 1-4 removed, plots re-numbered

REV] DATE [ BY [ REVISION NOTES

Suite 2, Clare Hall,
St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,

PROJECT

Proposed Development
Fenton Road,

Fenton,

Warboys

PE28 2SN

) X ‘

Cambs, PE27 4WY w0}

B

o

{: :i COPYRIGHT =
Tel 01480 474949
Emol; encuites@planningondarchilecture.co.uk
Weab: www planningondorchifeciure.couk ana AR

CLIENT

Mr Augstein

DRAWING TITLE

Proposed Plans & Elevations- Plot 1

DRAWN BY SCALE
10 SD 1:100 @ Al
DATE DWG, No. REV.
2018.24.103 C




Materials Legend:

Doors &Windows: Engineered
timber or aluminium, colour, style
tbc. stone sills where shown on
elevations

Walls: Brickwork- mix of red multi
and classic buff across the site
I-tIJorizontaI Boarding- colour/style
tbc.

Roof: Mix of grey slate tiles and
clay pan tiles across site, exact
plots tbc.

7463

5150

Plot 2 Plot 3 Plot 3

1:100 Side Elevation

1:100 Front Elevation (North West)

::'ﬁ___ 7" '.'\:1'. S
[ Y T N
D m
2 [ | =
P —
e E‘!_
0.7 u_}
— n
|:| N | | g
Plot 3 Plot 2 i - Plot 3

1:100 Rear Elevation (South East)

AV

@C_)
Family Area |”‘

Y 1
QO +
: -~
A A
[ERY
w
w
itches
9.., [lZI‘” Kitchen
N ] - .- e 0 oo | el B J
o U_ :E :ﬂ L] =} Landing
o~ a = \_’l ............................. g
i : (/\ N J- 8 2 IIIIIIIIITITITITITITITIIIIIE & gmgl [ W 2 ILITITITITITITITITITLL
=
. ‘ L] L= 1 e s s el (N1 AN /4 A [ I =
\u) . ) N = = - = 1= r=r=pepsnsaspspsssped 000 0 0 0 0 oo [N = = =g S HEg S HErEnE s :
Family Area - . |“
—H B
H
g g . ; . : . .
3 » Room . 1:100 Plot 2 Secfion A-A 1:100 Plot 3 Section B-B
s g i B
.\_/.r’
o t - c — |
Plot 3 ’
1:100 Ground Floor Plans
01 B— :
‘”LI_Badmm2 J ]
Master g = il
I\Bednﬁom - D \\\ |:| \Bedraom 3 !"s il
A A o
—r_ i B | 31/03/22 | 5D | Sheet layout changed, ne changes to design
I ‘\ i A | 17/10/19 | 50 | Plots 1-4 remaved, plots re-numbered
f \, [ rev]| DatE | BY | REVISION NOTES
) ™ i Suite 2, Clare Hall
£ Bedroom 4 _ - Cle i
) Hathioom Bl BISRIENE St Ives Business Park,
i EEEEEEEE Parsons Green,
- ) S EEgEgECE StIves,
- o = = i Cambs, PE27 4WY
¢ I ‘ ER=Relall
L1 [TTTTTT] gl @Canmsm
Bl (1] [TT1TAE] AT S SR PARTNERS
| | | | =, =1 §={ §=| i Email: enguiries@planningandarchitecture co.uk in PLANNING
am [T [TITITIT < s € S Web: www.planninganderchitectue.couk UGS Z=TL1
: _I T Ii..l | | —j:j:j I'- FROJECT
L L LLd ( i i B Proposed Development
41 I I 4 iy iy 2 i _
TTET T T. LT, SR B B Fenton Road,
| | | | | | | | | | | REEE B |
L L L L L Y A A == SHEES 4 | Fenton,
i- I Vi = ] s 55 ) ) ] ] ] ) ] = EEpEEty =T =t 2 s s =1 o ey = Tt
IIIIIIIIIIIIIII 1 o o ||l|I|I|I|I|I|I 1 | IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII|I|||_:
lI1§I]§I]§I]§I]§I]§I]§I1§IlIlTlT 111111111111111111111111111] L e i 1’1’ 115 it 9 B 5 ) 5 Y 08 iy ’1’1’111’1’1’ 1155 I3 5 ) 0 Y3 YO 4 0 Y O ) O R Warbovs
e ||||||||||||||| —i b 1001000 010010 01000 00 1000 01010 0 0 0 3 0 PEZSZSN
]I]I]Il[l[l[]I]I]I]I]TlT]T]T]TlTlTlTlTlTlT]T]T]T]T]T]] i s 2155 it 59 5 ) 0 Y59 8 O ) 0 ) ) 0 ) O B 19 S O ) Y O 0 0 ) O Y9 0 O ) 0 Y9 Y 1
I I FE R R FE T R I L L LRI Robe LAY 20 00 L0 LAY 00 0 L A0 D0 L UL L0600 L 20 0 LA Y2 0 L LA 3 DL A0 100 L AL LD 00 L 00 0 LA 2 0 L LA 0 0 L LA DN s AN )L il
]I]I]Il[l[l[]I]I]I]I]Tll]l]1TlTlTlTlTlTlT]T]T]T]T]T]] 2155 it 59 5 ) 0 Y9 Y O ) ) ) 0 ) O Y D S ) 0 Y Y 6 0 ) O )69 09 O ) 0 Y Y | CLIENT
IEEEEEEEREEEEEE i IS S S i il o i b i e e i1 P e 1h P o Pt LAY 20 0 L0 LAY 00 0 LA Y00 D0 L UL LD 00 LB 20 0 LA 2 0 YL LAY 1 1A A0 100 L UL LD 00 L 20 0 LA 2 0 LA 0 0 L LAY DN s AN )L Al A
]I]I]Il[l[l[]I]I]I]I]TlT]T]T]TlTlTlTlTlTlT]T]T]T]T]T]] S A R 0 0 o i Mr Augstein
IEEEEEEEEEEEEEE] i TS S i e 1) Eiis i 1 i1} S 118 e 11} Bes 1 e {h) TS st P iid |1|1|1|1|1|11|IJIIJIIJIIJIIJIIJIIJI 1I1I1I11I1I1;!I1I1I1I1I1I11IIJIIJIIJIIJIIJIIJIIJI 1|1I1|1I1|I il
lll§ll{ll{llﬁlﬁl{ll{lh[l11111|11|1|r1|1Ill1|11|11|1Ill1|11|11|11|11|11|11|1] 100U 00100 0 0 0 0 U0 0 0 0 . 0 U 0 0 0 o U S I DRAWING TITLE )
0 0 T 0 0 05 5 A 0 0 0 0 0 0 i o 115 1S5S EH S SIS B HUSS EH S B B IS S S B £ U B = Proposed Plans & Elevations- Plot 2&3
HHMMMHHMMMHIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII I|||||IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII-IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII Al
£ 0 00 09 999 PO 70 0 09 999 780 R P o e g e N P P e HEEmEENEEEEEEEEEEI e e s EE e E e m e e e R T I R T :l'
r » 3
SCALE 1:100 (METRES) ’ Plot 2 Plot 3 : Plot 2 Plot 3 ’ DRAWN BY SCALE
0 5 10 _ : SD 1:100 @ Al
1:100 First Floor Plans oATE BWE =
" — e — E— 1:100 Roof Plan 5/2/19 2018.24.105 B




Materials Legend:

P| OT 4 Doors &Windows: Engineered

2 sl T timber or aluminium, colour, style
tbc. stone sills where shown on
elevations
Walls: Brickwork- mix of red multi
and classic buff across the site
I-Lorizontal Boarding- colour/style
tbc.
Roof: Mix of grey slate tiles and
clay pan tiles across site, exact
plots tbc.

1:100 Front (South-east) Elevation 1:100 Side (North-east) Elevation 1:100 Rear (North-west )Elevation 1:100 Side (South-west) Elevation

EE
o o
P e
2 E
ol
J £
i
tE
s E
— ol

>

1.Brm heod helght

U 6000 6000
Q [
«Q EEpEeEeE o Eo e i
= ===l I
w el [11]
&~ LIVING ROOM i i I
(@) S TTTTT
—h § BEDROOM 2 § 1 o — §
ll\A) 2 B j:j:n:ul\lllllllllll 0
o ~ .
“f//’/)? i ::::::::
/5000 ; 6000 ~g 7N 7T Teewe . B0 @@ @0-. ., e 6000 i
m, T TR
__:::::::: | ; =1 M - TOIIIITITITITITITITI I I ITIT] EEEEE
'_[ ] 7 :_Ig e - .......... j j j : 7
[/\I ............... S
|'_.’I --
1 4 LT
2oy /‘\\ S
I D |
o v L o o o | BEDROOCHM 4 o (= A L L S A 0 A A A A S A A O A e L W o o
b= SMUG [DINING KITCHEN 8 =1 b= : 8 e A '% e e et e i et e e | P, e it e [ e i oo e s s 5 I
o ; = cai “ A cai L e e e e e r e n e aE AL A S A e A A A e e e e A A A e AE e N e A A e FEAS N AE A A AE p e A S aE ey
I — ROBE
|r :ﬂ U: . L) L) 00 0 1 1 1 ) 1 0 1 0 1 L L L
1 ST e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Pl e e e e e e o e e e e P P
5[5 = L) L) ) 0 0 1 1 1 0 ) ) 1 1 1 L L L
H ‘j/— ST e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e P P
L) L) 0 0 1 1 1 0 L ) ) 1 1 10 1 L L L
T e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e R e e e P g
) . 1 511 O O O 6 U 1 1 O 1
MAAYER BEDRGOM MHQOO\L 'lll'llllllllllll'lll'llllll'llllll'lll'iIllllllllllllllll'lll'lllllllll'lll'llllll'lll'lll'lllllllllllllllllI'llI'lll'l'll'lll'lll'lll'llllllllllll'lll'lll'l
\ g e e e e e e e e e o e e g e e e e e e e e R g e e P g e PR e P e e P e g e g e e g e g ]
— S L) 1)) L) 1 0 1 1 ) ) 1 0 (1 (1 (1
_ L_., L % L_., l__lllI|II|II|II|I:I|I:I|II|II|II|II|IITI:Ill:Ill:IIIIIIII|II|II|II|II|II|IIl.;l:_l:_llI|II|II|II|II|I:I|I:I
3119 | ! ’ 5000 ) 13119 ’ 5000 . 13119 BRiIENERE
LSy S J NENERE
1:100 Ground Floor Plan 1:100 First Floor Plan 1:100 Roof Plan
A A A
C 123/03/21 | SD | Plots 5 removed, plot 4 re-designed
B | 27/05/21 | SD | Plots 4 & 5 reduced in width
A | 17/10/19 | SD | Plots 1-4 removed, plots re-numbered
[ rev]Date | By | REVISION NOTES
Suite 2, Clare Hall,
St lves Business Park,
Parsons Green,
St lves,
Cambs, PE27 4WY
= .---'-—----_.
S i ©) corvecin 5 '7/ =
. Lkanding 4}/ Bedroom 2 Tet | 01480 494949 S
(=] £ Email: anquines@ planningandarchitectue.co.uk r %
; Wab; www planningandarchiteciure,co.uk
— PROJECT
B Proposed Development
= Fenton Road,
g Hall P_P"“ Living Room Fe nto n,
3 Warboys
PE28 25N
""" CLIENT
Mr Augstein
DRAWING TITLE
. y Proposed Plans & Elevations- Plot 4
1:100 Simple Section A-A
SCALE 1:100 (METRES) DRAWN BY SCALE
g 5 0 |sP 1:100 @ Al
BATE DOWG. Mo, REV.
e 5/2/19 2018.24.105 C




1:100 South West Elevation

77
|
y
s
Y
/4 ..\
Vi
/
A
Vi
!
E
%
T
ﬂ |
"\
./...
WA
|
N
F
AT
AT
P
A
y
.\.
/
y
Ve
i
<
i
\
Ry
/.
\
?.
\
W
N,
R _A\J

1:100 North East Elevation

1:100 North West Elevation

1:100 South East Elevation

Garage Plans

0eLs
L
HHHHHHHHHHI
HHHHHHHHHHT=
0ELS

REY,

1:100 @ A3

DWG. M.
2018.24.109

SCALE

REVISICHN MOTES

Suite 2, Clare Hall,

BY
St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St ives,

-
=
=
I~
(o]
L
o
w
o
€
(9]
Q

@

E
g
¥

Proposed Development

Fenton Road,
Fenton,

%
248
g &
Ea
(3
£T
?3
£
¥
mm
3
E3
mw
£
E2

Garage Plans- Plot 4

REV | DATE
Warboys
PE28 25N
CLUENT

Mr Augstein
DRAWING TITLE
DRAWN BY

SD

5/2/19

FROJECT
DATE

1:100 Roof Plan

1:100 Floor Plan

o
W
i
U
L
Q
<L
[
b
2 =] m
L= |
= & @
=
o}
=
o
a
9]

0658

Page 135 of 210




0TZ J0 9¢T abed

SCALE 1:200 (METRES)

\a

s
o ST

Lor@a nds' %‘E

LA
t'_\\ \) :::‘V
v P :,?"

4 /
Dainftee Hous'?!,

e,

SN IR
.’/ .

.\\\
o .’\")i; _\ X N

g X L N

S T NN ey K ?::;::”_:ZZ‘::::*::;
Py
N N (’ e
O .
:r";,::;’;" .\\_\ \‘%.\\
B .
"/:;2//?:;\\3’3‘3;“‘0’“ /‘f\<‘:‘,} ‘..‘ ‘.‘Si \h'
g~ e ol " am -
‘ " ////1’\ /...-"" z\,.\) \""-.\"‘- r \.‘l /
- ,»-"’7/< AT NNA .
SO s - D G W
R SN NS N NS
\,.\w”"“:‘“‘_m*“_m—#::::—.-:‘-'""f \ 2;;‘1“9 W Kespers ““-.\ P /.-"" ¥
._\\::_ [P s N \: \\:muse ¢ _.-"f} i___\:::{:itla-gl.a'.- /"' Avenite "Q;)/.- /,..-
4 . T § L i
4 ;m\\‘:\‘\. \‘.\ \\‘ ¥ %:} ““'& I}J'{( .-"",. \"‘\ Farm ‘-’/’.’ ."I 3
1:1250 Existing Site Plan 1:1250 Proposed Site Plan
. Longlands Barn
Outline of Old Laurels Farmhouse
e,
Barn 1 ™~ \I Barn 4 Barn 5
I I |— ————— /—\—|
| = — —— II_ _— e — _( \
GL-19.1idf o | L | |
. _—“‘“——v 5 - 186. = . ) ) = - : === == fa—
Sl R VA ‘ ot 17,874 — — <F 17 7 |
e e A R O
e e - | — U (| | |
Datum 15 00 ‘ Lower ground level to the north of site : ' — — — o B o
I ] —
1:200 Existing Site Section A-A
I Lon__g_;_lands Barn
Outline of existing Barn 1 to be Outline of existing Barn 2 to be Outline of existing Barn 3 to be Qutline of existing Barn 4 to be Outline of existing Barn 5 to be
demolished Plot 4 demolished demolished demolished demolished
= —_ e | - e - e - | _______ S R ! HOK!
— — P I/ \I ! ! N
—_— j 'i“":f‘ e Dy E |
| Existing higher ground level . | | ‘ :_
lt:?be Ievglgtli_ozfé 000 | Retaining wall, plots 7 & ' T e e l I |
_____________________;_;_rof\_o/se w M 1 , 8 to sit on higher groundl Proposed cobbled courtyardl | - _ ~ il B |
| - H " PrOPOSED GL- 16.400 | ; r LI @ \@ ]/ \[ T | e
| . \/ geon == | | | | J =~ = GL-\1/5.800
Datum 15.00 e —
1:200 Proposed Site Section A-A
New Laurels New Laurels Plot 1
Barn 6 Barn 5 B =
i =T
| [ww = | iry \
- Y e NS —] =k |
Datum 15.00 _ @@ Datum 15.00 v L

Qutline of Old Laurels

1:200 Existing Site Secftion B-B

Outline of Barn 1

Datim 15.00

Outline of Barn 2

Outline of Barn 3 ‘
r i e e s e e e e e el e | P|0t 2
. | L1 |
New boundary wall | | 2 i I : 2 l _DD Eﬂ |
GL-17.500 & | b =t == =
v Bl gemee 0 [T BT o '
\V4 I W= il |

1:200 Proposed Site Section B-B

20

1:200 Proposed Site Section D-D

— — — Buildings to be demolished

31/03/22 | 5D Plot 5 removed, plot 4 re-design added

17/04/20 | 50 | Additional site levels added for context

10/03/20 | 50 | Outline of New Laurels added 1o section D-D

ooy m

06/02/20 | SD | Section D-D added, Levels added

17/10/19 | 50 | Piots 1-4 removed, plots re-numbered, access

road widened to 4m, Site section A-A added,
outline of existing barns added to sections

rev]| DATE | By | REVISION NOJES

Suite 2, Clare Hall, %9

St Ives Business Park, ‘ “‘? A
Parsons Green, ‘,'

St Ives, 4N %
Cambs, PE27 4WY D N
©r:owmsm - ',7(/ B

Tel: 01480 494969 : " g

Email: enguines@plonningandarchitechure.couk
Web: www.pronningandarchiteoture.cousk

PROUJECT

Proposed Development
Fenton Road,

Fenton,

Warboys

PE28 2SN

JOLIEMT

Mr Augstein

[DRAWING TITLE

Site Sections

ORAWN BY

SD

CALE

1:1250, 1:200 @ A

ATE

W, No. V.
06/02/20 2018.24.107 T E




) C

S
Lorq’;ndé"ﬁam T

R GEREPR
£ %

as

Q /
oD

LA VAN
A -.\{ Dainirag \Hou 3 s 3
f’/.‘/
/
S N N A . W, A -
R NS A . N R N —

g e e Y e N .
\\/<\_ -_\\‘ \‘:ouse ’_\:’:; ‘__/\_io:a’;./ AFVBI"IUE )/ / ] / fc,e\-_i:1.1.z'5n rp’.:gE:THES_I .
NG : - ¢ = arm , '
SO\ AR RO AN /

17 Im N %

1:1250 Existing Site Plan 1:1250 Proposed Site Plan

Longlands Barn

.I’ & 1 - ~ | |
TR
il

o _ﬁ;- ..j_|l||i|i|||| |
Datum 15.00 u’
1:200 Existing view from listed building

Outiine of Old Laurels Farmhouse  __ __ _____ __
Outiine of
B§T1 ________ Ngw:r:;_wels_ -
= Out building to be retained | = 7N\
— =2~ N
g-? ‘E - 'JI H H H H |‘ H H ‘ — | T |
2\ —— ‘( —— GL-18482 “ ‘ I'L:-J‘Li 18.482 | ' | | |
- BT L] g [T G x == |
~ S R —"1 ] L GRCML
o . - I
—_—
N
H
o

Longlands Barn Outline of Existing
Old Laurels s trees to
Farmhouse - retained
Proposed Plot 4 |_ ~ e —l .
Barn 1 to be N e ey . Outline of
demoalished - — — — — — — — —|/ \| New Laurels
P . o 3 |_ ikt
- 3 L e : Barn 2 to be | s By | . ~|\'S e S N T /\
— | = -___Eemolished - Barn 3 to be - - -~ : I \
il | ~ [ e ] XY AR XYY e v i
| Existing higher ground level = i Gates to be | | | Gates to be i (11
o to be leveled off: Ex\sting outbuilding removed rroved a8 ' | |
| Proposed GL- 18.000 curtilage listed to the T _" | Proposed boundary wall || | | _W 3 i " ie————————
e R e ___ Dlglaueis | = " GL-17.500 I |Fa& ¥ T TR |
—— = I = K ek SUMTOE s Y | !
=il - | LTI gt » (0 l|‘] i f ' |
T T e e e Ban4tobe "' I Barn 8 lobe | P d boundary fi
Datum 1 5_00 Proposed ground levels s ool roposed boundary fence
1:200 Proposed view from listed building
Longlands barn Longlands barn
mggggg?#%g;]?ltlgo ‘ - F 31/03/22 | 5D Plat 5 remaved, plot 4 re-design added
Old Lau reIS Old L I mat?h inc“ne in ground | Out“ne Of Barn 2 E 27/05/21 | SD :Lo:;;f: reduced, outbuilding efevations
level and return into = Moo
Outine ofBar 1 aurers exaing ovibuding Outine ofbar | [ |
Outline of Bam 3 C | 10/03/20| sD Clruiline: New Laurels added to Listed Building
- /\ Ba rn 3 Ba rn 2 i /\ T B | 06/02/20| s :;C\::’:;':dadd‘:d' Levels added, listed building
I ==l ——cll— Ml R —— =k Out bulldlng to remain |_ FO e ey — g A | 17/10/19 | sp :L::;::::;::3;,::"‘2::‘?“;::2?::6;;:,;;;?5
| ! | e N e _‘ putline of existing barns added to sections
. | REV[DATE | BY [ REVISION NOJES .
| s | | o Suite 2, Clare Hall, )
| , Existing higher ground level St lves Business Park, NG :
| ! | - | | to be leveled off: Parsons Green, S
m HEEHEEE SR A R == ™ I TI _ Proposed GL- 18.000 St Ives, B\ '
GL— 17500 = V (pl_- 1?500 | = . | |_ __y CCImbS, PE27 4WY ,i ‘. .
\/ —h ::" GL- 16.514 [\ V4 L - (i T T i ~ e mrl. EXisting lower GL- 16.400 L=
S e 1 = | N\ | I!!n..r......m....'... : e Sitaiida Ny == N/ ©COF‘YREGH‘I 207 s
Datu m 1 5 - 00 Existing fa“ Of Ia nd between barn 2 and 3 Datl-l m 1 5 . 00 New boundary Wa"—| l[:i::cir?;:i[f:h"i:?;anrungﬂnourchivecrure.cn.uk . FLA “
Web: www.pionningandarchitecture.co.uk h
o . & ' * PROJECT
1:200 Exm‘mg Site Section C-C Proposed Development
: ; Fenton Road,
1:200 Proposed Site Section C-C Fenton,
Warboys
PE28 2SN
fCLIENT
Mr Augstein
DRAWING TITLE
Site Sections
SCALE 1:200 (METRES a5 i ;
( ) — — — Buildings to be demolished —
0 5 10 15 20 SD 1:1250, 1:200 @ A
e " - 1 ATE WG, Na. 3
06/02/20 2018.24.108 TV F




Longlands Barn

Outline of existing

PR Barn 1 to be <
Outline of existing Barn 5 to be = 3 /. =uutline of existing Barn 4 to be Outline of existing Barn 3 to be Outline of existing Barn 2 to be demolished
demolished 2 =+ it demolished demolished demolished e

Plot 2

Plot 1

e e e e e e e R T e e e

i

.ACJ

-

. -

A

— | R_etaining wall,__'plot 4 to sit on
Proposed cobbled ?ourtyard existing\higher ground

1:100 Street Scene A-A

3 =i | |
|
i i 1

", Qiiﬂ;i-LL&#,H:I-LJ'I:L'II'I:_I'.I.Iil_. T TR (GAR R RN RO Raw ANRRNA . nwnangREUNDENRIARORON M RRRNRTNN S KO LTI LT [ e A A A A AN A AN AN
“, | y [l T 1 O i d' ke i< - ¥ el ;."' | FTE 3 |
ﬁ'*'«,, 21 S -j]IJH'I'II'[l'I'II['I'I [ ||r'|if|'|| j ; TlH'I%fnrliﬂri'lrl'l | |'f|'1||{[{ '|'1|]'W|1|'|'1|! il |'|{|J'|'|"\1|1! H

j.- 3 7 L A ; ! 2 = — "=k i : "Q ;Lh‘,‘:’- -mp'"ﬁ-h!
F '3 . ’ - ] £} ™

=t | E
", b

1:100 Street Scene C-C

C | 31/03/22 | SD | Plots 5 removed, plot 4 amended, street scene
amended, garage plans added

B | 27/05/21 | D | Plots 4 & 5 reduced in width, block plan altered
A | 17/10/19 | SD | Plots 1-4 removed, plots re-numbered,

access road widened to 4m

REV| DATE | B8Y [ REVISION NOTES

Suite 2, Clare Hall,
St Ives Business Park,
Parsons Green,

St lves,

Cambs, PE27 AWY

© COPYRIGHT

Tel, 01480474948

PARTNERS —

Email: enquiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk [IMREEU L E
Web: www.planningandarchiteciure co.uk and ARCHITECTURE

PROJECT

Proposed Development
Fenton Road,

Fenton,

Warboys

PE28 2SN

CLIEMT

Mr Augstein

DRAWING TITLE
Street Scenes

7N
DRAWN BY SCALE
1:200 Key Plan SD 1:100 1:200 @ A0
SCALE 1:200 (METRES) sm""E TR TRy : i DATE DWG. No. REV.
0 5 10 15 20 P 5/2/19 2018.24.106 C




0TZ J0 6E£T abed

1No Malus 'Red Sentinel'

* ".'/"
1<
1No Malus 'Red Sentinel’ 4
2No Acer campestre =
Hedge Plants - 7 per linear metre in staggered rows: Native = (n); wildlife friendly = (w); multi-stemmed (MS)
. Density
Name Size Root condition Habit Number
per Isqm
Acer campestre (n) 60cm Bare rooted Deciduous 1 136
Corylus avellana (n) 60cm Bare rooted Deciduous 2 272
Crataegus monogyna (n) 60cm Bare rooted Deciduous 4 544
llex aquifolium (n) 60cm Bare rooted Evergreen 0.5 68
Lonicera periclymenum (n) 60cm Bare rooted Deciduous 0.5 68
Shrubs and Perennials: Native = (n); wildlife friendly = (w); multi-stemmed (MS)
Densit
Name Pot Size Height Habit 4 Number
per sqm
A hybrida 'Richard
Aemone Xy r,’ a miehar 21 20-30cm Late summer white flowers at 1.5m 7 26
Ahrens' (w)
Cornus sanguinea (n) 3l 20-40cm Winter red stems native plant 3 6
Hebe ‘Garden Beauty White’ (w) 21 20-30cm White summer flowers evergreen 50cm 5 15
Lavendula "Hidcote' (w) 5 30-40cm Evergreen grey foliage with summer spikes of 5 10
blues flowers 75¢cm
Polystichum aculeatum (n) 21 30-40cm Evergreen native 'Hard Shield' fernupto 1m 5 10
Rosmarius officinalls: (w) ) 20-30¢m Evergreen fragrant shrub with blue spring flowers 5 10
uptolm
Ruscus aculeatus (n) 3l 20-30cm Evergreen native 75cm 3 15

b

Planting bed 15sgm

21No Anemone x hybrida 'Richard Ahrens'
6No Cornus sanguinea

10No Hehe ‘Beauty Garden White'

10No Lavendula 'Hidcote'

10No Polystichum aculeatum

10No Resmarius officinalis

10No Ruscus aculeatus

4. 1No Malus sylvestris

) BN 1No Acer campestre

1No Acer campestre

Native species hedgerow 24m
24No Acer campestre

48No Corylus avellana

96No Crataegus monogyna
12No llex-aquifolium

12No Lonicera periclymenum

3No Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Robin Hill'

1Mo Acer campestre

1No Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer’

1No Malus sylvestris

1No Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer’

<) 1No Malus sylvestris

1No Carpinus betulus

Trees - Heavy Standard and semi mature: Native = (n); wildlife friendly = (w); multi-stemmed (MS)

Name Girth Root condition Habit Number
Acer campestre (n) 10-12cm Bare root Field Maple - small native tree and hedgerow plant up to 18m ¥
Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Robin Juneberry - white spring flowers and good autumn colour,
=1l MS CG , - 3
Hill' (w) suitable for coppicing, Small tree up to 8m,
Carpinus betulus (n) 10-12cm Bare root Hornbeam - native tree with good Autumn colour 20m+ 3
Malus sylvestris (n) 10-12cm Bare root Crab apple - native small crab apple tree up to 12m 4
Apple (crab) small tree with white spring flowers, red autumn
Malus ‘Red Sentinel' (w) 10-12cm Bare root Eplat ) I , e 2
fruits upto 8m
: i : Ornamental pear - conical with white
Pyrus.calleryana ‘Chanticleer’ (w) | 10-12¢m Bare cook spring flowers and small fruits, good street tree up to 12m 2
Quercus robur 10-12cm Bare root English oak - traditional English specimen tree 20m_+ J
Tilia x europaea (n) 10-12m Bare root Common lime - deciduous tree 20m+ 3

5No Anemone x hybrida 'Richard Ahrens'
5No Hebe '‘Beauty Garden White'

5No Ruscus aculeatus

1No Carpinus betulus

1 1No Acer campestre

.o 1No Malus sylvestris

Native species hedgerow 112m
112No Acer campestre

224No Corylus avellana

448No Crataegus monogyna
56No llex aquifolium

56No Lonicera periclymenum

1No Tilia x europaea

N 1No Carpinus betulus

1No Tilia x europaea

1No Acer campestre

1No Quercus robur

3 A . 1No Tilia x europaea

-

N
'r

D

[
I
The planting shall be carried out in the first planting

(seeding) season following completion of the development
(between December and March inclusive).

All plant stock, plant handling and planting to be
undertaken in accordance with the following British
Standard Specifications and Code of Practice:

e  BS3936:1992 Part 1 Nursery Stock - Specification for
trees and shrubs;

 BS53936:1998 Part 10 Nursery Stock - Specification
for ground cover plants;

o BS4428:1989 - Code of Practice for General
Landscaping Operations (excluding hard surfaces);

e  BS8545:2014 Trees from Nursery to Independence
in the Landscape;

s The Code of Practice for Plant Handling 2002
(Horticultural Trades Association).

LEGEND (SOFT WORKS)

Retained trees and hedgrows

iy | Heavy standard tree

' Shrubs and perennials

- New hedgerow

- Wild Flora lawn - Emorsgate EL1
' Flowering lawn mixture(or similar)

| Boston BS Hard wearing lawn grass
seed mix (or similar)

Notes
Plan to be read in conjunction with the engineer and
landscape drawings.

No measurements to be scaled off drawing. Worked from
figured dimensions only.

All dimensions shown on drawing are shown in millimetres
unless otherwise stated.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on site. Landscape
Architect to be notified immediately of any discrepancies
prior to the commencement of works.

killed ECO]Ogy Consultancy Ltd.

Date Reason for revisions By
05.04:2027 Change in layout W
Client

e Augsesin

Projact

Praposad Develcomant, Fenton Road, Fanton, PE28 28N
Drawing Title:

Saft works

Scale: 1:200 & Al Datel  July 2021

Drawing Mumbar: 126801 Revision Numbsar: A



0TZ J0 OV T 9bed

LEGEND (HARD WORKS)

| Tarmac entrance road, black with
Charcon - Standard flat top square
edge pin kerb; 914mm (1) x 50mm (w)
x 150mm depth

Marshalls Indian sandstone paving - Buff
multi 1140 x 570 x 22mm (or similar)

Marshalls - Tegula Priora 'Pennant
Grey' concrete block paving 80mm
deep, 120 x 160mm, random pattern
(or similar)

Timber close board fence, 1800mm ht,
gates to match

_. Timber single gate, 1800mm height
~— | and 1000mm width

Timber post and rail fence 1400mm ht

Retaining wall faced with brick to match
dwelling 215mm wide; foundations and
levels to be confirmed with engineer

Notes
Plan to be read in conjunction with the engineer and
landscape drawings.

No measurements to be scaled off drawing. Worked from
figured dimensions only.

All dimensions shown on drawing are shown in millimetres
unless otherwise stated.

All dimensions and levels to be checked on site. Landscape
Architect to be notified immediately of any discrepancies
prior to the commencement of works.

&8 Skilled ECOlogy consutares v

Date Reason for revisions By
05,04, 2022 Change in fayout W
Client

M Augsteln

Frojact

Proposad Devedopment, Fenton Road, Fenton, PE28 2514

Drawing Title:

Haril warks
Srale: 13200 @ AD [ate: July 2021

Drawing Number:  1268-02 Rewision Mumbera



Agenda Item 4c

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE 18" JULY 2022

Case No: 21/01287/REM (APPROVAL OF RESERVED
MATTERS)

Proposal: APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED
MATTERS (ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING,
LAYOUT, SCALE), FOLLOWING OUTLINE APPROVAL
REFERENCE 19/01782/OUT, FOR THE ERECTION OF 4
DWELLINGS.

Location: VERNON MOTORS WARBOYS ROAD PIDLEY PE28
3DA

Applicant: MR ROGER PAGET
Grid Ref: 533105 277953
Date of Registration: 29.07.2021

Parish: PIDLEY-CUM-FENTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC as Pidley Parish Council’s recommendation of
refusal is contrary to the Officer’s recommendation of approval.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
The site and surroundings

1.1 The application site which covers an area of approximately 0.36
hectares, is located on the site of the former Vernons Motors on
the eastern edge of Pidley off the B1040. It is brownfield land
and is positioned behind four existing dwellings that front the
highway.

1.2 The land forming the application site comprises two existing
redundant farm buildings and former garage which was used for
the motor trade and associated hard standing. The site includes
a number of trees and hedgerows around its perimeter other
than where it shares a boundary with the newly constructed
dwellings to the west and either side of the existing access track.
To the north, east and south lies open countryside. A public right
of way known as Drag Lane is located 75m to the east and
connects Warboys Road to the south with Fen Road to the
North.

Page 141 of 210



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

The site does not lie within or adjacent to a Conservation Area
and there are no other designated heritage assets that are
considered to be impacted by the development.

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 as identified by the
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and the
Environment Agency Maps for Flooding. The site is at risk of
surface water flooding.

Vehicular access from Warboys Road is located between two
new dwellings and the proposal seeks to formalise the existing
access arrangement.

The Proposal

The current application seeks approval of reserved matters
comprising, access, appearance, scale, layout and landscaping
The development of the site has previously been subject to an
outline planning application (ref. 19/01782/0OUT), approved under
delegated powers on 6th March 2020. 13 conditions were
attached for a development of up to 6 dwellings with all matters
reserved.

Access is proposed from Warboys Road via the existing access
which will be improved and formalised as part of the
development.

The current application seeks approval of a scheme for 4
dwellings each with five bedrooms, garden area, parking and
integral garaging. The reserved matters application seeks to
discharge planning condition 3 (approval of reserved matters)
and condition 10 (mix and type of houses) of the outline planning
permission.

The proposal has been amended during the lifetime of the
application in response to negotiations with Officers and to
address consultee comments, including those of the Parish
Council. These changes have resulted in the following main
amendments:

e Site layout
Design of the proposed dwellings
Landscaping details
The retention of more of the existing trees on the site
Reducing the extent of the development to be within the
site, as approved by the outline planning permission.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (20th July 2021)
(NPPF 2021) sets out the three objectives - economic, social and

Page 142 of 210



2.2

2.3

environmental - of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2021 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2021 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):
¢ delivering a sufficient supply of homes;
¢ Dbuilding a strong, competitive economy;
e achieving well-designed, beautiful and safe places;
e conserving and enhancing the natural, built and historic
environment

Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design Guide are
also relevant and materials considerations.

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

3.

3.1

3.2

PLANNING POLICIES

Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)
e LP1 Amount of Development

LP2 Strategy for Development

LP4 Contributing to infrastructure delivery

LP5 Flood Risk

LP6 Wastewater Management

LP9 Small settlements

LP11 Design Context

LP12 Design implementation

LP13 Place making

LP14 Amenity

LP15 Surface water

LP16 Sustainable travel

LP17 Parking and vehicle movement

LP25 Housing Mix

LP30 Biodiversity and geodiversity

LP31 Trees, woodland, hedges and hedgerows

Supplementary Planning Guidance
¢ Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017) including:

1 Introduction:
1.6 Design principles
2.1 Context and local distinctiveness
2.5 Landscape character areas
2.7 Architectural character
3.5 Parking/ servicing
3.6 Landscape and Public Realm
3.7 Building Form
3.8 Building Detailing

Page 143 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

4.1 Implementation

e Developer Contributions SPD (2011)

e Huntingdonshire Townscape and Landscape Assessment
SPD (2022)

e Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2017

e Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3

e Annual Monitoring Report — Part 1 (Housing) 2019/2020
(October 2020)

e ECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide (CCC
SPD) 2012

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies

4,

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

PLANNING HISTORY

1200279FUL — Erection of 2 detached dwellings and garages —
Approved April 2012

18/01265/S73 - Variation of condition 2 of application
1200279FUL - Proposed alterations including adding a first-floor
extension to Plot 1 — Approved August 2018

19/01782/OUT - Erection of up to six dwellings - Approved 6
March 2020

21/80125/COND - Conditional information for 19/01782/OUT: C3
(Details Reserved (All Reserved) ), C6 (Provision of
Parking/Turning Cycle Space), C7 (Levels), C13 (Protect of
Trees/Hedges during work) — Pending Consideration

CONSULTATIONS

Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council — Recommends refusal on the
following grounds:

e The volume of trees already removed and proposed to be
removed. This was upsetting and felt unnecessary by the
councillors. They would like to see the current eco system
maintained and enhanced. The trees proposed in the
application were not appropriate due to the clay soil and
surroundings. It was felt that hawthorns or similar would
be more appropriate.

¢ |t was also felt that the size of the newly proposed houses
would make the area overdeveloped and that the village
would benefit from smaller houses such as 3-4 bedrooms
so that they are more affordable.

e There were still concerns with the flooding in this area as
the neighbour currently has to pump the water out of their
garden continuously.

Page 144 of 210


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways — The proposal is
unlikely to have any adverse effect on the public highway should
planning permission be approved. Conditions are recommended.

Environment Agency — confirms that there are no environmental
constraints associated with the site and therefore has no
comments to make.

HDC Trees and Landscape — no objection following the receipt of
amended plans.

HDC Urban Design Officer — no objection following the receipt of
amended plans.

Local Lead Flood Authority — response awaited.

REPRESENTATIONS

The occupiers of 7 neighbouring properties have been notified of
the application.

1 letter of objection has been received from a neighbouring
property raising the following concerns:

. Access road is narrow and will not allow cars to pass and
increase danger to highway safety

. Some window openings are too large and out of keeping

. The proposal contains little or no replacement trees

. Plot 4 is built very close to the edge of the site and will
result in loss of privacy from bedroom windows

. Outline permission was granted for 6 smaller properties

and as such the reserved matters does not comply with the
outline permission

. Larger properties proposed are out of keeping with the
village
. The proposal does not provide any affordable housing

contrary to Policy LP24

Following further consultation with the objector, the following
additional comments were received:

. Welcomes changes to plans which address overlooking
concerns
. Uncertainty over method to dispose of surface water and

requests drainage strategy is made public

1 letter of support has been received on the following grounds:

. The development will make a positive aesthetic impact on
the area and provide much needed housing. We support the
application wholeheartedly.

Page 145 of 210



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

ASSESSMENT

When determining planning applications, it is necessary to
establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in
order to come to a decision. The following legislation,
government policy and guidance outline how this should be
done.

As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of
the development plan, so far as material to the application, and
to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within
paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2021). The development plan is
defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development
plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or
approved in that area”.

In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of:
e Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019)
e Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste
Local Plan (2021)
St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029
Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017)
Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018)
Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019)
Buckden Neighbourhood Plan (2021)
Bury Neighbourhood Plan (2021)

The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly
construed to include any consideration relevant in the
circumstances which bears on the use or development of the
land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97
(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting
that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of the
Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material
consideration and significant weight is given to this in
determining applications.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this reserved
matters application are:
e The Principle of Development
e Impact upon the Character of the Area, including
Appearance, Scale, Layout and Landscaping
Residential Amenity
Highway Safety and Parking
Biodiversity
Trees
Flooding and Drainage

Page 146 of 210



Principle of Development

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

In planning policy terms, Policy LP9 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan identifies Pidley as a Small Settlement. Development
proposals which are located within this type of settlement will be
supported where the amount and location of the development is
considered to be sustainable.

The principle of residential development on the application site
has already been established through the granting of outline
permission 19/01782/OUT, having been previously assessed
against Policy LP9.

The application was accompanied by an illustrative masterplan
which demonstrated how the development could be arranged
within the site in order to accommodate this number of dwellings.

This current reserved matters application is for 4 dwellings only
and, therefore, accords with the outline planning permission
which is for a maximum of 6 dwellings. An assessment of the
detailed issues for consideration is set out below.

Impact on the Character of the Area including Appearance, Scale,

Layout and Landscaping
7.10 Policy LP11 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 requires

7.11

new development to respond positively to its context. Policy
LP12 requires new development to contribute positively to the
area's character and identity and to successfully integrate with
adjoining buildings.

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF 2021 states that planning policies
and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not
just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout
and appropriate and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change
(such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the
arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and materials to
create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work
and visit

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain
an appropriate amount and mix of development, including green
and other public space, and support local facilities and transport
networks; and

Page 147 of 210



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

f) create spaces that are safe, inclusive and accessible and that
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users.

Paragraph 40 of the National Design Guide 2019 states that
development should respond positively to the features of the site
itself and the surrounding context, including form and local
character.

The outline permission does not place any specific restrictions on
the reserved matters in terms of its layout, scale and appearance
and therefore the proposals falls to be considered under the
requirements of the above mentioned policies and guidance. The
description of development as approved as part of the outline
permission included the term “up to six dwellings” to provide
flexibility at the reserved matters stage as concerns were raised
over the density of 6 dwellings as shown on the indicative layout
plan submitted as part of the outline application. Condition 13 of
the outline planning permission requires that the trees on site are
retained unless otherwise agreed with the local planning
authority, i.e. through the approval of the reserved matters.

The scale, appearance and landscaping of the proposed
dwellings is traditional and has been improved during the lifetime
of the application through consultation with the Council’s Urban
Design and Trees and Landscape Officers and the scheme has
been amended to take account of the comments provided by
these consultees. Most of the detailed comments of the Urban
Design Officer and the Trees and Landscape Officer have been
implemented, to include reducing the dominance of parked cars
within the central courtyard and maintain attractive vistas into
and out of the site, such that the scheme delivers a development
that is considered to be of an appropriately high standard of
design.

The development as proposed is laid out in a courtyard style
reflective of the sites agricultural history and the relatively rural
character of the area. The dwellings are all 1.5 storeys in scale to
limit visual impact beyond the site boundaries with the use of a
mix of materials consisting of rustic blend brick, brown pantile,
timber cladding and fenestration. The mix of materials is
considered to successfully break up the mass of the individual
units and to give the appearance of an evolved authentic style of
architecture reflecting the barn-like appearance of the proposed
dwellings. Having regard for the eclectic mix of styles and
periods of architecture in this part of the village it is considered
that the layout, scale and appearance of the proposed
development responds appropriately to the site and to
neighbouring development and it is considered that the
development would contribute positively to the area’s character
and identity and enhance an otherwise redundant brownfield site
adjacent to existing residential properties.

Page 148 of 210



7.16

717

The application is supported by a scheme of hard and soft
landscaping, including details of planting, boundary treatments
and hard surface treatments. 1.8m close board fencing is
proposed for security between the different units but post and rail
fencing is proposed on the site edges to provide a softer edge
between the development boundary and the open countryside
beyond. It is recommended that permitted development rights
are removed for means of enclosure to prevent the erection of
other boundary treatments on the sensitive site boundaries and
encourage residents to manage and maintain the existing and
proposed boundary planting.

Subject to this condition and a condition that requires the
implementation of the approved landscaping, it is considered that
the proposed development would contribute positively to the
area’s character and identity and would not have any significant
adverse effect on visual amenity. Subject to the imposition of
conditions referred to above, it is considered that the proposed
development would accord with Policies LP11 and LP12 of the
Local Plan to 2036, section 3.7 of the Huntingdonshire Design
Guide 2017, paragraphs 127 and 130 of the NPPF, as well as
the relevant paragraphs of the National Design Guide 2019.

Residential Amenity

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Policy LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 states a proposal will be
supported where a high standard of amenity is provided for all
users and occupiers of the proposed development and
maintained for users and occupiers of neighbouring land and
buildings.

The NPPF, at paragraph 127 states that decisions should ensure
that developments should create places with a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users.

The nearest residential neighbours are those that front Warboys
Road to the west of the site. Officers have fully assessed the
impact of the development with regards to amenity, including
matters of overlooking, overshadowing, overbearing impact and
loss of privacy relating to existing residents. The scheme has
been amended in response to concerns raised by a neighbouring
occupier in regard to privacy and the neighbour has
subsequently confirmed that their concerns with overlooking from
plot 4 have been satisfactorily addressed

The layout, interface distances and existing and proposed
boundary treatments, as set out above, are such that it is not
considered that the proposed development would give rise to any
significant loss of amenity to any neighbouring occupiers and
that the future occupiers of the proposed development would
enjoy a high standard of amenity. The proposed dwellings also

Page 149 of 210



7.22

7.23

achieves good levels of surveillance over the central courtyard
and parking areas.

It is considered that the development of four 4 dwellings
represents an appropriate number and density in order to satisfy
the requirements of Policy LP14 and there are no concerns with
regard to overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking as a result
of the proposed development, for the reasons set out in detail
above.

The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF,
and Policy LP14 of the Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 in
respect of residential amenity.

Highway Safety and Parking

7.24

7.25

Access serving the site is taken from Warboys Road. Access
was not approved at outline stage but given the site constraints
and lack of any other suitable alternative access location, the
access as now proposed was shown on indicative site layout
plan considered by the Local Planning and Highway Authorities
during the course of outline planning application. The internal
road arrangement is as envisaged at outline stage albeit with a
fewer number of dwellings providing more space for vehicle
parking and turning. An objection has been raised by a local
resident on grounds that the access is narrow and would not
allow for 2 cars to pass potentially resulting in a risk to highway
safety. The access width is 6m with a roadway reducing to 5m.
Given the low number of dwellings served by the proposed
access and the nature of the highway network in and around the
site, it is not considered that the design of the access would
cause unacceptable harm to highway safety having regard for
paragraph 111 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021.
In this regard the Cambridgeshire County Council as the Local
Highway Authority (LHA) has raised no objections to the
proposal. Additional conditions have been recommended to
restrict the provision of gates across the access, the provision of
parking and turning areas, provision of visibility splays, means to
prevent surface water running on to the highway and hard
surfacing to be provided along the access. These conditions are
considered reasonable and necessary with the exception of
requiring the provision of parking and turning areas, as such
provision is already in place and enforceable by condition 6 of
the outline planning permission.

Parking spaces for vehicles are located close to the residents’
homes encouraging their use. Most parking spaces are provided
on driveways to the fronts of homes and under integrated car
ports, helping screen them in views so that shared courtyard
appears less cluttered and dominated by vehicles. All dwellings
have a secure garage for cycle storage in addition to three

Page 150 of 210



7.26

7.27

parking spaces in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Local Plan.
The level of parking provision is considered to be acceptable.

The internal arrangement of the site has been reviewed by the
LHA and the HDC Operations Team. These consultees have
confirmed that the proposed arrangement is acceptable in
highway safety terms and that the proposed road layout would
enable a refuse freighter to service the site satisfactorily and that
bin collection points are acceptable.

Given the scale and use of the proposed development and the
favourable consultation comments received by the LHA, Officers
are satisfied the proposal is acceptable with regards to highway
safety and parking provision. The application therefore complies
with Policy LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 as
the access roads would provide appropriate space for vehicular
movements within the site, provide for sufficient parking and
would take into account highway safety when entering or leaving
the site and within the site.

Biodiversity and Trees

7.28

7.29

7.30

Policy LP30 of the Local Plan states that a proposal will ensure
no net loss of biodiversity and provide a net gain where possible,
through the planning retention, enhancement and creation of
habitats and wildlife features, appropriate to the scale, type and
location of development.

The outline application was supported by a Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal (PEA) by Applied Ecology Ltd. The Wildlife
Trust reviewed this and advised that the PEA identified no
significant constraints to development and has made suitable
mitigation and  enhancement  recommendations. The
implementation of these recommendations are not required by
way of a suitably worded planning condition nor is the PEA listed
as an approved document on the outline planning permission.
Notwithstanding this, the proposed development would
incorporate the retention of trees and hedgerows and see the
planting of new native species. Overall, and subject to a
condition to be imposed that requires details of ecological
mitigation measures to be submitted, approved and installed
prior to occupation, it is considered that the proposed
landscaping and layout is in accordance with Policy LP30 of
Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 and the NPPF (2021) and
would avoid a net loss in biodiversity.

No details of existing trees were submitted with the outline
application. It was considered that the existing trees and hedges
should be retained to help integrate the development into the
surrounding locality and to protect the amenities of nearby
occupants which help to screen the development. A condition
was imposed on the outline planning permission to retain the

Page 151 of 210



7.31

trees on the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing and provide
a tree constraints/protection plan and a full tree survey. An
Arboriculture Impact Assessment has been submitted as part of
the reserved matters application which sets out that 6 trees will
be removed to facilitate the proposed development. Subject to
the approved re-panting proposals being implemented, this is
considered acceptable and there is no objection from the
Councils Landscape Officer to the loss of these trees. The details
submitted in this regard partially discharge the requirements of
condition 13, although the tree protection details remain to be
approved and are currently subject to a separate discharge of
condition application 21/80125/COND.

Overall, and subject to conditions, it is considered that the
proposal is in accordance with Policy LP30 Biodiversity and
Geodiversity and LP31 Trees, woodland and hedgerows.

Flood Risk and Drainage

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

The application site is in Flood Zone 1 so is in an area at the
least risk of flooding and does not lie within any flood plain. The
site is acknowledged to be in area at risk of surface water
flooding. Concerns have been raised by a nearby resident that
the development will result in increased risk of surface water
flooding to their property.

Conditions 4 of the outline planning permission requires the
surface and foul water drainage scheme for the site to be
submitted and approved before any development commences
and constructed prior to occupation. Concern has been raised by
the Parish Council and a resident that the scheme for the
disposal of surface water is unknown and requests that it be
made available as part of the reserved matters application.
Notwithstanding that the drainage design would be subject to
building regulations approval, the applicant is required by
condition to submit such details for approval prior to the
commencement of development. It is not considered that the
development is of such a layout or density that an appropriate
drainage scheme could not be forthcoming via the separate
discharge of conditions process which could seek to create
betterment in terms of surface water management compared to
the existing situation.

The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has been consulted on
the application and has so far not provided a response.

It is considered therefore that the reserved matters deal
appropriately with the flood risks and drainage of the site in
accordance with the requirements of Policy LP5 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. Condition 4 of the outline
planning permission remains to be discharged.

Page 152 of 210



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):

7.36

7.37

The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the
Council’'s adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover
footpaths and access, health, community facilities, libraries and
lifelong learning and education. A signed Unilateral Undertaking
was secured as part of the outline planning permission for the
payment of refuse bins.

The proposals are therefore in compliance with Policy LP4 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (2019).

Other Matters

7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

Accessible and Adaptable Homes

The requirements within Policy LP25 of Huntingdonshire’s Local
Plan relating to accessible and adaptable homes are applicable
to all new dwellings. This states that all dwellings should meet
Building Regulation requirement M4(2) ‘accessible and
adaptable dwellings’ and that for all affordable housing an
appropriate  proportion should meet Building Regulation
requirement M4(3) ‘wheelchair adaptable dwellings’. These
include design features that enable mainstream housing to be
flexible enough to meet the current and future needs of most
households, including in particular older people and those with
some disabilities, and also families with young children.

The outline planning application was determined with a condition
requiring compliance with this policy. As such, there is a
requirement for this scheme to provide dwellings in accordance
with optional Building Regulation requirement M4(2) ‘accessible
and adaptable homes’. The applicant’s agent has confirmed via
the Design and Access Statement that the submitted house
types accord with the requirements of this condition.

Water Efficiency

Policy LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036 requires proposals that
include housing to comply with the optional building regulation for
water efficiency, as set out in Approved Document G.

Condition 11 of the outline planning permission requires that
proposed residential dwelling(s) hereby approved shall be
constructed and fitted out to comply with the Building
Regulations 2010 (as amended) optional requirement for water
efficiency, as set out in Approved Document G prior to first
occupation. The applicant’'s agent has confirmed that all
dwellings have been designed to maximise their integral energy
efficiency in terms of water efficiency measures to reduce water
usage and it remains for the development to be completed and
retained in compliance with this condition.

Page 153 of 210



CONCLUSION

7.42 The principle of development on this site for up to 6 dwellings
was established at outline stage. This application for a total of
4 dwellings deals with the details of the access, layout, scale,
appearance and landscaping. These details have been found to
be satisfactory, subject to conditions, in accordance with the
requirements of both local and national planning policy and the
proposal creates a development which responds to the
opportunities and constraints of the site and relevant planning
policies and the principles of the outline planning permission.

7.43 Having regard to all relevant material considerations, it is
recommended that approval be granted for the reserved matters
approval for 4 dwellings to include for details of layout, scale,
appearance and landscaping subject to the imposition of
appropriate conditions. The requirements of conditions 3
(approval of reserved matters) and condition 10 (mix and type of
houses) have been satisfied and discharged by the submission
of the reserved matters application. All other conditions imposed
on the outline planning permission, in addition to those
recommended below remain to be discharged or complied with.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following
e Approved plans
Materials
Implementation of landscaping
Ecological mitigation specification/details
Restrict the provision of gates across the access
Provision of visibility splays
Means to prevent surface water running on to the highway
Hard surfacing to be provided along the access
Remove Permitted Development (PD) rights for
fences/means of enclosure
Remove PD rights for additional hardstanding to dwellings
Provision and retention of boundary treatments
Provision and retention of cycle parking
Details of bin storage and presentation areas

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Lewis Marshall Senior Development
Management Officer — lewismarshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Page 154 of 210


mailto:lewismarshall@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

From: Louise Clowery <clerk@pidleycumfenton-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 17 August 2021 11:33

To: DMAdmin

Subject: Re: Planning Permission Consultation - Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley (ref
21/01287/REM)

Hi,

This was rejected by all of our councillors with one abstaining due to a pecuniary interest for the
following reasons:

- Overdevelopment

- Access concerns generally and with respect to the emergency services turning circle that is
referenced in the application.

- If there is a risk of flooding, we should remind the local planning authority of its responsibilities
under paragraph 103 of the NPPF: this applies to all forms of flood risk, and that planning applications
for development in flood risk areas (which includes areas at risk from surface water flooding) must be
accompanied by a flood risk assessment (NPPF footnote 20 to paragraph 103).

As well as pointing out the risk we can use other councillors suggestions to improve the development
and make it safer and more sustainable. For example, integrated water management: and also the
information on sustainable drainage

- The proposal contradicts the following in the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (to 2036).

e LP2 Strategy for Development
o Does not provide opportunities for communities to achieve local development aspirations
for housing, employment, commercial or community related schemes.
o Does not Protect the character of existing settlements and recognise the intrinsic
character and beauty of the surrounding countryside;
o Does not Provide complementary green infrastructure enhancement and provision to
balance recreational and biodiversity needs and to support climate change adaptation.

e LP4 Contributing to Infrastructure Levy
o While there will be CIL payments to be made for the development there is concern about
drainage and flood prevention and protection, especially given the concerns from
neighbouring properties and the sewerage issues withessed and recorded on several
occasions in the village

e LP5 Flood Risk

o The surrounding areas of the site regularly flood. It is believed that the additional hard
paving although permeable would represent an increased risk of water being unable to
run-off. Attenuation solutions or settling ponds should be considered. 4.66 of the Local
Plan states; The National Planning Policy Framework sets strict tests to protect people
and property from flooding. Where these tests are not met, national policy is clear that
new development should not be allowed. The main steps to be followed are set out in
the NPPG and are designed to ensure that if there are better sites in terms of flood risk,
or a proposed development cannot be made safe, it should not be permitted.

Page 155 of 210



o 4.68 States; In situations where there is a risk of flooding from any source, including
from surface and groundwater, there are critical drainage problems or the sites is 1
hectare or more a site-specific flood risk assessment is required. There is national
guidance on the level of detail to be included in a site-specific flood risk assessment
contained in the NPPG, which is expanded upon and given local context in the
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD. Further requirements may be required by the
Environment Agency or by the Middle Level Commissioners or other Internal Drainage
Boards if the site is within the area they manage.

e LP6 Waste Water Management
o There are concerns in the Parish that the increase in the volume of property in one
single location would over-burden the already failing sewage solution for the village.
There should be full and substantiated evidence that the connection to the mains drains
will not cause detriment to the existing, ‘at capacity’ system.

e 4.85 Built up areas definition
o Allows for individual plots and minor scale development. Not since the formation of Pond
Close (circa 1940’s) has there been a development of this scale. It is not believed to be
in keeping with the character of the village in its size and as a gated community.

e LP7 Spatial Planning
o A proposal will be supported where it will not undermine the role of the primary
settlement within the Spatial Planning Area or adversely affect the relationship between
the settlements of the Spatial Planning Area whether this is through its scale or other
impacts. We do not believe that the development meets this criteria.

e LP9 Small Settlements

o The development contravenes most of the requirements of the plan but particularly
4.102 which is extracted here with points highlighted in bold; The potential benefits of
promoting some growth within Small Settlements include helping to create a more
balanced and diverse local population; enabling young people to stay in the
communities they grew up in; and providing opportunities for older people
seeking to move into more accessible housing within the community. It can also
help sustain the available services and facilities by maintaining population numbers
helping to address the particular challenge of declining rural populations relating to
falling household sizes. Growth can help support a living, working countryside capable of
adapting to changing needs. Development in Small Settlements will typically
comprise smaller sites providing a range of opportunities for small builders and
those wishing to build or commission their own homes.

e Section C Development Management
o There are concerns with several elements of C.2 as highlighted below;

= Overlooking/loss of privacy - There are properties who's immediate privacy
would be compromised by the proposal

= Loss of light or overshadowing

= Parking

= Highway safety - The entrance to the proposed development is at a pinch point
in the existing highway on Warboys road. The increased volume of traffic in and
out would cause further hindrance

=  Traffic

Page 1%6 of 210



= Noise

= Effect on listed building and conservation area

= Layout and density of building - This is a development in excess of the
previous planning submission by overall volume

= Design, appearance and materials

» Government policy - Please refer to policy points outlined above

= Disabled persons' access

= Proposals in the Development Plan

= Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions) - note that the
previous outline was for 6 dwellings of smaller size which would be more
appealing to younger residents as noted in LP9 of the Local Plan

= Nature conservation

It was asked that if this does go to Development control, can we have District Councillor
representation?

Kind regards
Louise

Louise Clowery
Clerk to Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council
07907 339 077 or 01487 500 115

On 2021-07-30 12:04, Dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk wrote:

Dear Parish Clerk,

Please find correspondence from Development Management at Huntingdonshire District Council
attached to this email in relation to the following application for planning permission.

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout,
Scale) following outline approval reference 19/01782/0UT for the erection of 6 dwellings.

Site Address: Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley
Reference: 21/01287/REM

Opting out of email correspondence

We are continually striving to improve the service we deliver to our customers. As part of this we are
now contacting our customers by email where possible in an effort to provide a faster, more efficient
service.

If you would prefer not to receive correspondence from us via email you have the right to opt out. If
you wish to opt out please contact us at the address provided below so that we can remove your email
details from our records.

Keeping safe on the internet

You should never open a file attached to an email when you do not trust the sender's authenticity.

We will only contact you via email when you have already contacted us in relation to this specific
application (or one directly related to it) and provided your email address as a contact - we will not
transfer your contact details between unrelated applications.

Page 1537 of 210



If you have any doubts or concerns relating to this email please contact us directly, our contact details
are provided below.

Development Management
Huntingdonshire District Council

T: 01480 388388
E: dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 1%8 of 210



From: Louise Clowery <clerk@pidleycumfenton-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 13 February 2022 21:23

To: Tim Hartley

Cc: Control, Development (Planning)

Subject: Re: Planning Permission Consultation - Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley (ref
21/01287/REM)

Hi Tim,

Please see below the response from the council in our meeting on Wednesday:
This was discussed in great detail and ended up being rejected due to the following:

The volume of trees already removed and proposed to be removed. This was upsetting and felt
unnecessary by the councillors. They would like to see the current eco system maintained and
enhanced. The trees proposed in the application were not appropriate due to the clay soil and
surroundings. It was felt that hawthorns or similar would be more appropriate.

It was also felt that the size of the newly proposed houses would make the area overdeveloped and
that the village would benefit from smaller houses such as 3-4 bedrooms so that they are more
affordable.

There were still concerns with the flooding in this area as the neighbour currently has to pump the
water out of their garden continuously.

Kind regards

Louise

Louise Clowery
Clerk to Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council
07907 339 077 or 01487 500 115

On 2022-01-21 15:10, Tim Hartley wrote:

Hi Louise
That extension of time is fine
Many thanks

Tim

Page 159 of 210



Tim Hartley
Development Management Team Leader (South)
Development Services

Tel: 07514 621803

From: Control, Development (Planning) <Development.Control@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Sent: 21 January 2022 14:56

To: Tim Hartley <Tim.Hartley@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Subject: FW: Planning Permission Consultation - Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley (ref
21/01287/REM)

Hi Tim

Please see PC EOT request below for one of your apps.

Thanks Kev

Kevin Simpson

Development Management Officer
Development Services

Corporate Delivery

Huntingdonshire District Council

01480 388424 (Planning Customer Services - not direct dial)

07547 671902 (Mobile Telephone)

<] kevin.simpson@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Please visit the Planning Pages of our new website at

http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/planning for all planning related enquiries, including

full details of the pre-application services we are providing.

Page 1é0 of 210



Any comments represent the informal opinion of an officer of Huntingdonshire District Council. These
comments are made without prejudice to any eventual determination through the planning process.

One community of residents and

businesses, supporting
our local town centres.

iy

EA B2 #ThinkLocalHunts antin_gdonéhire

From: DMAdmin <Development.ManagementAdmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Sent: 21 January 2022 11:34

To: DevelopmentControl <DevelopmentControl@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Subject: FW: Planning Permission Consultation - Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley (ref
21/01287/REM)

From: Louise Clowery <clerk@pidleycumfenton-pc.gov.uk>

Sent: 21 January 2022 11:04

To: DMAdmin <Development.ManagementAdmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Planning Permission Consultation - Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley (ref
21/01287/REM)

Hi,

Our next parish meeting is the 9th February. Are we able to get an extension until the 10th to get a
response to you please.

Kind regards

Louise

Page 161 of 210



Louise Clowery
Clerk to Pidley cum Fenton Parish Council
07907 339 077 or 01487 500 115

On 2022-01-21 07:55, Dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk wrote:

Dear Parish Clerk,

Please find correspondence from Development Management at Huntingdonshire District Council
attached to this email in relation to the following application for planning permission.

Proposal: Application for approval of reserved matters (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout,
Scale), following outline approval reference 19/01782/0UT, for the erection of 4 dwellings.

Site Address: Vernon Motors Warboys Road Pidley
Reference: 21/01287/REM

Opting out of email correspondence

We are continually striving to improve the service we deliver to our customers. As part of this we are
now contacting our customers by email where possible in an effort to provide a faster, more efficient
service.

If you would prefer not to receive correspondence from us via email you have the right to opt out. If
you wish to opt out please contact us at the address provided below so that we can remove your email
details from our records.

Keeping safe on the internet

You should never open a file attached to an email when you do not trust the sender's authenticity.

We will only contact you via email when you have already contacted us in relation to this specific
application (or one directly related to it) and provided your email address as a contact - we will not
transfer your contact details between unrelated applications.

If you have any doubts or concerns relating to this email please contact us directly, our contact details
are provided below.

Development Management
Huntingdonshire District Council

T: 01480 388388
E: dmadmin@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution

Page 162 of 210



or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived

Page 1653) of 210



Development Management Committee

{NB Scale = 1:2,500 Application Ref:21/01287/REM

Date Created: 04/07/2022 Location: Pidley-cum-Fenton

/——‘\
Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT o 0N ETL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

?” d

«««««««

uuuuuuuuuuuuuu

nnnnnnnn

HHHHHHH

uuuuu
nnnnnnnn

AAAAAAA
uuuuu

nnnnnnnn

Key
7/, Scheduled Ancient Monuments

[ Listed Buildings
Conservation Area
|~ /] The Site

L

TTTTT

uuuuu

uuuuu

Noggins House N .
======

CCCCCC

uuuuu




0TZ J0 G9T abed

i Py . : : H .-,II 5 \ g i
SUBJECT TO FURTHER APPLICATIQ!
' ' _ I OUTLINE APPRDVED_BOUNDAIIBYf :
E REVISED ON SITE CLEARANCE |
AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

N
" LOCATION PLAN ™ —
SCALE 1:1250
VERNON MOTORS SITE

WARBQOYS ROAD
PIDLEY

REV B OUTLINE BOUNDARY SHOWN
REV C COLOUR GREEN OUT BOUNDARY
REV D OUTLINE BOUNDARY 1 JUNE 2022

ISSUE PLANNING

‘ DATE ‘ DEC 2021

RIDER SALE

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE

TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd.

www.ridersale.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020

PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4
VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

PROJECT

DO NOT SCALE LISE FIGURED DEMENSEONS ONLY

DRAWING NO: |[753-766-| L-8

REVISION: REV D

SCALE  1: | 1250




0TZ J0 99T abed

CYCLE STORE
IN GARAGES
and CYCLE SHED:

3 IN GARAGE
2 IN CAR POR
WITH LOCK STAND

1.8M CLOSE BOARDED INNER FENCE
TO ALL PLOTS FOR SECURITY
POST AND RAIL FENCE ON BOUNDARY

CAR PORT

CAR PORT

TURNING AREA ‘or DEL| /ERIES /
AND EMERGENCY/FIRE,TENDER ACCESS'(
16.8M MINIM 'I)J{NING CIRCLE /I

/ / |
/

Y
)

POST AND RAIL FENCE TO GIVE VIEW

MANHOLE CHAMBER 7 \

‘:_\‘*‘? - | N
~,.J s e PA N b.A, ANV L
A | % % "
by TS s ‘ \ VACUUM SEWER / 110mm MDPE ANGLIA WATER . 2 S
' ¥ ‘ - / | BRANCH VACUUM SEWER gﬁﬁfyRFEATUR » y‘ - g
ADJACENT P St SRR 3 / HOUSES EACH y =2
APy % “ : 4 I 1A \ | =
HEE P F . ) p . IR )\
5M WIDTH TO 10M FROM|ROADWA BTt 1 e o »
SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM R ' 12.5T EMERGENCY- - CAR PORT
2 ED }
! > ;
&

\

.’Q AREA FOR SURFACE WATER
Sy
™ HOLDING TANKS
DRAIN TO DITCH
SEE SPECIALIST DESIGN

CONDITION NO. 4

CARPINUS BETULUS  SITE AREA TO BE

NEW PLANTING SUBJECT TO FURTHER APPLICATION
ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE

VEHIELE LOADING

—

EXISTING ACCESS RQAD A
6MWIDTH 5.0M ROADWAY SBALED
PRAIN AWAY FROM PURLIC Gl-\n(VAY EXISTING DRIVE

DROPPED KERB

= BLOCK PAVING \\
~ N AN
~ A\

B 51 0CK EDGE DETAILS =
il L ——

\\ =
RE TENRER PUMP ACCES i\,///"/
\ N

-

J
BRICK PLANTERS
T LOW PLANTERS

GRASS

=S

SR Ss 41M
MANHOLESSFANMBER

VACUUM SEWER

FOOTWAY

TO CONTINUE THROUGH
ACCESS AS DROPPED KERB
CROSSO

TREES RETAINED
SEE DAVID WATTS
TREE REPORT
CONDITION NO. 13

EXISTING DRIVE

Omm MDPE ANGLIA WATER
VACUUM MAIN SEWER

ADJACENT PROPER

CAR PORT /

CYCLE STORE LL HOUSES ENTRANCE
2m x 2m PEDESTRIAN VISIBILITY SPLAYS IN GARAGES
PLOT 4 and CYCLE SHEDS PLOT 3

HOUSE TYPE F

HOUSE TYPE G CARPINUS BETULUS

NEW PLANTING
ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE

Ny
R VAY
SN

N

ROAD JUNCTION AS AGREED
WITH CC HIGHWAYS

FIRST FLOOR 766 HOUSE AREAS VM SITE PIDLEY
OVER GARAGE
AREA
HOUSE NUMBER  BEDROOMS GROUNDFLOOR  FIRSTFLOOR  TOTAL M\
INCLUDING GARAGES HOUSE AREA PLOT AREAS
VERNON MOTORS SITE PIDLEY PLOT1  TYPEC 5 130,09 118.76 2885 624.2
PLOT2  TYPEE 5 1297 118,53 28.23 665.97
PLOT3  TYPEF 5 1297 11944 29,14 1238.38
PLOTA  TYPEG 5 129,16 116,38 25,54 126,96
SUNNYCROFT
) CARPINUS BETULUS TOTAL AREAS 991.76
\ S T NEW PLANTING
- ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE
HOUSE AREAS INCLUDE GARAGES
\ 0 PLOT 2
. AREAS MEASURED TO 1.5M AT SLOPING EAVES
43M SITE LINE SUNNYCROFT FARM HOUSE TYPE E PLANTING STRIP SITE AREA 1496 M2 TOTALNEW BUILDINTERNAL AREA  991.76
) PLOT 1 (INCLUDING GARAGES)
HOUSE TYPE C
EXISTING BUILDINGS DEMOLISHED
A VERNON MOTOR 380,34
NORTH AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS 530,64
GRASS TOTAL AREAS BUILDINGS ON SITE 91098
PAVING TO LEVEL
ENTRANCE THRESHOLD
ALL HOUSES 2 TREES TO BE INCLUDED IN SECOND APPLICATION
ARPINUS BETULUS
NEW PLANTING INSTALL 6 BAT BOXES 1 PER PROPERTY
5 CYCLE SPACES ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE PLUS AN OWL NEST BOX

ALLOW 13mm SQ. HOLLE TO BE INSTALLED
IN EACH BOUNDARY FENCE

SEE ALSO DAVID WATTS
TREE PLANTING PLAN

REV C 11 MAY 2022

\\ SITE LAYOUT BLOCK PLAN 2 TREES ADDED
. CARPINUS BETULUS
// REV D BOUNDARY
— 43M SITE LINE : 1 JUNE 2022
UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW \ SCALE 1:200
\\ REV B BAT BOXES ETC
OF ONCOMMING TRAFFIC \ e e
RIDER SALE THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON ~ CAMBRIDGE projecT PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -6 753-766r-L-6
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd.|f —— - - - VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY REVISION REV D
www.ridersale.co.uk COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020 DO NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY —S@‘BHOO —3m _5m ISSU E PLAN N I NG DATE DEC 202] SCALE 1: 200 @Al




LAYER COMBINATION L-2

110mm VACUUM MAIN SEWER EXTENSION

VERNON MOTORS SITE PIDLEY HOUSES GRAVITY SYSTEN TO DRAN T0 TWO

INLET CHAMBERS CONNECTED
TO THE VACUUM MAIN SEWER

ALL TO ANGLIA WATER DETAILS

s PLOTI 1 5 BEDROOMS
S PLOT 2 5 BEDROOMS
N "-‘" ¥~ CARPINUS BETULUS oT 5 o BEDROOMS
e : ‘ ESY B NEW PLANTING PLOT 4 5 BEDROOMS
,‘/' ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE
: PLOT 2
HOUSE TYPE E PLANTING STRIP BCP  BIN COLLECTION POINT

TC TRAFFIC CARMING SURFACE

HOUSE TYPE C TREES RETAINED

NORTH

GRASS
OR CROPS FIELD

PAVING TO LEVEL
ENTRANCE THRESHOLD
ALL HOUSES

2 TREES TO BE INCLUDED IN SECOND APPLICATION

ARPINUS BETULUS

NEW PLANTING
ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE

5 CYCLE SPACES
3 IN GARAGE
2 IN CAR POR
WITH LOCK STAND

CYCLE STORE
IN GARAGES
and CYCLE SHEDS

1.8M CLOSE BOARDED INNER FENCE
TO ALL PLOTS FOR SECURITY
POST AND RAIL FENCE ON BOUNDARY

CAR PORT

TURNING AREA ‘O R DEL| V/F_RIES
AND EMERGENCY/FIRE,TENDER ACCESS{/
16.8M MINIM 'I)J{NING CIRCLE /]

POST AND RAIL FENCE TO GIVE VIEW

/ / i
MANHOLE ChawgeR <,/ / l\ % AREA FOR SURFACE WATER
VACUUM ER / // \ 110mm MDPE ANGLIA WATER AR FEETIRY HOLDING TANKS
Pz BRANCH VACUUM SEWER DRAIN TO DITCH
) % / \ HOUSES EACH ELANTER
~ / ‘! SEE SPECIALIST DESIGN
= v \ Tgep

CONDITION NO. 4

7‘4 —_—— / ‘“
/ - \\\ \ O FIRE MAI

CARPINUS BETULUS  SITE AREA TO BE

12.5T EMERGENCY-
— NEW PLANTING SUBJECT TO FURTHER APPLICATIOI

“‘ __VEHIELELOADING =
GAO? ‘ =% \\\\ ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDULE

i T AN ~
AVING AT “"& g % N ~_ N
\OAD EDGE 77 O N ~ N

) ‘“\\? N BLOCK EDGE DETAILS A\

S CERICK PLANTERS b 41M FIRE TENDER PUMP ACCES$®
7|\ LOW PLANTERS MANHOLE CHAMBER ND\ X
GRASS VACUUM SEWER N

TRAFFIC CARMING
SEMI CIRCLE BRICK PLANTERS

TREES RETAINED
SEE DAVID WATTS
TREE REPORT
CONDITION NO. 13

'AN NG TO LEVEL THRESHOLD
ALL HOUSES ENTRANCE

PLOT 3
HOUSE TYPE F

CYCLE STORE
IN GARAGES

PLOT 4 and CYCLE SHEDS

HOUSE TYPE G CARPINUS BETULUS

NEW PLANTING
ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHEDL

S —
SEE DRAWING 766-L-2
SEE TREE REPORT DAVID WATTS
GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SITE LAYOUT REV A FENCE 2.2.22
REV B FENCE 22.2.22
REV C BOUNDARY AS
OUTLINE APPROVAL
1 JUNE 2022
DRAWING NO: -766- -
PROJECT ~ PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1-4 _ 753766 L=
REVISION: REV C
VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY
SCALE 1: 200 @A2
THE STUDIO 56 HIGH STREET HARSTON  CAMBRIDGE
RIDER SALE Page 167 of 210
TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd.

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

e ISSUE PLANNING DATE DEC 2021

www.ridersale.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020

DO NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY




FIRST FLOOR
OVER GARAGE

VERNON MOTORS SITE PIDLEY

‘ SUNNYCROFT

W Y~ CARPINUS BETULUS
& " #6£ NEW PLANTING
\ ~ | ADD TO DAVID WATTS PLANTING SCHED
%
4 43M SITE LINE SUNNYCROFT FARM PLANTING STRIP
\ PLOT 1
HOUSE TYPE C

PAVING TO LEVEL
ENTRANCE THRESHOLD
ALL HOUSES

ARPINUS

NEW PLANTINC
ADD TO DAVIL

5 CYCLE SPACES PERIHOUS
3 IN GARAGE | ¢
ZINCARPORT V2
WITH LOCK STAND

1

CYCLE STORE
\ IN GARAGES
\ and CYCLE SHED:

CAR PORT 1.8M CLOSEE

U /"__ e TO ALL PLOTS
g e S POST AND RAI
® TURNING AREA iliéﬂl_fsr =i POST A
[N AND EMERGENCY,FIRE "IND'E'R-AC’EESS(

o 16.8M MINIMUM TURNING CIRCLE /1. GRAVEL SURFACE R e @ —— ' & 00
o yo B r TO PARKING SPACES

o MANHOLE CHAMBER{,-// 7 4 | S ;

—h VACUUMSEWER <, A 1L/ 110mm MDPE ANGLIA WATER

N ~ N Z | | BRANCHVACUUM SEWER

[N ADJACENT P N S T | [—| 2 HOUSES EACH

o y peanieae e

5M WIDTH TO 10M FROM|ROADWA
SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM R

BLOCK PAVING |
12.5T EMERGENCY-
_VEHIELE LOADING

=

5 ‘""“-‘-x._x' BLOCK PAVING

PAVING AT N =
EXISTING DRIVE ROAD EDGE RE=rmm e =
ROAD EDC ocK EDGRDETALS
7| TRAFFIC CARMING _ ——— R

= SEMI CIRCLE BRICK PLANTERS
|~ ~SHARED SURFACE ROAD

TRAFFIC CARMING

FOOTWAY
SEMI CIRCLE BRICK PLANTERS

TO CONTINUE THROUGH
ACCESS AS DROPPED KERB
CROSSOVER

L
=

'
A

o

SR TN b \\l\&.\\%}-‘ v

EXISTING DRIVE

ADJACENT PROPE

~| _PAVING TO LEVEL THRESHOLD
ALL HOUSES ENTRANCE

PLOT 3
HOUSE TYPE F

CYCLE STORE
IN GARAGES

PLOT 4 and CYCLE SHEDS
HOUSE TYPE G

ol N

TIN ROOE

SEE DRAWING 766-L-1

L-2

DRAWING NO: | 753-766 -

RI DER SALE THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE
TEL{ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd.

PROJECT PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4
REVISION:
VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY —1 REVA

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

ISSUE DETAIL PLANNING ‘ DATE ‘ DEC 2021

SCALE 1:200

www.ridersale.co.uk

COFYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020

DO NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY




NORTH

Cr2

DECEMBER 2021/

100

e e e
IBRERREESERDE]
FFFFRFFPFPPPFP]

DRAWING NO: | 766—
1

REVISION:
SCALE

| DATE

PLANNING

HOUSE TYPE C

>
w
- |
o
o
2
Lo ool ol o off o ol ol o o (@)
R ERE R GG, HH <+
BBBEED] ARNBRNBRBREN - &
heib et Liiliil IS RS e e ==k v
IEERARRESNADN! RENRNNRNNRERE-- - AN oy oA
bbb bbb lbbl ) vl 0
MBEEE RIS 0 @ e
TLITLL Ll A O
R ERERaEEN A
EEELEL %E%\\ Al bbbl bbbl bbbl HH H <
UBERERITNNREREENE \_\ __.__.__1__1_.1___.___-~_1H_.__1~_1H_.___. FH =z w w
e eeteer A4 LTI LLLD) i o |D g
LMMMMM bbb \_\ Lol o o off off ol ol o ol o HH — E L
ELELE .L.LL.L%\\ IHENERERS R LN H v -
INBERRATSERE G A L e L TH] = v 2 =
FrFrre A HH A — O v
b A H —
A > I %
b TH o
IRERENE R SRR EEERNESUNERERA TH -t w o
HH =
IBEEEEREENERNRNNENERREDE (WH]
i ddddddddad: YrrErY 1A Z D
I ERERERSRR LY
RNNNNNRNNNNNN o=
bbby ]
Iddddddd i dd i oo m m
[ ] £ 2
O x5
[
o >a
=
et 2
o
o
o

Rider Sale Ltd.

D0 NOT SCALE USE FICURED CHMENSIONS ONLY

2020

EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE

TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436

www.ridersale.co.uk

b b b b b b b b b b b b b b

IERRERNERRER L ]]

rrerrrrereeell e | B T T T T i
NN . H H
IERNERNERRER iyl
L o HHH
NN .. Sty 1

WEST

EAST

IBBRND)
IBBRND)
R NI
...... NEREERRRBARARS) |

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

RIDER SALE

Page 169 of 210




130.09 m?

0TZ J0 0T 9bed

| e—

[

=

| S —| | |

| SITTING DINING ||

- ROOM ||

@) ALTERNATIVE WALL ||

POSITIONS ||

|

| }
I

———— I_I'
—— R

STUDY

GARAGE

5 R

%

O 1
~| O] xircHen
b \\\-\_/.l K =
-
HALL Illr.'

COATS

= |||_I

CAR PORT

]

| HOUSE TYPE C |
¥|

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

DROOM 2

LOWER EAVES

118.76 m?

ROOFLIGHTS

BEDROOM 1

OFLIGHT

HOUSE TYPE C
AREA

GROUND FLOOR INCLUDING GARAGE

130.09 M2

FIRST FLO18.76
MEASURED TO 1.5M HIGH AT SLOPING EAVES

TOTAL AREA

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

248.85M\2

i

PLANNING

| DATE | DECEMBER 2021

RIDER SALE

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON
TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436

www.ridersale.co.uk

EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020

CAMBRIDGE

PROJECT

PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4

VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

PLOT 1

DRAWING NO: | 766—-  Ci+1

REVISION:

SCALE I 100 @A3




WEST

St e e
IRRRRRDERERED]
Ll ol o ol ol o o o ol o
St e e
IRRRRRDERERED]
Ll ol o ol ol o ol o ol o
Bt bl
LELIIL]
TREFEEr
NN
LI I I]
FREFEEE
bl i
bbb bbb bbb bl b
+
Y
bbb bbb b bbb
+
5 W
Bl bbb bbb A
L A
8 N
bt bb A
'

el

/|

HOUSE TYPE E

|ABBBENERRRES]

Lol ol off o o ol ol ol ol o

rrrr(rrrrrrrm

DECEMBER 2021/
E{2

EAST

100

1:

| DATE |

DRAWING NO: | 766—

REVISION:
SCALE

PLANNING

B B

INBRENENRERE rwww

INNBEERRRD RN

NORTH

dddddddddddddddididddiddddddd

ISSUE

VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

srojccr PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4
PLOT 1

Rider Sale Ltd.

USE FICURED CHMENSIONS ONLY

2020 D0 NOT SCALE

EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE

TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436

www.ridersale.co.uk

ELEVATION SOUTH

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

RIDER SALE

Page 171 of 210




129.70 m?

0TZ J0 2/ T abed

| ! !
‘ o
SITTING ]] | : %
ROOM £ | | ALTERNATIVE WALL
DINING ||Pcsmo~s e
77] | O
© I o0
' I T
I s ‘
KITCHEN
M COATS
HALL
=
PORCH
— STUDY
/
5 \ud|/
GARAGE
CAR PORT

m

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

BEDROOM 2

118.53 m*

ROOFLIGHT

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 1

kl

[A

I|
I‘\EQESSING ROOM Ill

DWER EAVES

POFLIGHTS

NSUITE

ROOFLIGHTS

BEDROOM &

EDROOM 3

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

HOUSE TYPE E
AREA

GROUND FLOOR INCLUDING GARAGE
129.70 M\ 2

FIRST FLOOR
118.53
MEASURED TO 1.5M HIGH AT SLOPING EAVES

TOTAL AREA
248.23M\2

. ISSUE PLANNING | DATE | DECEMBER 2021
; 766-E-
RIDER SALE THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE project PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4 Ef\'::";gj NO 1
TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd. VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY - -
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS PLOT 1 T 0 @A3

www.ridersale.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020




DECEMBER 2021/

PLOT 1

p hilits
\\ HHH] b=
g A o~
\\ Iyl wi _Lnl
\_\ THHH
A LY
! -
©o| [S
[HHH O —
il i wl | o
HHH | HH | =z -
HHH] T =
R, HHH HHH o |
TTTIT] HHH HH =l 2|2
LIt Iy B = =S
L LY L
_1__1__1__..H_.._w L LT 11 Of e |»
BRNNDD TIIIN HHH THHT
FEPPPT HHH HHHT
SEBEND . e L
FERTPT HHH HHH
_J_r_f_rur_rnw.ﬂuuw.ﬁ FEPF LT MY G
FEEFPT HHH HH
DTN it Z >
_1__1__1__..H_.._W|J.JJ Jua=aE Aplply — w
_r_r_r_rur_r ol o ol o o ol il el 5 nH ylsly! Z (]
ol o o o o o o e LU N —_—
REERARERR RN B HH =
INERERDERRENED] HHH
deetsettedds L < a
_huhmhhumuhhM11Wﬁwwﬁw1w LLLLLLIILILI THHH o
FOLLrE R R AR RS LT 14 dddddd s it HH L8
CTIITIITIITII TN TN 1Y EDNRBNRRRARN
(o o ol ol o off ol ol off o off ol o ol ol i ol [l o 1 L LLLLLLIILILI iy =t O
N RS R HR SR T RN AR R o M bibbill Ll HHH] I | e
e & HH Y
__..__-__1__..H_.._w__.__.._w_1__.._1_1 [HH] W HI ﬂ .~
B b h bbb bbb THH] T A E o
_1__1__1__..H_.._w__.__.._w_1__.._1_1 FERPEFP PP HH = THHI i @) )
(111 Ll bbb bbb bbb bbbl bl HHT | o
LLI ettt L o M
HH] %] _-WL_._.__.C_.H_.C_.H_._\__._._ Ll v
LM = IEEANERS LR, y TP = w7
i 5 " 7| gt
T il 2 o &
HHH UH “M
/ THHH
L] f = &
/ HHH =
A HHA z (@]
il g =
HHHT v =
B L LA LA AL ARG AL AL
o O
JIJJIIIIIT )] ) ek o Z
it ddddd;
S ¢
o >
-
=
=
o
o
o

| o
[ ~ |
...... @
g Z
3 3
| e g
Lwi g
. 0 g
i HHH ‘ m ul
HH S
alyl < © 7
o . g oo 7
. REEBESNisssEsRERRREr s &
HHH : {sunnnns i z £ 8
i H 0 =
L i E &
_ I < & 3
: _ | T 5 S
HHH U w o w
w | § %
H = o
_ﬂ ’ - I O M m
_ - L= F
: - i G~ &
S b b b b b bk bbb bbb b b bbb bk - - \.- [ A m
NRRRRARERRRD] ol i < 5 I o <
QM e deeddes e o I S o 8
NRRRRARERRRD]
ihbilisuiiil LA bty I a
LIl L LI e L : 3
Lo ol o ol o ol o o ol o o o o ol ]
Ll
H T
i =
I o
i o
=
i =
H v
H wl
T
e

TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436

www.ridersale.co.uk

ELEVATION SOUTH

e,
JITT]
el
LLL Ll
JITT]
el i
SENRDN  ERE
TEEETT
LLL Ll
LLLLL BEBNE
R TNy H R
JITT] |-
TEEETT
LLL Ll
LLLLL BEBNE 3 DO“
Z

Pl ol 0l ol il i

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

RIDER SALE

Page 173 of 210




M

CAR PORT

o
Q
«Q
@D
H
\l
D
@]
*
N
H
© ¢ g ® e
I T
) I @
- ALTERN MEWALL -
. . . . Posmoﬁ“ @ — .
DINING [ | />
SITTING ] ] [ | : &
| |
129.70 m? ROOM [l ©
i .[ / u
——F— '
UTILITY
(1]

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

HOUSE TYPEF
AREA

GROUND FLOOR INCLUDING GARAGE
129.70 M\ 2

FIRST FLOOR
119.44
MEASURED TO 1.5M HIGH AT SLOPING EAVES

TOTAL AREA
249.14M\2

119.44 m?

BEDROOM 3

\
I7

[ BEDROOM 5

WER EAVES

BEDROOM 2

ROOFLIGHT

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

/ ; ssING RooM |||

E
|

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 1

HOUSE TYPE F

. ISSUE PLANNING | DATE | DECEMBER 2021
; 766-F-
RIDER SALE THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE project PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4 ES\’:‘;ES NO F-1
TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd. VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY - -
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS PLOT 1 T 0 @A3

www.ridersale.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE 2020




@A3

DECEMBER 2021/
G2

100

B b e b

MM_d_uquuiuu
Lol o o o o off o o o
EREeR RGeS

a&ﬁ%&?&tﬁ :
e | _

I

| DATE |

bbb bbb b

INDRREREDERE]

ol off o ol ol o i o
8

D : [
LS 5ob 3 —
|

DRAWING NO: | 766—
1

REVISION:
SCALE

HOUSE TYPE G

&
g
5

Bh b b kb bl
Lol o o

Ry H
INDRDERN]

(ol ol ol ol ol i
NSNS
INDRREREDERE]

Lol o o o i o o o
AR L LA L L L L

-

PLANNING

NORTH

b b
JLILTYITITTT
L ol ol o o o o

b bbb '

bbb
INDRREREDARE]

i

3

-

-

h

r

3

-

-

r

Y

oy

4y

.

|

ISSUE

ELEVATION SOUTH

VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

PLOT 1

srojccr PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4

Rider Sale Ltd.

CHMENSIONS ONLY

DO NOT SCALE USE FICURED

IIERERDERREERARREEREP 4

20

2

EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk

COPYRIGHT RIDER SALE

j:l

EAST

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE

TEL/ FAX: 01223 264436
www.ridersale.co.uk

WEST

il lflflf i = -

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

RIDER SALE

Page 175 of 210



KITCHEN

0TZ J0 9/ T abed

=

™
=

O o || ALTERNATIVE WALL
— || POSITIONS

HALL

/_ STUDY

GARAGE
I|
|

CAR PORT

———
=il

 — —|
DINING

ROOM

|
SITTING ||

'\Q
==

BEDROOM 1

ROOFLIGHT

i i

DRESSING RO%H

HOUSE TYPE G '
{b}

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

RIDER SALE

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE

TEL/ FAX: 01223

264436

www.ridersale.co.uk  corvric

EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk

HT RIDER SALE 2020 ) NOT SCALE LISE FICURED CHMENSIONS OHLY

gl g

BEDROOM

ENSWITE

LOWER EAVES Fﬁ_ﬂ_ﬁ

] |
[J) ENSUITE \\‘
— ROOFLIGHTS TiE 5 it
| |
‘JL)' | BATHROOM
=
BEDROOM 5
HOUSE TYPE G
BEDROOM 3
AREA
GROUND FLOOR INCLUDING GARAGE
129.16 M\ 2
FIRST FLOOR
116.38
MEASURED TO 1.5M HIGH AT SLOPING EAVES
TOTAL AREA
245.54M\2
FIRST FLOOR PLAN
ISSUE PLANNING | DATE | DECEMBER 2021

Rider Sale Ltd.

PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4
VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

DRAWING NO: | 766-  G+1
REVISION:
SCALE 1! 100 @A3




MATERIALS
ROOFS PANTILES RED/ BROWN

WALLS DURA CLADDING (OR SIMILAR) s
COLOUR MAHOGANY
WHITE RENDER
FACING BRICK PLINTH REL
ALUMINIUM WINDOWS AND
&EHARCOAL GREY
a@SINGLE PLY ROOF MATERIAL GREY

O0Tcio L1

EXTERNAL WORKS MATERIALS
FACING BRICK PLANTERS AS HOUSE BRICK
MARSHALLS RED PERMEABLE BLOCK PAVING
TARMAC DRIVEWAY

GREY PAVING TRAFFIC CARMING FEATURES
CLOSE BOARD FENCES NATURAL COLOUR
PIERS RED FACING BRICKS

GRAVEL LIGHT BROWN

POST AND RAIL FENCES CHARCOAL GREY
HOUSE PAVING AREAS INDIAN SANDSTONE

PERSPECTIVE VIEW

DRAWING NO: | 753-766 - | L-4
REVISION:

SCALE 52 @A2

THE STUDIO THE OLD COACH HOUSE HARSTON CAMBRIDGE PROJECT =
RIDER SALE PROPOSED NEW HOUSES PLOTS 1 -4
VERNON MOTORS SITE, WARBOYS ROAD, PIDLEY

TEL{ FAX: 01223 264436 EMAIL: ridersale@yahoo.co.uk Rider Sale Ltd.

www.ridersale.co.uk COPYRIGHT BIDER SALE 2020 D) NOT SCALE USE FIGURED DIMENSIDNS CNLY

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

e ISSUE DETAIL PLANNING ‘ DATE ‘ DEC 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE 18" JULY 2022

Case No:  22/00145/S73(REMOVAL/VARIATION OF CONDITIONS)

Proposal: REMOVAL/VARIATION OF  CONDITIONS 3
(MATERIAL), 4 (LANDSCAPE), 5 (LEVELS), 6
(ECOLOGY), 7 (TREE PROTECTION), 10
(ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS) TO 18/01946/FUL AS
THE MAJORITY OF THE WORKS ARE NOW
COMPLETE ON SITE

Location: 50 HAMERTON ROAD ALCONBURY WESTON PE28
4JD

Applicant: MR DEETH
Grid Ref: 517643 277104
Date of Registration: 24.01.2022

Parish: ALCONBURY WESTON

RECOMMENDATION — APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management
Committee (DMC) as the Local Planning Authority’s
recommendation of approval is contrary to Alconbury Weston
Parish Council’s recommendation of refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application site is situated to the northeast of Hamerton
Road, forming part of the built up area of Alconbury Weston and
located within the Alconbury Weston Conservation Area. The site
is surrounded by residential dwellings to the east, south and west
and beyond this is open countryside.

1.2 Planning permission was granted by the DMC in 2019 under
application reference 18/01946/FUL for the erection of three
dwellings, the change of use of stable yard to livery parking area
and the construction of an extension to the access road to the
proposed livery parking area.

1.3  This permission was subject to several conditions requiring
further details of materials (Condition 3), hard and soft
landscaping (Condition 4), finished floor levels and external
ground levels (Condition 5), biodiversity protection and

Page 179 of 210



1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

enhancements (Condition 6), tree protection (Condition 7) and
architectural details for the dwellings (Condition 10). These
conditions were pre-commencement conditions meaning that
details were required to be submitted and approved prior to
works beginning on site.

The dwellings are now substantially complete on site despite the
aforementioned conditions not having been discharged by the
Local Planning Authority. The applicant has submitted this
application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act (TCPA) 1990 to retrospectively regularise the situation.

Section 73 of the TCPA 1990 allows an application to be made
for permission which does not comply with the conditions
imposed on the original planning permission. This permits the
Local Planning Authority to remove or vary conditions and add
additional conditions following the grant of planning permission.
Permission granted under section 73 takes effect as a new,
independent permission to carry out the same development with
new, amended or removed conditions. This sits alongside the
original permission, which remains intact and unamended.

This application seeks to vary and/or remove conditions 3
(Material), 4 (Landscape), 5 (levels), 6 (ecology), 7 (tree
protection) and 10 (architectural details) of the original
permission 18/01946/FUL.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (20 July 2021) (NPPF
2021) sets out the three objectives — economic, social and
environmental — of the planning system to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2021 at
paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 11).'

The NPPF 2021 sets out the Government's planning policies for
(amongst other things):

* delivering a sufficient supply of homes;

* achieving well-designed places;

* conserving and enhancing the natural environment;

* conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Planning Practice Guidance and the National Design Guide 2021
are also relevant and material considerations.

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 places a general duty as respects conservation

Page 180 of 210



areas in exercise of planning functions. Paragraph (1) sets out
that ‘with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation
area... special attention shall be paid to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that
area.’

For full details visit the government website National Guidance

3.

3.1

3.2

PLANNING POLICIES

Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019)
LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery

LP5: Flood Risk

LP6: Waste Water Management

LP9: Small Settlements

LP10: The Countryside

LP11: Design Context

LP12: Design Implementation

LP14: Amenity

LP15: Surface Water

LP16: Sustainable Travel

LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement
LP25: Housing Mix

LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows
LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings

Supplementary Planning Guidance

e Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017)

e Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document
(2011)

e Cambridgeshire Flood and Water Supplementary Planning
Document (2017)

e Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3

For full details visit the government website Local policies

4,

4.1

4.2

PLANNING HISTORY

18/01946/FUL — The erection of three dwellings, change of use
of stable yard to livery parking area and construction of an
extension to the access road to the proposed livery parking area
— Approved 18t October 2019

20/01547/FUL - The erection of 3 detached dwellings, following
the demolition of the stables and the re-use of the exercise yard
associated with the disused equestrian use — Withdrawn by
applicant 17t June 2021.

Part of the land subject to this application includes the stable
yard which formed part of the original application which granted a
change of use to a livery parking area.

Page 181 of 210


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.1

CONSULTATIONS

Alconbury Weston Parish Council:
[Initial comments received 23" February 2022]
No material observations to make on this application

[Comments received 10" March 2022]

Although the Parish Council has already submitted a no
observation comment against this application, at their meeting on
7th March 2022, Councillors would like to see in the public
domain a report as to why each condition is being changed and
what they are being changed to, and also see a detailed report
on what the applicant is not complying with. The Parish Council
wish to be provided with this information.

[Comments received 31t May 2022]

Following an Extraordinary meeting of Alconbury Weston Parish
Council on 30 May 2022, the Parish Council (PC) recommends
that the Local Planning Authority refuse Planning Application
22/00145/S73.

The PC offers the following comments:

Condition 3 — The PC is concerned that the building materials
that have been used and the finished appearance are not in
keeping with the Alconbury Weston Conservation Area, in which
these houses stand, notably:

e Materials are not to the required specification. i.e. doors
and windows are UPVC/composite whereas they should
be wood. The cladding is also not timber, it is composite

e Despite chimneys being shown on all plans submitted,
including the developer’s revised plans, there are no
chimneys. As far as the PC is aware, all houses within the
conservation area have chimneys.

e The colour of the cladding is a fashionable modern colour
and is not in keeping with other properties in the
Conservation Area.

e Roof tiles are not the correct colour.

e The colour of the doors and windows is not as originally
specified.

e Porches are missing from the finished properties.

e The external appearance of the garages is not in keeping
with the Conservation Area.

The PC objects to the removal of Condition 3, and requests that
remedial action is taken to address the appearance of this
development.

Condition 4 — The planning application seeks to remove
Condition 4. The PC has assumed that the developer has
changed his mind, as he has now submitted both hard and soft
landscaping plans. The hard landscaping proposal is
comprehensive, but retains the road construction that currently
exists but with a different surface. This is contrary to Condition 8
and does not achieve the flood risk reduction requirements.

Page 182 of 210



There is great concern within the village community that
Condition 8 has not been met. We note that there has been no
request to remove Condition 8, but it is unclear to the PC if there
is provision for rainwater/surface water run-off as detailed in
Condition 8 and it is still unclear to the PC how this condition
would be met. The PC originally observed that the data used was
some 20 years out of date and since that data was provided
there have been several “1 in 100 year” floods. We are not clear
as to the nature of the current drainage solution for this
development and cannot determine if is fit for purpose. The
development seeks to barrier itself off from surrounding
properties through the use of 1.8m high solid fencing, walls and
some hedging inside the fencing. The PC considers that this is
not in keeping with the boundaries between other properties
within the conservation area, and recommends greater use of
hedging, which would also contribute to flood alleviation. The PC
objects to the hard landscaping proposal.

Condition 5. The PC has no access to the site to determine
whether the floor level of all buildings is correct. The PC consider
that it is unacceptable to remove Condition 5 and request that
the planning authority determines why this condition should be
removed.

Condition 6. The PC does not understand why condition 6 needs
removing. The developer has submitted a Biodiversity Method
Statement dated April 2022, and while the major part of the
report has been undertaken by the completed development, the
PC would wish to see the remaining activities completed and
inspected.

Condition 7. The PC note that the Retrospective Arboricultural
Impact Assessment submitted by the developer states that
Condition 7 has not been met. However, the PC support the
recommendation of this report that the terms of Condition 7 are
applied for the 5 years following completion of the development.
The PC therefore object to the removal of Condition 7.

Condition 10. The PC consider that Condition 10 is critical to the
appearance of the finished properties and their blending into the
conservation area. The PC note that there are some details on
the plans that allude to the architectural design, but they are not
sufficient to comment on. As many of these details are to be
completed in the final stages of development, we cannot observe
on their implementation, but would expect the developer to fulfil
the requirements of Condition 10.

The PC request that you note that the meeting saw a large public
participation (13 members of the parish + 2 developers), with the
parish members particularly concerned about the appearance of
the development where it is situated within the conservation
area, and also that Parish advice has not been sought of any

Page 183 of 210



5.2

significant proposed deviations from the approved planning
approval before they have been carried out. The overall feelings
of the parishioners’ present were that the development is
significantly altered from what was initially approved.

HDC Urban Design Team:

[Received 215t February 2022]

Amended elevation drawings should be provided as part of the
S73 application to reflect the proposals as built and to regularise
these changes — the latest drawings are not accurate and do not
reflect the loss of window head details (plots 1 and 2), loss
chimneys (plots 1, 2 and 3) and the increased eaves height and
changes to the dormer windows within the rear projections (Plots
2 and 3).

C2 Materials and C10 Architectural Details

Plot 1 - dwg JPT/RHD/0121/002 (replaces approved dwg
JTP/PB/0318/002 Rev B)

The proposed materials are set out on dwg JPT/RHD/0121/004
are acceptable. The introduction of the side entrance door is
acceptable. The location of the white meter box is accepted.
Amendments are required to introduce chimneys (2 chimneys —
one on either gable) to articulate the roof line as well as window
head details as per approved elevations — these are shown
missing from the case officer site photos. Consider if brick slips
could be used to create the appearance of window heads (C10).
Details of the window reveal depth should be confirmed (C10) —
these appear very shallow on the site photos and we question if
window reveal depths could be increased (windows setback
further) prior to the installation of the render.

Plot 2 - dwg JPT/RHD/0121/003 (replaces approved dwg
JPT/PB/0318/003 Rev C)

The proposed materials are set out on dwg JPT/PD/0318/003
are acceptable. The introduction of the side entrance door is
acceptable. The location of the white meter box is accepted. The
eaves line over the subservient rear extension is higher than
approved, whilst accepted, details of the dormer window side
cheeks should be confirmed (C3 vi). Amendments are required
to introduce chimneys (2 chimneys — one on either gable) to
articulate the roof line and accord with original approved
elevations. Details of the projecting porch canopy should be
provided (C3 vii). Details of the window reveal depth should be
confirmed (C10) — these appear very shallow on the site photos,
question if window reveal depths could be increased (windows
setback further) behind the outer course of facing brick.

Plot 3 - dwg JPT/RHD/0121/004 (replaces approved dwg
JPT/PB/0318/004 Rev C)

The proposed materials are set out on dwg JPT/PD/0318/003
are acceptable. The introduction of the side entrance door is
acceptable. The location of the white meter box is accepted. The

Page 184 of 210



5.3

revised windows proportions are accepted. The eaves line over
the subservient rear extension is higher than approved, whilst
accepted, details of the dormer window side cheeks should be
confirmed (C3 vi). Amendments are required to introduce
chimneys (2 chimneys — one on either gable) to articulate the
roof line and accord with original approved elevations. Details of
the projecting porch canopy should be provided (C3 vii). Details
of the window reveal depth should be confirmed (C10) — these
appear very shallow on the site photos, question if window reveal
depths could be increased (windows setback further) prior to the
installation of render.

C4 Landscape

Do not support the removal of C4 hard and soft landscape details
and no justification has been provided. The arrangement of brick
boundary walls and landscaped verges as set out on site plan
dwg JPT/PB/0318/001 Rev F are necessary to accord with the
HDC Design Guide SPD requirements for ‘public facing’
boundaries. Threshold landscaping is required to soften the
appearance of the units. Detailed landscape proposals should
not be left to the future homeowner and should submitted as part
of this S73 application. Landscaping should be in accordance
with the recommendations set out in the PEA. We question if the
S73 could change the wording of C4 from ‘no development
above slab level...” to ‘prior to occupation’ to allow the LPA to
secure these landscape details.

C5 Levels

Do not support the removal of level details — these are necessary
to confirm the proposed access arrangements, finished levels of
thresholds, and relationship of units to the car parking
spaces/driveways, gardens and the road.

C6 Ecology
Do not support the removal of this condition and no justification
has been provided.

C7 Tree protection

Do not support the removal of this condition and no justification
has been provided. Tree retention should be as per the AIA
provided with the approval.

HDC Conservation Team:

[Received 17 June 2022]

No objection. Conservation advice was provided in respect of the
initial application 18/01946/FUL. Comments were limited to the
morphology of the proposal, its layout and scale and requirement
for landscaping particularly at the front of the plot. It was
considered that development of the site was unlikely to cause
harm to the character and appearance of the CA as the proposal
created the opportunity to reinforce the street frontage, screen
the bulk of Salix House and introduce additional planting and

Page 185 of 210



landscaping. It was noted that this part of the conservation area
has a character of more recent open grained domestic
development sitting within reasonably large plots of maturing
gardens set behind well kept hedgerows.

It was anticipated that the detailed aspects of the scheme would
be submitted for approval prior to the development occurring, the
conditions however were not discharged. The applicant has now
built out the scheme in a manner not in accordance with the
consent or conditions.

These comments therefore assess the impact of the as built
scheme and its impact on the character and appearance of the
Alconbury Weston Conservation Area. There is no conservation
area character statement for Alconbury Weston.

Unit 1 will be the most prominent in the conservation area siting
at the front of the site on raised ground. The building is rendered
under a slate roof, regrettably the rear wing is no longer 1.5
storys in height having been raised to 2 stories, this has had the
effect of increasing the bulk of the building and negating the
subservience of the wing. This has eroded the quality of the
design but not to the extent that the proposal now causes harm.

The loss of the porch is a minor matter which again would have
softened the front elevation but its loss does not result in harm. |
understand that chimneys will be employed which will give the
roof more of a traditional character.

The opportunity to control the detailing of the windows has been
lost and better detailed units would have been sought, whilst this
is regrettable modern windows in this part of the conservation
area are not uncommon therefore it can not be said that harm is
caused.

There is some minor changes to the position of windows and
doors.

Units 2 and 3 sit towards the rear of the site and are more inward
looking, a public footpath runs along the site so the detail of the
design will again be evident. Again minor changes have occurred
the most impactful being the stark colour of the pantiles (a blend
would have been more appropriate) and the colour of the
boarding to the wings and garages, whilst | do not object to the
material the use of a blue/grey colour emphasises the
uncharacteristic character of these materials, they will not
weather in with age and will continue to form a contrast.

The works that have been undertaken are disappointing and
result in a dumbing down of the original approved scheme. This
assessment however only considers if the unauthorised works
cause harm to the character and appearance of the conservation

Page 186 of 210



5.4

5.5

area. In this instance the unauthorised works do not cause harm
to the significance of the conservation area.

CCC Highways

[Received 15" June 2022]

Highways have the following comments in relation to the
following conditions:

3 (Material), Not a condition requested by the Highway Authority,
no comments

4 (Landscape), Not a condition requested by the Highway
Authority, no comments

5 (levels), Not a condition requested by the Highway Authority,
no comments

6 (ecology), Not a condition requested by the Highway Authority,
no comments

7 (tree protection), Not a condition requested by the Highway
Authority, no comments

10 (architectural details), Not a condition requested by the
Highway Authority, no comments

HDC Landscape Officer

[Received 23 June 2022]

These comments relate to the application for the discharge of
condition 4 — hard and soft landscaping. The soft and hard
landscape plans are located in Appendix 1 and 2 of the
Landscape Specification document by Skilled Ecology, dated 25
April 2022.

| do not object to the proposals, but they are not fully in
accordance with the HDC Design Guide, therefore | recommend
a small number of amendments. Comments relating to the
relevant part of the condition are below.

4i. Hard Landscape Works submission

. Skilled ecology drawing ‘Hard Works’ drawing number
1317-02, and

. MTC drawing ‘Hard Landscaping Plan’ drawing number
2619-06 Rev B

1. Boundary treatments — the brick wall boundary treatment

to the main driveway, is welcomed, however the close boarded
fencing proposed in shared driveway locations is not compliant
with HDC UD design code. | recommend the sections indicated
below in yellow are amended to brick walls, or post and ralil
fence.

2. Close boarded fencing to internal garden boundaries is
acceptable.
3. The proposed hard landscape materials are acceptable —

however please note that the gravel on the highways access
does not accord with the CCC highways compliant tarmac shown
on MTC drawing 2619-06 rev B. The hard landscape plan should
be amended to ensure that both details are the same.

Page 187 of 210



6.1

6.2

4ii. Soft Landscape Works submission

. Skilled ecology drawing ‘Soft Works' drawing number
1317-01 Rev A
4, The proposed planting plan is acceptable.

4iii Landscape specification

. Skilled ecology document ‘Landscape Specification’ V3
dated 25 April 2022
5. Watering regimes for the new planting should be

increased to weekly through the growth season — March —
September inclusive.

4iv. The proposed implementation programme shown on the Soft
Works plan is acceptable.

Recommendation: | have no major concerns regarding the
proposals, but recommend the above amendments to ensure the
design is compliant with the HDC Design Guide, consistent
surface materials are shown across the highways and hard
landscape plans, and to ensure that the proposed planting is
able to thrive, minimising the need to replace planting at a later
date.

REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been advertised by means of site and press
notice, given the application would affect the setting of the
Conservation Area. 24 neighbouring properties were also notified
of the application by letter.

Comments have been received from 15 occupants of

neighbouring/nearby properties, summarised as follows:

e Trees removed before construction started

e Amount of close-boarded fencing proposed is not in keeping
with the local area/landscape. All other properties on
Hamerton Road have post and rail fencing and hedging to
their northern boundary.

e Materials used are not in keeping with surrounding
Conservation Area

e Condition 8 of the original permission requires that the
development is carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk
Assessment received on 29 May 2019. Concerns that this will
not be achieved.

e The new plans show that the driveways will all be tarmac,
indicating that the water storage/release provision will not be
installed (as per the approved Flood Risk Assessment)

e Development could exacerbate existing flooding issues in the
area

e Deviances from the original approved plans

e |t is not acceptable for the developer to avoid the ecological
and landscaping conditions

Page 188 of 210



7.1

¢ Native hedge planting and landscaping not implemented

e Houses are near completion, but chimneys and porches have
not been constructed

e Brick wall constructed at plot 1 which is far from the soft
planted hedges shown on the original application

ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider in the determination of this
application are:

The Principle of Development
Design and Visual Amenity
Impact on the Conservation Area
Impact upon Residential Amenity
Highway Safety

Biodiversity

Trees

Landscaping

Flood Risk

Other matters

Principle of Development

7.2

7.3

The principle of the development was established under
application reference 18/01946/FUL and therefore will not be
considered as part of this application. It has previously been
established that the application site forms part of the built up
area of the small settlement of Alconbury Weston and the
development would accord with Policy LP9 of Huntingdonshire’s
Local Plan to 2036.

The proposed request for removal and/or variation of the
conditions imposed on the original permission has been set out
at the start of this report. All other parts of the approved
development remain unamended and the previous planning
permission 18/01946/FUL remains intact. In determining an
application under Section 73 of TCPA 1990, officers should have
regard to the development plan and all other material
considerations.

Design, Visual Amenity and Impact on the Conservation Area

7.4

Policies LP11 and LP12 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036
state that developments should respond positively to their
context, draw inspiration from the key characteristics of its
surroundings and contribute positively to the area's character
and identity. Furthermore, Policy LP34 of the Local Plan states
that proposals in a Conservation Area should preserve, and

Page 189 of 210



7.5

7.6

7.7

wherever possible enhance the area’s character, appearance
and setting.

Condition 3 of 18/01946/FUL required the applicant to provide
details of external materials to be submitted and approved by the
Local Planning Authority (LPA) prior to any development being
carried out above slab level. This required further details of
external materials such as the proposed brick, render, cladding
and roof tiles. Furthermore, condition 10 of 18/01946/FUL
required architectural details, such as window and door reveals
and cills, location and colour of meter boxes, flues and vents, to
be submitted and approved prior to development above slab
level. The applicant has now retrospectively provided full details
of materials and architectural details under this section 73
application.

The plans originally approved stated that the proposed external
materials for plot 1 would comprise grey slate roof tiles,
monocouche render finish and white timber windows. It was
proposed that plots 2 and 3 would have soft red pantile roof tiles,
timber windows and the rear projections would be finished in
natural stained timber weatherboard. Plot 2 was proposed to
have a cream buff brick finish, whereas plot 3 would have a
similar render finish to plot 1. The main departures from the
previously proposed materials are the cream UPVC windows
seen on all plots instead of timber frames and the use of red
concrete interlocking tiles and composite cladding in a grey/blue
colour on the rear projections of plots 2 and 3. Composite
cladding has also been used on the detached garages for all
plots. The Parish Council have objected to the materials used
and consider that the finished appearance of the development is
not in keeping with the Alconbury Weston Conservation Area.

The Conservation Team have assessed the impact of the as-built
scheme, in particular the materials used, and its impact on the
character and appearance of the Alconbury Weston
Conservation Area. It should be noted that there is no
conservation area character statement for Alconbury Weston.
Having regard to the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, there are a variety of materials used on
dwellings, including render, red and buff brick and roof tiles are
predominantly red, brown or slate. There are also examples of
both timber and upvc windows in vicinity of the site.

Page 190 of 210



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

Plot 1 is the most prominent in views from the Conservation
Area. Whilst it is set back significantly from Hamerton Road, it
sits on slightly higher ground and is visible from the vehicular
access and the adjacent Public Right of Way (reference 8/3)
which runs along the eastern part of the site. Comments from the
Conservation Team in respect of materials on plot 1 focus on the
use of modern UPVC windows. It is noted that similar windows
are not an uncommon feature in this part of the conservation
area and as such, UPVC windows used on all plots is not
considered to be harmful to the character or appearance of the
Alconbury Weston Conservation Area.

With regard to plots 2 and 3, the Conservation Team have
commented on the stark colour of the red concrete interlocking
tiles used. Furthermore, the blue/grey colour of the composite
cladding used on the rear projections as well as the garages on
all plots. It is acknowledged that the colour of the materials is
uncharacteristic of the conservation area and concerns have
been raised that these will not weather in with age. Plots 2 and 3
and the garage of Plot 1 are not prominent in views from the
street scene, being set further into the site behind Plot 1. This
therefore minimises the impact from the street scene. The
Conservation Team have not objected to the materials used as
harm is not caused to the character, appearance or the
significance of the surrounding Conservation Area. It should also
be noted that HDC’'s Urban Design Team consider that the
materials used are acceptable.

The submitted plans also show minor alterations to the size and
positioning of windows and the pitch of the rear projections with
dormer windows on plots 2 and 3 have also been altered when
compared to the original approved plans. This reflects what has
been built on site. The Conservation Team consider that the now
two storey rear projection, as opposed to the one and a half
storey projection previously approved, increases the bulk of the
building and reduces the subservience of this feature. However,
this is not to an extent that would be detrimental to the scheme
or contrary to Policies LP11, LP12 or LP34 of the Local Plan.

It should also be noted that the submitted plans show two
chimneys on either side of plots 1, 2 and 3, and plots 2 and 3 are
shown to have a pitched roof front porch feature. It is the
applicants intention to construct these in due course, hence they
are shown on the submitted plans but are not yet visible on site.
The Urban Design Team consider that the chimneys are an

Page 191 of 210



712

essential design feature to articulate the roof line. Furthermore,
the Conservation Team consider that this would give the roofs a
more traditional character and the porches would soften the front
elevation of plots 2 and 3. A condition is recommended to ensure
that the porches and chimneys are installed in accordance with
the submitted plans and within a suitable timeframe, to ensure
the development achieves a high standard of design.

Officers acknowledge that the quality of the approved
development has been affected by the use of less sympathetic
materials and finishes. However, it is not considered that the
changes have materially diminished the quality of the
development between permission and completion to such an
extent which would warrant refusal of the application. It is
recommended that condition 3 be amended to ensure that the
design of the development is carried out and retained in
accordance with submitted details. It is also recommended that
condition 10 be removed as architectural details have either
been provided as part of the application or can be seen on site
and these are satisfactory. For the avoidance of doubt, these
details are secured through the approved plans condition.

Impact upon Residential Amenity

7.13

7.14

7.15

Policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 states a
proposal will be supported where a high standard of amenity is
provided for all users and occupiers of the proposed
development and maintained for users and occupiers of
neighbouring land and buildings.

In the Officer Report for 18/01946/FUL, it was concluded that the
development would not lead to a significant loss of amenity to the
adjoining properties. However, it was considered that a full
landscaping scheme including details of boundary treatment
should be conditioned to provide effective screening and retain
the private residential amenity of neighbouring properties.
Condition 4 requiring hard and soft landscaping details was not
discharged before development commenced.

A full landscaping scheme has been submitted as part of this
application which includes details of boundary treatments.
Appendix 2 of the Landscape Specification document by Skilled
Ecology shows that boundary treatment between the proposed
dwellings and existing dwellings to the east and west of the site
comprises brick walls, 1.8 metre close boarded fencing and
hedging. It is acknowledged that some of the hard boundary

Page 192 of 210



7.16

717

treatment has already been constructed on site. This is
considered sufficient to protect the privacy of existing and future
occupants.

A further condition was also imposed requiring details of finished
floor levels and external ground levels, in the interests of
residential amenity. Condition 5 required details of levels,
however, this was not discharged. This has now been provided
under this current application (drawing 2619-06 Rev B — Hard
Landscaping Plan). Furthermore, as the dwellings are
substantially built the finished floor levels and ground levels can
be seen on site and Officers are satisfied that these are
acceptable and do not give rise to residential amenity issues.

It is recommended that the wording of condition 4 be amended to
ensure that the landscaping is carried out and retained in
accordance with the submitted Landscape Specification by
Skilled Ecology (dated 25 April 2022). Officers do not feel that it
is necessary for condition 5 concerning finished floor and
external ground levels to be reimposed on this application, given
that the levels as seen on site are satisfactory. For the avoidance
of doubt, drawing 2619-06 Rev B which provides details of levels
across the site will be included in the approved drawing list. With
the above, it is considered that the development would not have
any unacceptable adverse impacts on residential amenity, in
accordance with Policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to
2036.

Highway Safety

7.18

The development is served by an existing access which the
Highway Authority raised no objection to under the original
application. No amendments are proposed to this access or the
site layout in terms of parking and turning arrangements. The
Highway Authority have raised no objection to this current
application. As such, the development is not considered to have
an adverse impact upon highway safety. The proposal therefore
accords with Policies LP16 and LP17 of Huntingdonshire’s Local
Plan to 2036 in this regard.

Biodiversity

7.19

Policy LP30 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan advises that all
development provides a net gain in biodiversity where possible,
and that this should be appropriate to the scale, type and
location of development.

Page 193 of 210



7.20

7.21

7.22

A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) was submitted under
application reference 18/01946/FUL which was considered
acceptable by the Wildlife Trust. The PEA set out that the site
was of limited ecological interest but set out a number of
recommendations, enhancements and precautionary measures.
Condition 6 was imposed on the original permission requiring the
submission and approval of a Biodiversity Method Statement
(BMS) which expands on the recommendations in the PEA. This
condition was not discharged prior to the commencement of
development.

This application is supported by a BMS produced by Skilled
Ecology Consultancy Ltd (dated April 2022) which provides
details of precautionary measures and enhancements including
the installation of 3 bird boxes, 3 bat boxes, planting of native
hedging and a wildlife sensitive lighting design. The submitted
details are considered to be acceptable to ensure no net loss in
biodiversity. It is therefore recommended that the wording of
condition 6 be amended to ensure that development is carried
out and retained in accordance with details contained in the
BMS.

Subject to condition the development is considered acceptable
providing a net gain in biodiversity is achieved as required by
Policy LP30 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 and the
NPPF 2021.

Trees and Landscaping

7.23

7.24

Policy LP31 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 requires
proposals to demonstrate that the potential for adverse impacts
on trees, woodland, hedges and hedgerows has been
investigated and that a proposal will only be supported where it
seeks to conserve and enhance any existing tree, woodland,
hedge or hedgerow of value that would be affected by the
proposed development.

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment was submitted with the
original application 18/01946/FUL which set out that 12 trees, 2
tree-groups and 1 shrub-group were to be removed as part of the
development. These were low value trees and Officers raised no
objection to this. Condition 7 was imposed requiring the
submission and approval of a Tree Protection Plan prior to the
commencement of any development, clearance or preparatory
works on site. This was to ensure that retained trees were
suitably protected during construction, in the interests of visual

Page 194 of 210



7.25

7.26

7.27

amenity. This condition was not discharged by the Local
Planning Authority.

This application is accompanied by a ‘Retrospective
Arboricultural Impact Assessment’ produced by Skilled Ecology
Consultancy Ltd (dated 12t April 2022). The report provides a
review of the impact on trees from the works carried out to date.
It sets out that there has been removal of trees at a neighbouring
site (by persons unknown) outside of the application site, but all
retained trees on site are not thought to have been adversely
affected by the development. Furthermore, the submitted
Landscape Specification by Skilled Ecology (dated 25 April 2022)
sets out that thirteen new trees will be planted, in addition to new
shrubs and hedges.

Officers are satisfied that existing trees have not been adversely
affected by the development and additional tree planting will
enhance the character and appearance of the site. It is therefore
recommended that parts of condition 7 be reworded to ensure
that development accords with the ‘Retrospective Arboricultural
Assessment’, however this condition will continue to stipulate
that should any new or existing trees, shrubs or hedges die or
become damaged within five years from completion of
construction, these must be replaced by the Ilandowner/
applicant.

The Landscape Officer has reviewed the submitted landscape
specification and has raised no objection to the proposed hard
and soft landscape details, landscape specification or
implementation programme, subject to minor changes to
proposed boundary treatments and watering regimes. As
previously mentioned in Paragraph 7.17 of this report, it is
recommended that the wording of condition 4 be amended to
ensure that the landscaping is carried out and retained in
accordance with the submitted Landscape Specification by
Skilled Ecology (dated 25 April 2022), within an appropriate
timescale. With the above, it is considered that the proposal
accords with Policy LP31 of the Local Plan.

Flood risk

7.28

The majority of the application site is in Flood Zone 1 as
confirmed by the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 2017, which
means it has a low probability of flooding. Under the original
application 18/01946/FUL it was deemed that there would be no
significant additional surface water run-off impacts due to the

Page 195 of 210



7.29

7.30

7.31

lack of additional hardstanding. It should be noted that part of the
southern section is located within Flood Zone 2 due to the close
proximity of the Alconbury Brook on the southern section of
Hamerton Road; however, there is no built form approved or
proposed in this location.

A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) was submitted as part of the
original application and this set out that on site surface water
storage would be provided to ensure that there would be no
increased flood risk downstream towards Alconbury Brook. This
would be achieved by providing a vortex control/ hydrobrake
chamber and using porous surfacing on driveway areas.

The Parish Council and several objectors have concerns that
condition 8 has not been met as it is not clear if provision has
been made for rainwater/surface water run-off as set out in the
FRA. It is acknowledged that drawings initially submitted as part
of this application stated that the driveway areas would be
tarmac and there was no mention of the surface water storage
being installed beneath the driveway, contrary to the approved
FRA and Condition 8. Officers discussed this with the applicant
during the course of the application and detailed plans of the
flood mitigation measures as described in the original FRA have
now been provided. Namely, a hydrobrake flow control system
and permeable driveway materials.

The applicant has not applied to amend condition 8, however
Officers recommend that this condition be reworded to ensure
that the flood mitigation measures are installed in compliance
with the submitted details and within a suitable timeframe.
Subject to this the development would accord with Local Plan
policy LP15 and the aims of the Cambridgeshire Flood and
Water Supplementary Planning Document.

Other matters

7.32

7.33

An application under Section 73 of the TCPA 1990, if approved,
has the effect of the issue of a new, separate planning
permission. Consequently, the conditions applied to the previous
permission to which this application relates must be reviewed
and added to any approval of this application where these would
pass the tests of conditions set out in paragraph 56 of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2021.

There is no requirement to stipulate when the development shall
be begun, as development has already commenced on site. The

Page 196 of 210



list of approved drawings will be amended to include the
drawings submitted as part of this application. Conditions 3
(materials), 4 (landscape), 6 (ecology), 7 (tree protection) and 8
(flood mitigation) will be reworded as discussed in this report. It is
recommended that conditions 5 (levels) and 10 (architectural
details) be removed as full details have been provided as part of
this application and considered acceptable. Condition 9 which
requires the development to meet the requirements of M4(2)
‘accessible and adaptable' and retained as such will be
reimposed. An additional condition is recommended to ensure
that the proposed porches and chimneys are installed within a
suitable timeframe, to ensure the development achieves a high
standard of design.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

7.34 Paragraph 135 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021
states that local planning authorities should seek to ensure that
the quality of approved development is not materially diminished
between permission and completion, as a result of changes
being made to the permitted scheme. Officers have
acknowledged that the materials used in the construction of the
dwellings are less sympathetic than those originally proposed.
However, the Conservation and Urban Design teams have not
identified any harm to the character and appearance of the
Alconbury Weston Conservation Area. Officers are also satisfied
that high quality landscaping and biodiversity net gain can be
achieved, and the development would not give rise to adverse
neighbour amenity impacts or increase the risks of flooding. On
balance, the development is consistent with the Development
Plan when taken as a whole and is acceptable. There are no
other material planning considerations which have a significant
bearing on the determination of this application.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following

Approved plans

Materials as shown on plans

Implementation of landscaping scheme

Implementation of biodiversity

enhancements/precautionary measures

Tree protection/replacement

Implementation of flood mitigation measures

Compliance with 'accessible and adaptable' requirements

Installation of chimneys and porches (with details agreed

in advance)

Page 197 of 210



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Lucy Pateman Senior Development
Management Officer — lucy.pateman@huntingdonshire.qov.uk

Page 198 of 210


mailto:lucy.pateman@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

To: DevelopmentControl
Subject: Comments for Planning Application 22/00145/S73
Date: 23 February 2022 15:01:26

Comments summary

Dear Sir/Madam,
Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.
Comments were submitted at 23/02/2022 3:01 PM from Miss Charlotte Copley.

Application Summary
Address: 50 Hamerton Road Alconbury Weston Huntingdon PE28 4JD

Removal of conditions 3 (Material), 4 (Landscape), 5 (levels) ,6 (ecology), 7 (tree
Proposal: protection), 10 (architectural details) to 18/01946/FUL as the majority of the
works are now complete on site

Case Officer: Theresa Nicholl

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Miss Charlotte Copley
Email: parishclerk@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
Address: 37 Station Road, Ramsey, Huntingdon PE26 1JB

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Town or Parish Council
. Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning
Stance: S
Application
Reasons for comment:
Comments: Alconbury Weston Parish Council has no material observations to make on this
application.

Kind regards

Page 199 of 210


mailto:developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:DevelopmentControl@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
https://publicaccess.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/online-applications/centralDistribution.do?caseType=Application&keyVal=R67FQUIKJRV00

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

To: DevelopmentControl
Subject: Comments for Planning Application 22/00145/S73
Date: 10 March 2022 13:34:50

Comments summary

Dear Sir/Madam,

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10/03/2022 1:34 PM from Mrs Alison Brown.

Application Summary
Address:

50 Hamerton Road Alconbury Weston Huntingdon PE28 4JD

Removal of conditions 3 (Material), 4 (Landscape), 5 (levels) ,6 (ecology), 7 (tree

Proposal: protection), 10 (architectural details) to 18/01946/FUL as the majority of the
works are now complete on site
Case Officer: Theresa Nicholl

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Alison Brown
Email: parishclerk@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
Address: 46 Oakdale Avenue, Peterborough PE2 8TA

Comments Details

Commenter Type:

Town or Parish Council

Stance:

Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning
Application

Reasons for comment:

Comments:

Although the Parish Council has already submitted a no observation comment
against this application, at their meeting on 7th March 2022, Councillors would
like to see in the public domain a report as to why each condition is being
changed and what they are being changed to, and also see a detailed report on
what the applicant is not complying with. The Parish Council wish to be provided
with this information.

Kind regards

Page 200 of 210


mailto:developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:DevelopmentControl@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
https://publicaccess.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/online-applications/centralDistribution.do?caseType=Application&keyVal=R67FQUIKJRV00

From: mark.waring@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk

To: DevelopmentControl

Cc: april.stone@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk; "Clir Jane Baker"; Clir Karen Brine; "Clir Neil Morton"; "Clir
P Baker"; "Clir Paul Harper-Harris"; Parish Clerk

Subject: Planning Application 22/00145/S73 - Alconbury Weston Parish Council Comment

Date: 31 May 2022 19:58:11

Following an Extraordinary meeting of Alconbury Weston Parish Council on 30 May 2022,
Alconbury Weston Parish council make the following comments on Planning Application
22/00145/573: Removal of conditions 3 (Material), 5 (levels), 6 (ecology), 7 (tree protection, 10
(architectural details) to 18/01946/FUL at 50 Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston.

Alconbury Weston Parish Council objects to the proposed Removal of planning conditions to
Planning Application 18/01946/FUL, that was approved on 18t October 2019, which were

submitted as Planning Application 22/00145/S73 on 24t January 2022. Alconbury Weston
Parish Council recommends that you refuse Planning Application 22/00145/573.

The Parish Council (PC) offers the following comments:

Condition 3. The PC is concerned that the building materials that have been used and the
finished appearance are not in keeping with the Alconbury Weston Conservation Area, in
which these houses stand, notably:

o Materials are not to the required specification. i.e. doors and windows are
UPVC/composite whereas they should be wood. The cladding is also not timber, it is
composite

Despite chimneys being shown on all plans submitted, including the developer’s
revised plans, there are no chimneys. As far as the PC is aware, all houses within the
conservation area have chimneys.

o The colour of the cladding is a fashionable modern colour and is not in keeping with

other properties in the Conservation Area.

o Roof tiles are not the correct colour.

o The colour of the doors and windows is not as originally specified.

o Porches are missing from the finished properties.

o The external appearance of the garages is not in keeping with the Conservation Area.

The PC objects to the removal of Condition 3, and requests that remedial action is taken to
address the appearance of this development.

O

Condition 4. The planning application seeks to remove Condition 4. The PC has assumed that
the developer has changed his mind, as he has now submitted both hard and soft landscaping
plans. The hard landscaping proposal is comprehensive, but retains the road construction
that currently exists but with a different surface. This is contrary to Condition 8 and does not
achieve the flood risk reduction requirements. There is great concern within the village
community that Condition 8 has not been met. We note that there has been no request to
remove Condition 8, but it is unclear to the PC if there is provision for rainwater/surface water
run-off as detailed in Condition 8 and it is still unclear to the PC how this condition would be
met. The PC originally observed that the data used was some 20 years out of date and since
that data was provided there have been several “1in 100 year” floods. We are not clear as to
the nature of the current drainage solution for this development and cannot determine if is fit
for purpose. The development seeks to barrier itself off from surrounding properties through
the use of 1.8m high solid fencing, walls and some hedging inside the fencing. The PC
considers that this is not in keeping with the boundaries between other properties within the
conservation area, and recommends greater use of hedging, which would also contribute to
flood alleviation. The PC objects to the hard landscaping proposal.

Condition 5. The PC has no access to the site to determine whether the floor level of all
buildings is correct. The PC consider that it is unacceptable to remove Condition 5 and
request that the planning authority determines why this condition should be removed.

Page 201 of 210


mailto:mark.waring@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:DevelopmentControl@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:april.stone@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:jane.baker@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:karen.brine@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:neil.morton@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:philip.baker@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:philip.baker@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:paul.harper-harris@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk
mailto:parishclerk@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk

e Condition 6. The PC does not understand why condition 6 needs removing. The developer has
submitted a Biodiversity Method Statement dated April 2022, and while the major part of the
report has been undertaken by the completed development, the PC would wish to see the
remaining activities completed and inspected.

e Condition 7. The PC note that the Retrospective Arboricultural Impact Assessment submitted
by the developer states that Condition 7 has not been met. However, the PC support the
recommendation of this report that the terms of Condition 7 are applied for the 5 years
following completion of the development. The PC therefore object to the removal of
Condition 7.

e Condition 10. The PC consider that Condition 10 is critical to the appearance of the finished
properties and their blending into the conservation area. The PC note that there are some
details on the plans that allude to the architectural design, but they are not sufficient to
comment on. As many of these details are to be completed in the final stages of
development, we cannot observe on their implementation, but would expect the developer to
fulfil the requirements of Condition 10.

The PC request that you note that the meeting saw a large public participation (13 members of
the parish + 2 developers), with the parish members particularly concerned about the
appearance of the development where it is situated within the conservation area, and also that
Parish advice has not been sought of any significant proposed deviations from the approved
planning approval before they have been carried out. The overall feelings of the parishioners’
present were that the development is significantly altered from what was initially approved.

Clir Mark S Waring
Chair
Alconbury Weston Parish Council

Page 202 of 210



rights
DC 100022322

copyright and database
Ordnance Survey

© Crown

Hun’ringdonshiré

DISTRICT o 0N ETL

o

M// -

2
%

w,.,,///w-

d
mMayc Vo Ul 21V

Application Ref:22/00145/S73
Location: Alconbury Weston

1:2,500
Date Created: 04/07/2022

Scale

Development Management Committee

®

Key

7/, Scheduled Ancient Monuments

[ Listed Buildings

Conservation Area

The Site




1.8m close boarded fence

0TZ J0 0z 9pbed

m v . .
. — Existing boundal‘y treatment
to remain as is

1.8m close boarded f¢nce

Grass ~

Heras fencing was installed prior to

qnstruction and will remain until the
end of~sqnstruction on site. (Tree
protection)

N

1.8m close boarded fence

1.8m close boarded fence

/

1.8m close boarded fence
Pfoposed (jarage
FEFL - 20.05 AOD

1.8m close boarded fence

Existing boundary treatment
to remain as is

Existing boundary treatment
to remain as is

Existing boundary treatment
to remain as is

1.8m/highbgick boundary wall, with
1'm /soff landscaped verge

Existing boundary treatment
to remain as is

Existing boundal‘y treatment

to remain as is New native mixed hedging,

Grass please see notes

Grass

Existing boundal‘y treatment

to remain as is

Grass

~ 1.8m Higly'brick boundary wall, with
Im Aofylandscaped verge

During construction all site

welfare and materials were
stored in this area.

Grass

™

Existing b oundary treatment
to remaAn as is

ing for first 10m

Tarmac har

DETAILING BY JP TDESIGN

WWWJPTDESIGN.CO.UK
NOTES -

Site and Finished floor level

The proposed finished floor level of the house will be set 150mm above
mean ground level in its proposed location, and the garage will be set at
75mm above the mean ground level in its proposed location. All levels
around the site will follow the existing contours of the ground.

FFL's

As shown on the drawings.

Gates

No gates shall be erected across the approved access unless details have first
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
Materials -

See seperate Drawings for plots 1,2 & 3 materials

Footpaths and patio - Marshalls, standard 600m x 600mm slabs, Buff

Condition 4 -

Please see accompanying information from Skilled Ecology and MTC
Engineering

Condition 6 -
Please see accompanying information from Skilled Ecology
Condition 7 -

Please see accompanying information from Skilled Ecology

SCALE RULER
&IIII N M D A et i
11 Iomn 30 | 30 | 40 | 50 | 40 0| 80| 90 | 100
1100 Q 3 3 4 3 d y g g 1o
éIIII (T T T
1:20 200mm| 400 | 600 | 800 | 1000 | 1200 | 1400 | 1600 | 1800 | 2000
12009 dm "~ 4 "4 " 4 0" 12" 14 " de " 18 " o
élllllllléllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
15 100mm 200 300 400 500
150 1 2 3 5
éIIII L LR L IIIJJIIII LU L L R et e R
11250 Om| 20 | 30 | 40| 50 | €0 | 40 | g0 | 90 | foo| 10| 120
1:25000_| cor] 40 [ o | 9o [10do [1do [140 [1do [1g0 | Zoo] d20 40

JPM DESIGN

RESIDENTIAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING
THE STUDIO, 23 THIALIFAX ROAD, UPPER CAMBOURNE CB23 6AX

WWW JPTDESIGN.CO.UK

Drawing Title -

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN AND SITE PLANS

Client - RHD Homes

Address - Salix House, Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston
Scale - 1/200 Date - JAN 21

Dwg. No. - JPT/RHD/0121/001 Rev. C




[

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T I T TTTITTT O]
I TTTIrIrrrrrrrIrrrIrrrIrirIr I rIr T I r I I T rITITITTITT

] T TTTITTTITITITITITIIIIITITITIITITITIIITITI [TITTT
[TTTTTT I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I I:I

T
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |

T T e e e e o O e b L e P D E bt DT

3949

2400

4650

8610

0TZ J0 G0z abed

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

'II]III]III]'

I
I
I
[TTITITITLTL]
I
]

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

SR ek

Obscurely glazed windows to Pilkington Level 3 ( min.)

N

S EEEEE s EEEE e EEEE SRS EREE
00 50 5 e e e 5
'~L|'|'|'|'y||'||'||'||'|,iI!'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'||'|

. 5 P A I A 8 A A A O
1748 0 0 6 O O
|
|
[

\'_|'|'|'|'|'|'|'|'|'i[:'|'|'|'|'|'||'||'|'|'||'|'|'||'|'|'||'|'|'||'||'
., 6 A A A A A A A
|_||_|||iil||||||||||||||||||||||||||||
I'IJ|IJIJ|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|J|

]

7535

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

T
L T
LT
1l T T
' 0 T 0 U
LITITITITITI LI T

[ TTITILTLT LT LT AL LI
EnEnERERENEY 5

1 Y S Y [ e
LIJALIL I LI L L]

i h & 2 St

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

Proposed Materials

Grey spanish slate tiled roof

Weberal M monocouche render finish to walls in Ivory

Clotted cream coloured, UPVC double glazed units for windows and doors
Clotted Cream composite front door

Soffits and Fascias in Anthracite Grey UPVC
Rainwater gutters and downpipes in black UPVC
Electric Meter box as shown in white

Gas meter box (low level) as shown in brown
External vents in cream colour

DETAILING BY JPT DESIGN

WWWIPTDESIGN.LCOLK

Notes :
1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

2. All windows and doors to have a reveal of 30mm

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

Scale 1:500

This plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Black
and White PDF Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at
the date of production. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. The representation
of aroad, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The
representation of features, as lines, is no evidence of a property

boundary.
© Crown copyright and database rights, 2016. Ordnance Survey
0100031673.
SCALE RULER
JIIH L e e U
111 10mm 40 30 40 | 50 | 40 70 | 80 | 90 | 100
11100 @ Im 2 3 4 g é 1 g g 1o
é[l[l TR I T R T PR TR TR TR T TER TR TP
1:20 200mm| 400 | 600 | 800 | 1000 | 1200 | 1400 | 1600 | 1800 | 2000
1:200 0 am ' 4 g4 q 10 12 ' 14 16 " 18 " do
[gHH [TTTTTTTT HIHDHH TTTTLITTTITTTTIITTT HH]D
15 100mm 200 300 400 500
150 0 1m}n 2 3 4 5
0L LA L e Lt
11250 0m| 20 | 30 | 40 | 30 [ 60 | 70 | 80 [ 90 | 1o00| 110| 120
125000 | Hom 40 [ g0 | g0 [1d0 [150 [140 [140 |10 | doo] 4200 240

JPT DESIGN

RESIDENTIAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING
THE STUDIC, 23 HALIFAX ROAD, UPPER CAMBOURNE CB23 6AX

WWW.JPTDESIGN.CO.UK

Drawing Title -

Plot 1 - Elevations

Client - RHD Homes

Address - Salix House, Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston
Scale - As shown at Al Date - JAN 21

Dwg. No. - JPT/RHD/0121/002 Rev. C




A AL

0TZ 40 90¢ abed

8605

g : :
2
1 0L

1t  E=—

4645

L[]
|

Obscurely glazed windows to Pilkington Level 3 ( min.)

T I TT g AI T T T T T T T T TT T T T T T TTTTTTITITITT]

IIIIIIIIIII ITTT T T T T T T T TTTIT I TITT T 1]

I OT T T T T T T T T TT T T T T T TTTIT T T 1]

LT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTITT T 0]

T

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

L1 L1

Grey slate tiles to match the garages

—F =

/

7035

/4
T T T T 17T 1

4271
|

2250
3476

\
[TTTITITT/Z NI LTI T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T T T 1]
[TTTT LA~ N T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TTI I I T T 1]
[L11L#F N
4
/- AN IEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

"""" b

"
)

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

\

Stained timber frame to por

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

ch

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

Proposed Materials

Marley double roman, red, concrete interlocking tiles

Camtech, Ang

Clotted Cream composite front door

Soffits and Fascias in Anthracite Grey UPVC
Rainwater gutters and downpipes in black UPVC
Electric Meter box as shown in white

Gas meter box (low level) as shown in brown

glia Cream external brickork to walls, with James Hardie
Cladding in the colour Pearle Grey to the rear sections
Clotted cream coloured, UPVC double glazed units for windows and doors

External vents in Cream or Grey, to match external wall colour

Scale 1:500

DETAILING BY JPTDESIGN

WWWJPTDESIGN.COUK

Notes :

1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

2. All windows and doors to have a reveal of 30mm

This plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Black
and White PDF Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National
Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision available at
the date of production. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. The representation
of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The
representation of features, as lines, is no evidence of a property
boundary.

© Crown copyright and database rights, 2016. Ordnance Survey
0100031673.

SCALE RULER
&IIII N M D A et i
11 Iomn 30 | 30 | 40 | 50 | 40 0| 80| 90 | 100
1100 Q 3 3 4 3 d y g g 1o
&IIII (T T T
1:20 200mm| 400 | 600 | 800 | 1000 | 1200 | 1400 | 1600 | 1800 | 2000
12009 dm "~ 4 "4 " 4 0" 12" 14 " de " 18 " o
élllllllléllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
15 100mm 200 300 400 500
150 1 2 3 5
éIIII L LR L IIIJJIIII LU L L R et e R
11250 Om| 20 | 30 | 40| 50 | €0 | 40 | g0 | 90 | foo| 10| 120
1:25000_| cor] 40 [ o | 9o [10do [1do [140 [1do [1g0 | Zoo] d20 40

JPH DESIGN

RESIDENTIAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING

TIHE STUDIO, 23 [TALIFAX ROAD, UPPER CAMBOURNE CB23 6AX

WWW JPTDESIGN.CO.UK

Drawing Title -

Plot 2 - Elevations

Client - RHD Homes

Address - Salix House, Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston
Scale - As shown at Al Date - JAN 21

Dwg. No. - JPT/RHD/0121/003 Rev. C




[l

fll=

I

H

8610

4650

3255

=

/

Obscurely glazed windows to Pilkington Level 3 ( min.)

£

g [d

L]
=

7035

4271

0

/
]

I/

R
= 4 2
o
[0
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100
= | (==
Grey slate tiles to
match the garages
{]

UL

B am
D

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

“OCALE 1:100

012 Jo /0z abe

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100

Stained timber frame to porch

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

Scale 1:500

Proposed Materials

Marley double roman, red, concrete interlocking tiles

Clotted Cream composite front door

Soffits and Fascias in Anthracite Grey UPVC
Rainwater gutters and downpipes in black UPVC
Electric Meter box as shown in white

Gas meter box (low level) as shown in brown

Weberal M monocouche render finish to walls in Ivory with James Hardie
Cladding in the colour Pearle Grey to the rear sections
Clotted cream coloured, UPVC double glazed units for windows and doors

External vents in Cream or Grey, to match external wall colour

Notes :

DETAILING BY J P TDESIGN

WWWJPTDESIGN.CO.UK

1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

2. All windows and doors to have a reveal of 30mm

This plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Black
and White PDF Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National
Gcographic Databasc and incorporating surveyced revision available at

the date of production. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. The representation
of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way. The

representation of features, as lines, is no evidence of a property

boundarv.

© Crown copyright and database rights, 2016. Ordnance Survey
0100031673.

SCALE RULER

$|||||||| (T (T
111 10mn 30 4 80 9
11100 0 Im 3 g 9
$|||||||||||| W T
1:20 200mm) 600 | 80 1600 | 18
1:200 0 dm | g 16
$| [T] [{TTTI [TT]
1:5 200 400
150 0Q [ 4
$|||| UL |||JJ|||| 111 (T
11250 Om 0 100 1 2
1:25000 d0m g0 |1 doof g 2

JP"

WWW JPTDESIGN.CO.UK

DESIGN

RESIDENTIAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING

THE STUDIO, 23 [TALIFAX ROAD, UPPER CAMBOURNE CB23 6AX

Drawing Title -

Plot 3 Elevations

Client - RHD Homes

Address - Salix House, Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston

Scale - As shown at Al

Dwg. No. - JPT/RHD/0121/004

Date - JAN 21

Rev. C

00




This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Appeal Decisions Since June 2022 Committee

Ref | Appellant Parish Proposal Site Original | Delegated Appeal
No Decision | or DMC | Determination LIS
A proposed 5 Aragon
21/02 Mr double Place 30/0
730/ | Harrington | Kimbolton | garage to the | Kimbolton Refusal | Delegated | Dismissed N/A
i 6/22
HHF front of the | Huntingdon
UL house. PE28 0JD
;E Proposed
@ Mr Pescod : side 30 Church
® Tilbrook :
r021/02 extension Lane Refusal | Delegated Dismissed 05/0 N/A
O 478/ replacing Tilbrook 7122
EDOHHF existing Huntingdon
T UL outbuilding PE28 0JS
|_\
o

G wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3a Somersham - 19/01790/OUT
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th July 2022
	RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
	Delegated powers to APPROVE subject to completion of a S106 agreement and conditions
	Delegated powers to APPROVE subject to completion of a S106 agreement and conditions

	Or REFUSE in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary...
	Or REFUSE in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary...
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 obligation relating to provision of green space maintenance contribution, wheeled bins, and an on-site affordable housing contribution, and subject to conditions to include t...
	OR
	REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary t...
	CONTACT OFFICER:

	Open Space Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	POS


	Green Infrastructure Strategy Plan.pdf
	08974-FPCR-XX-XX-DR-L-0001 [GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY]
	Viewport-9
	Viewport-10


	ADPF80D.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th July 2022
	RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
	Delegated powers to APPROVE subject to completion of a S106 agreement and conditions
	Delegated powers to APPROVE subject to completion of a S106 agreement and conditions

	Or REFUSE in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary...
	Or REFUSE in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary...
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	8. RECOMMENDATION - Delegate powers to Officers to finalise terms of the S106 agreement in relation to off-site formal sports contribution and off-site biodiversity contribution and, to
	APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 obligation, to include provision of informal green space, wheeled bins, and on-site affordable housing (and formal sports and biodiversity contribution, subject to CIL compliance), and subject ...
	OR
	REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary t...
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	ADP323.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th July 2022
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	8. RECOMMENDATION - Delegate powers to Officers to finalise terms of the S106 agreement in relation to off-site formal sports contribution and off-site biodiversity contribution and, to
	APPROVE subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 obligation, to include provision of informal green space, wheeled bins, and on-site affordable housing (and formal sports and biodiversity contribution, subject to CIL compliance), and subject ...
	OR
	REFUSAL in the event that the obligation referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary t...
	CONTACT OFFICER:



	4a Holme - 20/00923/REM
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th JULY 2022
	RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE
	This application is referred to the Development Management Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation as Holme Parish Council's recommendation of refusal is contrary to the officer recommendation of approval. The application has also ...
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of the Development
	Impact upon Character and Appearance of the Area - (Access, Appearance, Layout, Scale and Landscaping)
	Access
	Appearance
	Housing Mix and Affordable Housing
	Residential Amenity
	Amenity Impacts
	Noise Impacts
	Highway safety, Car and Cycle Parking
	Footpath and Pedestrian Crossings
	Other Matters

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	Combined PC and plans.pdf
	ADP9EE3.tmp
	Instructions

	PC 2 (4)- Parish Comments - 10.06.2021 - Holme SID Vehicle Data for CCC Document B.pdf
	Traffic Data

	2. Location Plan.pdf
	Page 1



	4b Pidley-cum-Fenton - 19/01258/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th JULY 2022
	RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of Development
	Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area
	Impact on Residential Amenity7.
	Impact on Heritage Assets
	Highway Safety and Parking
	Biodiversity
	Impact on Trees
	Flood Risk and Drainage
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Other issues
	CONCLUSION

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:



	4c Pidley-cum-Fenton - 21/01287/REM
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th JULY 2022
	RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of Development
	Impact on the Character of the Area including Appearance, Scale, Layout and Landscaping
	Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety and Parking
	Biodiversity and Trees
	Flood Risk and Drainage
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Other Matters
	CONCLUSION

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:



	4d Alconbury Weston - 22/00145/S73
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th JULY 2022
	RECOMMENDATION – APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of Development
	Design, Visual Amenity and Impact on the Conservation Area
	Impact upon Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Biodiversity
	Trees and Landscaping
	Flood risk
	Other matters
	Planning Balance and Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	ADPD495.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 18th JULY 2022
	RECOMMENDATION – APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of Development
	Design, Visual Amenity and Impact on the Conservation Area
	Impact upon Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Biodiversity
	Trees and Landscaping
	Flood risk
	Other matters
	Planning Balance and Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:




	5 APPEAL DECISIONS



